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Lifestyle International Holdings Limited (together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) is a Hong Kong-based premier retail operator that specializes in
the operation of mid to upper-end department stores in Hong Kong. The
Group's two SOGO stores in Hong Kong including the flagship store in
Causeway Bay (“SOGO CWB"), the largest and leading department store
in Hong Kong, as well as the Tsim Sha Tsui store (“SOGO TST"). With a
well-tailored merchandise and service portfolio, the SOGO stores have
established themselves as the favorite shopping destinations among
tourists and local consumers in Hong Kong. Characterized by the ‘one-
stop shopping’ concept with unparalleled brand equity, the Group’s
department stores offer a wide variety of goods ranging from daily
necessities to luxury products as well as personal care services, such as
beauty salons, in a comfortable shopping environment.

Following the Group's disposal of its entire stake in Lifestyle Properties in
April 2017, the Group engages principally in department store operations
and property development and investment in Hong Kong. To further
cement SOGO CWB's position as one of the iconic landmarks in Hong
Kong, the Group has launched in October 2017 the CVISION, an imposing
outdoor full-HD LED advertising screen at the building facade of the
SOGO CWB store, which shall greatly enhance the effectiveness of the
Group's advertising activities. The Group also has a new project in the
pipeline to fuel its future growth. As part of its efforts to capture the
untapped customer base in the East Kowloon area, the Kai Tak Project
commenced ground breaking works in December 2017, marking the start
of construction for the two commercial blocks that at completion in 2022,
will host a new SOGO department store along with other commercial
entertainment and dining facilities in the new Kai Tak development area.
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Corporate Information (continued) &% (&)

Head Office and Principal Place
of Business in Hong Kong

20th Floor, East Point Centre
555 Hennessy Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

Principal Banker
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Auditor

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Solicitors

Reed Smith Richards Butler
Sit, Fung, Kwong & Shum

Hong Kong Share Registrar and
Transfer Office

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Cayman Islands Share Registrar and
Transfer Office

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited
Royal Bank House, 3rd Floor

24 Shedden Road, P.O. Box 1586
Grand Cayman, KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

Share Information

Place of listing: The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock code: 1212

Board lot: 500 shares

Financial year end: 31 December

Closing share price at 31 December 2017: HK$10.38

Market capitalization at 31 December 2017: HK$16,635 million

Website

www.lifestylehk.com.hk
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Operating Results & & #£&
HK$'000 F/&7T 2016 2015 2014 2013
Continuing
operation
FHiE
T
Sales proceeds SHE RTS8 9,605,804 13,836,382 13,616,709 13,795,500
Turnover & 358 4,671,971 6,171,393 5,969,740 5,955,335
Profit before taxation B &t Bil i £ 1,938,603 2,675,411 2,831,865 3,150,477
Profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company
RERARREVHER AERRT] 1,600,907 1,914,392 2,143,994 2,448,247
Basic earnings per share (HK$)
GRREANEF| (ET) 1.00 1.19 1.31 1.48
Total dividends per share (HK cents)
TR S 4858 (BL) 63.2 63.2 59.1 59.1
For the year ended 31st December ##Z+=—A=+—HILFEZ
Continuing operations refer only to the Group's department store HEKLEBEAEEADINR-_ZT—ER_-_F

operations in Hong Kong following the spin-off of Lifestyle China Group —+t& o #HFFfETEREER L EFEHESLEE -

and disposal of Lifestyle Properties Group in 2016 and 2017 respectively. REANBERRIES -

Turnover Growth for continuing operation IS EEE XK o X EFHR

“we CAGR 1.2%
FEABRER

5,000 4,664 4,627 4;799
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Financial Highlights (continued) H#&#HE (&)

Gross Profit in respect of continuing operation & & & £ 2 EF|

CAGR 1.7%

HK$ Million $%§éi§§$

BEHT
2,786
3,000 503 sE88 2,702 2,643
2,000
1,000
0
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

2017 Sales Proceeds and Growth By Store —ZE—tF /85 2 HEMSRERER

Causeway Bay Tsim Sha Tsui

o 5% /2

4.3%

RAH

22.3%

® Major store enhancement work drew to
close during the year
PUEEENBHN TIREFARRORE

® [conic 17-day long Thankful Week
anniversary event in May and November
once again received overwhelming
response from shoppers
REART AT @+ RVIEFHMY (RSB B
FEBHEREZEEEL

e CVISION, an imposing outdoor full-HD
LED advertising screen on the building
facade, launched in October
PIIESME AR S o2 ELEDE S FF & CVISIONTE+
RH#EH

e Continued to outperform broader
market and performance exceeded
management’s expectation
BERNFREETSURKRFBUERERY

e Becoming premier shopping
destination in the area for tourists
and local consumers
BRIRE R A H B E R X E E R B YR
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m\.."a‘ The Group unveiled CVISION, an imposing outdoor
full-HD LED advertising screen at the building fagcade of
the SOGO Causeway Bay store. It shall greatly enhance

\ the effectiveness of the Group's advertising activities.

N6 B 7 S S = K R ShiE %23 T CVISION »
—EARENEIIEESELEDEERSE -
BRIBRAREBEETBHNE °

- —
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Thankful Week achieved record-
breaking results at both SOGO CWB
and SOGO TST, with total sales
revenue reached HK$1,692.3 million.
e =N IERRDBRKEH [ B
Bl EBEEHRCHENES  BEEW
A% 1,692,300,000 78 T ©

Kai Tak Project commenced ground breaking
works, marking the start of construction for the
two commercial blocks to provide space for
both retailing and office use.
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The year 2017 marked a turning point in the global economy and for the
first time since the global financial crisis occurred a decade ago, the world
economy embarked on a synchronous upswing. Robust performance of
the financial and property market, strong local job market and weakening
U.S. dollar have helped lifting consumer confidence and inbound tourism
for Hong Kong during the year.

Leveraging its solid foundation and unparalleled brand equity, Lifestyle
International refined its business strategy in a timely manner that it was
not only able to keep abreast of customer needs but also able to
maximise sales opportunities amid the recovering retailing environment.
During the year, the Group continued to stay focused on consolidating its
competitive strengths and enhancement of customer experiences and
these shrewd strategy and efforts paid off with a strong set of financial
results, with sales growth outperforming the broader retail market.

As a leading department store operator, the Group stayed committed to
implementing customer-centric business strategy. Our store enhancement
program was nearing completion with the newly designed Freshmart
supermarket reopened in end April that has received encouraging
customer feedback. To further cement SOGO Causeway Bay's position as
one of the iconic landmarks in Hong Kong, the Group also launched in
October the CVISION, an imposing outdoor full-HD LED advertising
screen at the building facade of the SOGO CWB. The Group believes that
all these store enhancement efforts will help boost foot traffic and further
improve the store's sales efficiency in the longer run.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group's turnover from
continuing operations rose 4.9% and saw the net profit surged 79.6% to
HK$2.87 billion. On the other hand, the profit from both continuing and
discontinued operations surged 107.5% to HK$3.30 billion, largely due to
growth in revenue amid improving operating environment, a revaluation
surplus being recorded on the Group's investment property under
development, increase in interest and investment income, decrease in
finance charge, and one-off gain on disposal of the Group's entire stake in
Lifestyle Properties Group Limited (now known as Sansheng Holdings
(Group) Co. Ltd.). Earnings per share for the year were HK$2.06, up 107.5%

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Chairman’s Statement (continued) EE#HE (M)

year on year. The board of directors is pleased to recommend a final cash
dividend of HK cents 34.3 per share. Together with the interim dividend of
HK cents 28.9 already paid during the year, the amount of dividend for the
year 2017 totaled HK cents 63.2, same amount as in the year 2016.

During the year, the Group’s operation benefitted from the steady
recovery of the city’s retail market. Leveraging the Group's loyal clientele
and effective marketing initiatives, the Group reported a 6.7% increase in
gross sales proceeds, outperforming the Hong Kong retail sector which
saw its sales edged up only 2.2% in 2017. While the retail consumption
began to pick up moderately during the first half of 2017, the recovery
gained momentum in the second half of the year, with sales growth
accelerating.

With most of the store enhancement works at SOGO CWB store
completed in 2017, the Group expects the foot traffic and business should
improve in 2018 when comparing to 2017. However, management remains
cautiously optimistic about the outlook for the retail market in 2018 as
escalating trade restriction, rising geographical tensions and volatile
financial market conditions may dampen consumer confidence and
business activities. With these uncertainties, the wealth effects brought
about by the buoyant global financial market and the returning of inbound
tourism that we saw in 2017 may not continue into 2018 and consumer
sentiment could be affected then. Nonetheless, as part of our continual
efforts towards strengthening our leading position as a department store
player, the Group will continue to enhance its market competitiveness
through both physical and digital channels. The world of retail is evolving
at an ever quickening pace and in order to fulfill our core mission of
serving our customers, our team continues to innovate and seek
differentiation within an increasingly competitive climate. Additionally, we
will continue to deepen our customer engagement through increasingly
personalized services and experiential items. With the Group's strong
brand equity and loyal clientele, we believe that Lifestyle International is
well-positioned to ride the upturn in market sentiment.

Regarding the Group’s Kai Tak Project, management is pleased to share
with you that ground breaking works of the project already commenced in
late December 2017, marking the beginning of construction for the twin
commercial blocks that at completion in 2022, will host a new SOGO
department store along with other commercial, entertainment and dining
facilities in the new Kai Tak development area, East Kowloon.

As always, the Group maintains an open stance towards lucrative business
opportunities that have good potential in bringing sustainable returns for
our shareholders.

On behalf of the board, | would like to extend my heartfelt thanks to all
our management team members and staff for their dedicated hard work
and contributions throughout the year. Moreover, | would also like to
express my gratitude to our customers, business partners, and
shareholders for their long-standing trust in and support for the Group.
We look forward to your continued trust and support in the future.

Lau Luen Hung, Thomas
Chairman

5 March 2018
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Market Overview

China, the world’s second largest economy, saw its gross domestic
product grew 6.9% in 2017, above the government’s stated target of
around 6.5% and the 6.7% growth in the year 2016, marking the first
increase in annual growth rate in seven years.

Hong Kong, the Group’s home market, also saw improved economic
growth in 2017 amid the buoyant global stock market performance, firm
local property market and stable economic performance in mainland
China. The city has recorded 3.8% growth in its GDP for the whole 2017,
compared with only 1.9% in 2016. Local consumer sentiment was also
bolstered by wealth effect brought by rising property and stock prices.
Hong Kong retail market continued to recover during the year thanks to
robust local demand and uptick in inbound tourism. Weaker US dollar and
hence Hong Kong dollar in recent months has benefited the city, lifting
visitor arrivals to Hong Kong by 3.2% to 58.5 million in aggregate for 2017,
with visitors from mainland China experienced a 3.9% growth. For the
whole year, retail sales in Hong Kong saw a growth of 2.2% year-on-year,
compared with 8.1% decline saw in 2016. Sales of luxury goods categories,
including jewelry and watches, resumed growth whereas department
stores sales rose 3.4% year-on-year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) EEE:m Kk o4 (&)

During the year, the Group continued to energizing its operations with
customer-centric strategies and initiatives to tap into the warming
consumer sentiment. To further strengthen the Group's brand image and
cement the Group's position as one of the leading landmarks in Hong
Kong, the Group has since October 2017 unveiled CVISION, a massive
outdoor full-HD LED advertising screen at the building facade of the
SOGO Causeway Bay store ("SOGO CWB"), as part of its relentless push
to innovate and adapt in the digital age. Moreover, the Group also during
the year disposed of its entire interest in Lifestyle Properties with an aim
to streamline the structure of the Group for its long term growth and
better utilization of available resources.

Financial Review 2017

With a strong brand equity and excellent retail experience, the Group was
able to capitalise on the opportunities arising from the pickup in consumer
confidence and revival in inbound tourism. During the year, the Group
continued to strengthen its competitive product categories and enhancing
customer engagement via well-crafted marketing efforts. As a result, the
Group's operations in Hong Kong outperformed the broader market, with
aggregate gross sales proceeds growing 6.7% to approximately HK$10.2
billion. The better than market performance once again served as a proof
of the Group's unparalleled store locations, sound business strategy and
strong management team.

On 13 April 2017, the Group completed disposal of its entire 59.56% stake
in Lifestyle Properties for a cash consideration of HK$1,293 million.
Lifestyle Properties has since ceased to be a subsidiary of the Group. The
gain on such disposal, together with the operating results attributable to
Lifestyle Properties up to the date of disposal, are being presented as
discontinued operation in the consolidated financial statements of the
Group, with the 2016 numbers restated for comparison purpose.

Turnover and Sales Proceeds

For the year ended 31 December 2017, Lifestyle International’s continuing
operations (the two department stores in Hong Kong) saw its turnover
increased 4.9% over the previous year while total gross sales proceeds,
derived from both direct and concessionaire sales transactions, was up by
6.7%.

Gross Profit and Concessionaire Rates

The Group's gross profit margin as a percentage of turnover was 56.9%,
similar to that in the year 2016 of 56.6%. Gross profit totaled HK$2,786.3
million, up 5.4% from HK$2,642.9 million recorded in the previous year.
During the year, as changes in sales performance of different category of
goods were insignificant, the blended average concessionaire rate for the
Group remained relatively stable at approximately 24.7%, compared with
approximately 24.5% recorded in the previous year.

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) EIEE: &0 (&)

Net Profit Attributable to Shareholders

The Group's reported net profit (continuing and discontinued operation)
attributable to shareholders for the year amounted to HK$3,299.5 million,
up 107.5% from HK$1,590.4 million recorded in the previous year.
Meanwhile, the net profit attributable to only the continuing operation
was HK$2,874.6 million, an increase of 79.6% from HK$1,600.9 million saw
in the year 2016. The significant jump in net profit attributable to the
continuing operations, apart from owing to the rise in sales and
concessionaire commission income brought about by an improving retail
environment during the year, was mainly attributable to (i) an increase in
interest and investment income of HK$367.1 million, including fair value
gain from the Group's portfolio of financial assets, on the back of robust
performance of the global stock markets during the year; (i) a fair value
revaluation gain on the Group's investment properties of HK$844.2
million, especially the revaluation surplus after tax of HK$687.4 million
attributable to the portion of the Kai Tak project which has been
designated for leasing out for rental income purpose when the project
would be completed in a few years’ time; and (iii) a decrease in interest
charge to the profit and loss account of HK$242.1 million as compared to
the year 2016. Taken as a whole, the Group’s net profit margin as a
percentage of turnover in respect of its continuing operations increased
from 34.3% in the year 2016 to 58.7% in the year 2017. The Group's
reported net profit for the year from both continuing and discontinued
operations on the other hand was pushed up further by a one-off gain
recorded from the disposal in the first half of the year of the Group's
59.56% equity interest in Lifestyle Properties to the tune of HK$420.8
million.

Selling and Distribution Costs

Aggregate selling and distribution costs of the Group increased 14.6%
over the previous year and represented 6.3% (2016: 5.9%) of total gross
sales proceeds. The increase was mainly a result of higher rental expenses
for SOGO Tsim Sha Tsui (“"SOGO TST") as sales increased, additional
expenses incurred in relation to sales promotion and store renovations.
Higher sales promotion costs was mainly attributed to the SOGO Rewards
program, a cash bonus points program launched in July 2016 for
rewarding spending by customers. On the other hand, the extensive
renovation program for the CWB store in the last few years has resulted in
additional depreciation and amortization charges for leasehold
improvements and other fixed assets.

Administrative Expenses

General administrative expenses of the Group decreased slightly by 2.1%
to approximately HK$131.1 million when compared to the year 2016. The
decrease was mainly due to a relatively small amount of loss on fixed
assets write-off during the year as compared to that in the year 2016 as
the store’s renovation program was largely completed after the revamp of
Freshmart supermarket finished in April.
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Staff Costs

Staff costs (excluding those of the directors) of the Group increased 3.8%
to approximately HK$224.8 million during the year under review. While
the annual general increment of salaries and wages for the Group's
employees was largely in line with the market trend and general inflation,
remuneration adjustments and bonuses are based on performance of
individual staff and financial performance of the Group. The total number
of full time staff of the Group decreased to 632 at the end of 2017 from
703 at the end of 2016.

Other income, Gains and Losses

These comprise mainly management fee, credit card charges and other
miscellaneous and project income received from the counters and
tenants, other sundry incomes and exchange gain or loss. The decrease of
44.7% when compared to the previous year was mainly due to an
exchange loss being recorded on the Group’s US dollar denominated
bonds and loans payable as while the US dollar depreciated against a
basket of other foreign currencies throughout the year, it however
strengthened against the Hong Kong dollar. Furthermore, project income
from providing interior project services to counters also decreased as
most of the renovation work were gradually completing during the year.

Interest and investment Income

The Group's interest and investment income rose to HK$735.1 million
from HK$368.0 million in the year 2016. The amount comprised mainly
interest income of HK$66.0 million from the Group's bank deposits and
net investment income of HK$669.1 million from a portfolio of financial
assets with a market value of approximately HK$3,349.0 million as at the
year end. The relatively large net investment income was mainly
attributable to mark-to-market unrealized fair value gain on the Group's
holding of financial investments.

Finance Costs

The Group's total finance costs consisted mainly of finance charges and
interest expenses on bank loans and bonds payable. The aggregate
amount of finance costs and interest incurred, before capitalization, was
approximately HK$384.8 million (2016: HK$475.8 million) for the whole
year. The decrease was mainly due to the fact that while additional
interest expense was incurred in respect of loans drawn for financing
payment of the acquisition cost of the Kai Tak Land in December 2016,
interest was saved from full redemption of the US$500 million bonds
payable in January. Finance costs charged to the profit and loss account
during the year amounted to HK$229.0 million (2016: HK$471.0 million)
after some HK$155.8 million of the borrowing costs relating to the Kai Tak
Land has been capitalized.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group's EBITDA (excluding investment income, fair value changes on
investment properties, and other non-recurring items, if any) for the year
increased 1.9% to HK$2,223.3 million (2016: HK$2,182.7 million). As at the
end of 2017, before counting the investment portfolio which was worth
approximately HK$3,349.0 million (2016: HK$2,440.6 million), the Group's
net debt decreased from approximately HK$9,337.4 million in 2016 to
HK$8,432.5 million.

The Group's cash at banks amounted to about HK$7,389.3 million (2016:
HK$7,520.1 million) as at the end of 2017. Of the cash kept at banks in
Hong Kong, approximately 99.5% was denominated in US dollar and
Hong Kong dollar and approximately 0.5% in RMB and other currencies.

The Group's bank loans at the end of 2017 amounted to approximately
HK$11,184.1 million (2016: HK$8,376.2 million) and bonds payable
amounted to approximately HK$4,637.6 million (2016: HK$8,481.2 million).
The decrease in bonds payable was due to full redemption at maturity of
the US$500 million bonds in January 2017. The bank loans comprised
HK$5,000 million term loan and HK$2,000 million revolving loan drawn
under the Hong Kong dollar denominated five-year (due July 2021)
HK$8,000 million secured loan facility, which interest is calculated with
reference to HIBOR. The HK$5,000 million term loan is repayable semi-
annually over the loan life, with the first repayment starting from January
2019. The bank loans consist of also a term loan of HK$3,691 million drawn
under the HK$9,000 million project loan facility for financing payment of
part of the land premium of the Kai Tak Land. This HK$9,000 million
project loan facility bear interest calculated with reference to HIBOR and
does not require repayment until the end of the 5-year term in the year
2022. The remaining bank loans represented short-term US$ loans totaling
US$77.0 million (equivalent to HK$601.6 million) drawn under a US$255
million facility, which is secured against certain of the Group’s financial
investments, with interest calculated with reference to LIBOR.

As at the year end, the Group had aggregate unutilized banking facilities
in the amount equivalent to approximately HK$8,099.0 million (2016:
HK$1,937.0 million).

The bonds payable of HK$4,637.6 million (or US$600 million at maturity)
(2016: US$1,100 million at maturity) at the year-end comprised a US$300
million 10-year (bearing interest at 4.25% and maturing in October 2022)
and a US$300 million 10-year (bearing interest at 4.5% and maturing in
June 2025) unsecured guaranteed bond.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's net debt to equity ratio (defined as
total borrowings less cash and bank balances divided by equity
attributable to the owners of the Company) improved from 504.6% in the
year 2016 to 208.5%. The relatively high gearing still was due to the fact
that the self-owned self-occupied store property in Causeway Bay, Hong
Kong is stated at historical cost less depreciation and amortization thereby
its fair market value has not been taken into account in the calculation of
the equity attributable to owners of the Company.
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Foreign Exchange Management

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries is Hong Kong
dollar, in which most of the transactions are denominated. As described
under the “Liquidity and Financial Resources” section above, other
monetary assets and liabilities of the Group are mainly denominated in US
dollar and, to a small extent, other foreign currencies. The Group currently
does not have a comprehensive foreign currency hedging policy as the
HK dollar, in which most of the Group’s transactions are denominated, is
pegged to the US dollar in which certain of the Group’s borrowings are
denominated.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2017, certain of the Group's leasehold land and
buildings in Hong Kong with carrying values aggregating approximately
HK$1,246.1 million (2016: HK$1,264.1 million) and investment properties
with carrying value of HK$322.0 million (2016: HK$301.0 million), together
with shares of certain subsidiaries of the Group, were pledged to secure
the HK$8,000 million (2016: HK$8,000 million) loan facility granted to the
Group, of which HK$7,000 million (2016: HK$8,000 million) was utilized at
the year end. In addition, the entire Kai Tak Project, comprising the land
under development and investment property under development, with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$8,416.2 million (2016: HK$7,393.0 million)
was pledged to secure the HK$9,000 million loan facility granted to the
Group for financing the development of the Kai Tak Project, of which
HK$3,691.0 million was utilized at the year end. Moreover, certain of the
Group's financial assets at fair value through profit or loss with carrying
value amounting to approximately HK$1,427.4 million (2016: HK$841.8
million) were pledged to secure loan facilities in the amount of
approximately US$255 million (2016: US$255 million).

Contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2017.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

To streamline the structure of the Group with an aim to better utilize its
available resources, the Group sold all of its 59.56% equity interest
holdings in Lifestyle Properties, which in turn owns certain investment
properties in mainland China and Hong Kong and a piece of land under
development in Shenyang, China, to an independent third party property
developer based in Fuzhou, Fijian Province, China, at a cash consideration
of approximately HK$1,293 million. The transaction was completed on 13
April 2017 and the Group intends to use the net proceeds from the
disposal for general working capital purposes. The gain from this disposal
together with the result from Lifestyle Properties up to the date of
disposal, amounted in aggregate to approximately HK$426.7 million, has
been disclosed and presented as profit from discontinued operation in
the Group's consolidated profit and loss account.
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Review of Operations

Thanks to its clientele and experienced management team, the Group
managed to take full advantage of the steady recovery in the Hong Kong
retailing market during 2017. As expected, our department stores once
again outperformed the broader retail market.

SOGO CwWB

Against the backdrop of recovery in visitor arrivals and improved local
consumption, SOGO CWB recorded 4.3% increase in sales revenue for
the period under review. While the flagship store’s sales revenue was
dragged down by the complete closure of the Freshmart supermarket for
almost two months during March and April for renovation, SOGO CWB
saw sequential improvement in sales growth in the third and fourth
quarter of the year. The sales growth recorded in the second half of the
year was more than offset the sales decline recorded in the first half of
2017, as the Hong Kong retail market has been on track for a steady
recovery, underpinned by robust performance of the stock and property
market.

SOGO CWB contributed 84.8% to the Group's gross sales proceeds in
2017. During the year, SOGO CWB vigorously enhanced its operational
efficiency, merchandise mix and marketing campaigns, all of which
brought visible improvement in the store’s performance. While the overall
traffic footfall was significantly affected during the period when the
Freshmart supermarket was being renovated, SOGO CWB's stay-and-buy
ratio remained stable at around 34.1%, with the average ticket size
increased from HK$794 in the year 2016 to HK$864 in this year.

Launched since July 2016, the SOGO Rewards program has been well
received and has registered more than 380,000 members up to the year
end. This program has helped increase customer loyalty and strengthened
the Group's brand equity that sales revenue from members has been on
the rise and accounted for approximately 45.6% of the total sales revenue
of the store during the period under review. The Group will work to focus
our marketing initiatives upon cultivating and engaging our growing
loyalty member database with an aim to increasing sales productivity of
the stores.

The store’s iconic 17-day long Thankful Week anniversary events in May
and November 2017 once again received overwhelming response from
shoppers. The biannual promotion events achieved record-breaking
results, with total sales revenue reached HK$1,092.3 million for the May
Thankful Week and HK$1,324.7 million for the November Thankful Week,
respectively. In aggregate, sales from the two events accounted for
approximately 27.8% of the store’s gross sales proceeds of the year.

As the major store enhancement works drew to a close in 2017 with the
launch in October of CVISION, an imposing outdoor full-HD LED
advertising screen on the building facade of the SOGO Causeway Bay
flagship store, the Group expects its investment in enhancing shopping
experience of consumers will translate into future revenue growth. The
new CVISION shall greatly enhance the effectiveness of the Group's
advertising activities by targeting more diverse audiences with dynamic
motion graphic product advertising, drawing higher foot traffic and further
cement the Group's location as one of the leading landmarks in Hong
Kong.
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SOGO TST

With a well-tailored merchandise and service portfolio, SOGO TST has
established itself as one of the favorite shopping destination amongst
tourists and local consumers in the area. SOGO TST, which had an
excellent track record of outperforming the broader retail industry since
commencing operations in November 2014 at its current location,
continued to report stellar growth with a 22.3% increase in sales revenue
for the year, after the 12.4% annual growth recorded in the year 2016.

SOGO TST continued to benefit from strong sales momentum of
cosmetics and skin care products, whose sales accounted for around 60%
of the total sales of the whole TST store. During the year, SOGO TST saw
growth of its average ticket size, traffic footfall and stay-and-buy ratio.
Surpassing its counterpart SOGO CWSB, sales growth of its May and
November Thankful Week events were astonishing that revenue recorded
for the November event was around HK$367.6 million which represented
a 32.8% rise from the same event in the year 2016.

Equity interests in Lifestyle Properties (discontinued operation)
Lifestyle Properties, in which the Group owned approximately 59.56%
interest, recorded a profit attributable to owners for the period up to 13
April 2017 (the date of disposal) of approximately HK$4.0 million (2016:
loss of HK$30.2 million). As at 13 April 2017, the consolidated net assets
value of Lifestyle Properties amounted to HK$966.2 million, mainly
comprising cash and bank balances of HK$412.3 million (2016: HK$414.7
million), and investment properties in the amount of HK$640.4 million
(2016: HK$631.4 million). As mentioned above, the Group disposed of its
entire interest in Lifestyle Properties in April 2017 and after the disposal,
the Group has been focusing principally on its department store
operations and property development and investment in Hong Kong.

Kai Tak Project

To capture the rising purchasing power and untapped customer base in
the East Kowloon area, which will be bolstered by a government
supported redevelopment plan as well as increasing accessibility brought
about by the upcoming Kai Tak Station of the new Shatin-Central Link, the
Group through government tender on 23 November 2016 acquired a plot
of land in Kai Tak — East Kowloon, at a price of HK$7,388 million.

The government's Kai Tak redevelopment project is a huge and highly
complex project spanning a total planning area of over 320 hectares,
encompassing the former airport site together with the adjoining
hinterland districts of Kowloon City, Wong Tai Sin and Kwun Tong. Under
the current redevelopment plan, the Hong Kong government has
proposed to provide a quality living environment for over 100,000
residents, developing a mix of community, housing, business, tourism and
infrastructural amenities in the area.
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With a site area of approximately 14,159 square metres, the Group's Kai
Tak Land will be developed into two blocks of commercial buildings to
provide space for both retailing and office use, with a total gross floor
area of approximately 101,000 square metres. The retailing portion is
planned to house a full-fledged department store and other facilities
complementary to the operations of a department store as well as to use
for the operation of a shopping mall and other entertaining and dining
facilities, and the office space will be divided partly for self-use and partly
for leasing out for rental income. The proposed development is expected
to be completed by end of 2021 or early 2022, and it is believed that this
Kai Tak Project will be able to create a landmark position in the new Kai
Tak development and East Kowloon area and will further broaden and
solidify the Group's presence in the Hong Kong retailing market. The Kai
Tak Project commenced ground breaking works in December 2017,
marking the start of construction for the two commercial blocks. The
Group aims to complete the foundation construction work in 2019, before
the first phase of the Shatin-Central Link, a new underground railway line
connecting Shatin in the New Territories to Central, commences
operation.

Outlook and Plan

The world economy appears to be gaining steam amid recoveries in
investment, manufacturing activity and trade. While resilient external
demand and robust domestic household consumption will continue to
bolster China’s economy in 2018, trade protectionism and monetary
tightening could hinder the economic growth of the world’s second
largest economy. The geopolitical tension and potentially high volatility in
the financial market could also dampen consumer sentiment and
confidence round the globe.

Hong Kong's economy in 2018 is likely to follow very closely the economic
and financial performance in both China and the U.S. Management is
hence cautiously optimistic about the near-term outlook for Hong Kong's
retail market as, while consumer sentiment is likely to be boosted by the
strong local job market, continued revival of inbound tourism and high
property price, the volatility in the financial market and the relative
strength of the U.S. or Hong Kong dollar against other currencies could
on the other hand negatively affect local consumer sentiment and
inbound tourism.

As a prominent retail operator in Hong Kong, the Group will continue to
strive to provide consumers with the most fitted product and service mix
in a great shopping ambience. The Group is confident that the SOGO
Rewards program will further strengthen customer loyalty and attract new
customers. In addition, the Group will reinvigorate customer experience
with the optimized store layout at the revamped SOGO CWB and the
launch of CVISION, thus paving way for improvement in store efficiency
and customer traffic footfall in the longer term. Meanwhile, in an effort to
maintain strong growth momentum at SOGO TST, the Group will stay
devoted to catering customers’ preferences and emotional experiences.

The Group will continue to pursue long-term and profitable business
opportunities that can create synergies with its existing core retailing
activities. Leveraging on the Group's strong brand equity and highly
competent management team, the Group believes that it is well
positioned to ride the upturn in market sentiment.
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As the premier department store operator in Hong Kong, Lifestyle
International is committed to the conduct as a responsible, ethical and
sustainable corporate citizen. We strive to offer a one-stop shopping
destination that focuses in providing our customers with the widest range
of quality goods and services under an enjoyable shopping environment.

Our business philosophy comprises the engagement of our various
stakeholders:

1. Customers: our main goal is to satisfy our customers and provide
them with a world-class shopping environment and experience.

2. Employees: our people are our most precious asset and their well-
being is essential for the productivity and growth of our business.

3. Business partners: we treat each brand retailer as our long-term
business partner and conduct all businesses with integrity and in a
responsible manner.

4. Community: we act as a conscientious member of the society and
are dedicated to contributing to the well-being of our environment
and to providing help to those who are in need.

5. Shareholders: we strive to maximize long-term value and return for
our shareholders.

The commitment towards our stakeholders provides us guidance in our
corporate responsibility policy, where we strive to ensure that the values
of our social and environmental responsibilities are integrated within our
daily operations and business code of conduct.

We believe that the pursuit of integrating our sustainability goals within
our business is an ever-evolving process and we hope to further improve
upon our performance in the years to come.

Corporate Responsibility Policy

1.  Ethical Standards and Responsibility
We strive to conduct our business with the highest level of integrity
and responsibility through engaging our business partners

2. Support and Respect our Staff
Employees are our greatest asset and we treat them with fairness
and respect, providing them with a supportive working environment
within which they can reach their greatest potential

ERBEEERHEAEEZER  MNEBRREFAEME
BRERAIFENDEARMRE - RABUMRHE -
ABWEE S SETEFEBYRE T RER
ZREREEmNIRF

BAEBEIEESHOENSE

1. EBEFE RMANIZEEANTETLAER
HERRBYIRIT B85 -

2. RBE:BMANBEIARMEREEMNEE H
SUORFEHBETIEBNEEN RIEREHE
o

3. EBEM4 RMARSaBTERARIRT
B WAERRABENBEETAEE
& o

4. HE:BZMFAHELREAEN T
HORRERREELER  TRAEFTEAL
TEHEE) -

5 BRER:HEMBNEZBRRNEHEELFE
RAEH o

BMEFNENREREETFREREMIES - &
HERMABIREREERREEFEEEAZEARESE
B TGRSR o

BPEEETEBRAERAIFERRBENBRE
TEDRE - WHIERRBUE A — SARTTAA R

TESEBER

1. EEEEREE
VB A B 5 K T B R R
N

2. XBFRESEET
EERBMEANEE  RMATHEF
HEE AEREIFMNIERE -
AIBESE AR

Ak <

;&
P H

MNEEREEERAIE —T—tFFR



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) B - &R &AM E (H)

3.  Environmental Responsibility
We aim to cultivate an environmentally conscious culture within our
company and endeavor to minimize the carbon impact of our
business activities

4. Striving for Excellence
We continue to ceaselessly set high standards for ourselves and
encourage our partners to embrace these ideals in order to
differentiate ourselves from our competitors

We aim to holistically integrate our values and corporate responsibility
commitments into our business model and company culture, that in turn

will support our growth in the long run.

Environmental Social Governance Committee
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) i

In 2015, the Group established an Environmental Social Governance
Committee ("ESG Committee”) to advise and assist in the development
and implementation of sustainability strategies.

ESG committee is chaired by an Executive Director and its’ members
comprises key heads of our main business functions such as Finance,
Sales, Electrical & Mechanical and General Affairs. The involvement of all
major departments ensures that the various interests across the Group are
all adequately represented. It is the main vehicle for ensuring that
sustainable considerations are recognized and included within our
business processes.

The committee holds meetings at least once every quarter to plan and
strategize long-term sustainability goals, review the Group’s ESG
performance, and seek solutions that pursue continuous improvement.
Each business function is responsible for formulating their respective
goals and targets for the year, and department heads report the progress
of achieving their sustainability objectives to the committee during the
regular meetings. Main responsibilities of ESG Committee include
formulating ESG strategies, sustainability reporting, stakeholder
engagement, materiality assessment & data analysis and the promotion of
ESG issues both within and outside of the company.

With regard to material aspects that affect multiple departments across
the Group, cross-departmental working committees are formed to identify
and address these issues.

Our Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (“CSR Committee”) was
formed in 2015 and is dedicated towards strengthening staff awareness
and engagement towards social and community related issues. The
committee is wholly composed of our trainee level employees who plan,
organize and review our year-long program of charitable events and
activities. The committee is an important vehicle that empowers our
young staff, by helping them develop leadership and project management
skills. This provides them with an opportunity to work with colleagues
outside of their own department, sharpening their interpersonal skills and
fostering a tight-knit family culture within the Group.

In December 2017, the Group announced the establishment of the Health
& Safety Committee that further solidifies the Group’s commitment
towards fostering a healthy and safe environment for our employees and
customers, as well as ensuring the compliance with all legal
responsibilities. Health & Safety Committee members comprises
representatives across 11 business departments and hold regular
meetings to identify potential workplace hazards, recommend corrective
measures and organise health & safety related activities that aim to raise
the awareness of our various stakeholders.

Materiality Assessment

The purpose of conducting a materiality assessment is to identify issues of
importance to the Group from a sustainability perspective and to prioritize
those which are considered material. This methodology involves the
engagement of the Group’s various stakeholders and encourages
different stakeholders to consider a range of sustainability indicators,
identifying and rating KPIs that are deemed most relevant to our business.
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There are a wide range of issues on which we could address. The principle
of materiality is defined as aspects that are considered significant in
reflecting the Group's economic, environmental and social impact and
those that are important in influencing the decision-making process of our
stakeholders.

For 2017, the ESG Committee decided to conduct a preliminary
materiality assessment exercise that involved the engagement of our
internal stakeholder, our employees. The ESG Committee considered a
list of material issues of sustainability and conducted a process of
prioritization where 21 material aspects were selected. An online survey
was designed with each material aspect further defined to provide more
clarity towards the audience and briefing sessions were held to introduce
and engage our employees in this exercise. Employees participated in the
survey rated the 21 material aspects in accordance with a rating scale
which categorized topics from “least important” to “critically important”.
After survey collection, the data was analyzed, further prioritized and
validated with the endorsement of ESG Committee. This exercise has
helped our committee better understand the areas of materiality that are
most relevant to our employees, which in turn informs us on where to
focus our sustainable efforts. In the coming year, the committee will plan
to focus upon furthering improvement in the following material aspects:
Customer Privacy, Occupational Health & Safety and Training &
Education.

For 2018, ESG Committee has plans to engage with an independent
sustainability consultant to provide guidance in conducting a more
comprehensive materiality assessment that will involve the engagement of
additional stakeholder groups, in view that this would provide the Group
with a more comprehensive picture for the areas of focus in the coming
years.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT
FHrE2R

LIFESTYLE
INTERNATIONAL )Y
e B BR

Community
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- Shareholders’ meetings
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- Investors & Analysts meetings
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- Results Presentations
B

- Financial Reports, Announcements & Circulars
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- Training & Workshops
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- Volunteer Activities
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Environment

Environmental Policy

Lifestyle International’s Environmental Policy targets to reduce our
environmental carbon footprint and promote an environmentally
sustainable atmosphere within our store operations. We will:

J Quantify the environmental impact of our operations by designing
measures to reduce our greenhouse gas emissions

. Consistently work to improve the efficiency of our energy
consumption

. Ensure a healthy and comfortable indoor environment within our
business premises

. Adopt green practices and technologies to better conserve our
natural resources

J Ensure compliance with applicable environmental and related
legislations with our staff, business partners & other stakeholders

. Minimize our waste generation and manage our waste in a
responsible manner

. Raise an environmentally-aware mindset amongst all employees
through regular internal communications and trainings
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Energy Efficiency

We continuously strive to reduce overall energy consumption and
maximize the energy efficiency of all our facilities within our buildings and
department stores with respect to electricity, water and gas usage, which
are the main sources of energy used in our department store operations.

In order to monitor and improve our energy consumption, a comprehensive
record for different zones of the buildings is kept for both data calculation
and verification. Data is analyzed on a regular basis so that the equipment
or facilities are always working in the optimal conditions.

Majority of the electricity is consumed by the air conditioning systems,
vertical transportation (lifts and escalators), general lightings, refrigeration
systems, plumbing & drainage systems and I.T. facilities (servers, personal
computers and Point of Sales system). In the past few years, we have been
carrying out various measures to improve those facilities in order to
maintain optimal operational efficiency conditions, such as consideration
of more efficient models in new procurement, timely replacement of less
efficient parts, and conduct continuous preventive maintenance measures
by our professional contractors and in-house maintenance teams.

To minimize the power consumption of our lighting facilities, LED lightings
are now used in more than 95% of department store areas, with
installation of LED lightings in remaining areas to be completed before
the end of first quarter of 2018.

To leverage the latest technology for our operations to minimize impact

on the environment, a new full length LED advertising screen on the front
facade of our Causeway Bay store (“CVISION") was installed in October
2017 to replace the fixed traditional banners which were lit by energy
inefficient floodlights. In order to minimize the brightness of the screen
and power consumption, CVISION is equipped with 3 brightness-
controlled mechanisms — automatic sensor control, manual control and

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) i

timer pre-setting control to monitor its operations. These controls help to
adjust the brightness of the screen to an optimal level in accordance with
different background illumination level, conserving electricity consumption
in the process. A set of Active Harmonic Filter for LED power supply
system is also installed to enhance its efficiency of electricity consumption
during operation.

In addition, having well aware of the impact of light pollution on our local
communities, operations of all external lighting facilities of our stores such
as LED screens, light boxes, logo signages are in full compliance with the
requirements under “"Charter on External Lighting” by Environment
Bureau.

Energy and Water Consumption

The major source of energy consumption for our operations is electricity
in our building for facilities such as air-conditioning systems, lightings,
vertical transportation facilities, water pumps, firefighting and office
equipment.

In comparison to electricity, water consumption is relatively small in our
operations. Consumption is mainly for sanitary facilities for both customers
and staff within department stores and office premises. Sensor type water
taps and flushing facilities have been installed for reducing water
consumption in washrooms.
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Aggregated energy and water consumption at our Causeway Bay, Tsim RIZZ—AFE-T—+tF  WBEHEE - XY
Sha Tsui department stores and auxiliary supporting facilities for MHEASERERELRGHERERELBKAELT
2016-2017 is presented as below: U
Item 2017 2017 2016 2016
HH —E2—tF —E2—tF ZTRE ZERF
(Intensity by (Intensity by
square meter) square meter)
(BEHKREBE) (BYHAREE)
GHG Emissions (Scope 2) Total kg CO% 15,957,950kg 265.18 Kg/m? 16,568,596 kg 275 Kg/m?
BERBHRY (BE2) - —SREELLT 15,957,950 A7 BV 7K 265.18 A f 16568596 BT BEITK 25 AT
Purchased Electricity Total KWh 21,046,308 kWh 350 kWh/m? 22,077,093 kWh 367 kWh/m?
BEE BT R/ 21,046,308 F¥ 7k 350 22,077,093 TR 367
TR TR/ TR TR
Purchased Towngas Mega Joules (MJ) 1,420,224 MJ 23.60 MJ/m? 1,458,096 MJ 24.23 MJ/m?
HEHR KEE 1,420,224 ¥ FE BF 5K 23.60 KEE 1,458,096 KEE GF K 2423 KEE
Potable Water Cube Meter 88,999 m® 1.48 m¥/m? 102,796 m? 1.71 m3/m?
K AR 88,999 U 5K B/YHK1.48 UFK 102,796 L AA  BFFK1LTI TR
Remarks: it
1. Total operating area used for computation of energy intensity is 60,178.57m? 1. STHERREEAALEmER60,178.57 F K °
2. Emission Factor used for purchased electricity from Hong Kong Electric and 2. HREBER LT EBEE NPIBEERRES H/R0.79

CLP is 0.79 and 0.51 respectively. Emission Factor for Towngas from Hong
Kong and China Gas is 0.065 per MJ.

3. GHG emissions is calculated basing on purchased electricity and Towngas
only, excluding those electricity consumptions by central air-conditioning
systems which are not under our operating control as such consumption data
cannot be readily available and reliably measured.

k051 - REAPERRABERTTAFRREZE A
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Sustainable Construction

Lifestyle International is committed to implementing environmentally
friendly construction processes that minimize its carbon impact on the
surrounding area.

During the design consultation stage, we encourage the use of regionally
sourced materials and high efficiency energy fixtures. We strive to
minimize the creation of harmful substances during the construction
process and all contractors are required to use approved sealants,
adhesives, paints and coatings that fulfill the low VOC (Volatile Organic
Compounds) requirements. From the pre-construction stage through to
the entire construction process, we actively identify and leverage
opportunities that can enable us to enhance the environmental
friendliness of the construction process.

Waste Management and Recycling

Waste prevention and management plays an indispensable role in our
overall environmental policy. In addition to minimizing environmental
impact, we believe that waste prevention increases operational efficiency
and generates cost savings for the long-run. We recognize the importance
of promoting waste consciousness amongst our various stakeholders in
order to achieve an effective implementation of our waste management
policy. Our waste management policy includes recycling and the
promotion of practices that support the reduction of consumption.

To strengthen our recycling efforts within our operations, two recycling
machines, namely Reverse Vending Machines have been set up in August
2017 at our two stores for the collection of non-refillable PET bottles.
Since its’ introduction, over 800 pieces of PET bottles had been collected
from the customers in 2017.

For our store renovation works, our contractors are required to appoint a
waste management coordinator, who is responsible in ensuring the
implementation of construction waste recycling. Prior to the start of any
construction works, a construction waste manager is appointed to oversee
and monitor the waste recycling process, and set targets for all
subcontractors to contribute towards our waste management efforts. In
2017, we have successfully recycled around 19% of the total construction
waste generated during the renovation of B2/F Freshmart supermarket at

our Causeway Bay store.
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Workplace Conduct

To reinforce our commitment towards environmental protection and
sustainability, we have adopted a Green Office Policy on energy & water
savings and waste reduction, which amongst other best practices, includes
activating the energy-saving mode of office equipment when they are not
in use, minimizing the consumption of office paper by setting double-
sided printing as default printing and using space efficient printing
formats. We also participate in the Green Office Awards Labelling Scheme
(GOALS) organized by World Green Organisation (“WGQO"). After
undertaking a green audit, we have been granted with two labels —
WGO's “Green Office” label and "Eco-Healthy Workplace” label in
recognition of our efforts in implementing green office practices. During
the year, significant efforts have also been made on paper and plastic
bottle recycling, with the help of our trash collection contractor. To
minimize electronic waste, disposed computer equipment or electronic
devices are collected and processed by professional recycling companies.
In addition, use of rechargeable batteries in place of disposable batteries
is adopted whenever feasible.

Green Office a
Awards
2017 Aware
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Environmental Friendly Shopping

To advocate environmentally responsible shopping, we sell reusable bags
and have adopted P-life biodegradable plastic shopping bags as storage
options for our customers. In addition, we regularly promote and hold
various environmental friendly promotional activities. In 2017, we have
held the following activities to promote eco-living:

—  Tote bag redemption;
—  Greenery Living Photo Contest;
—  Easter Be a Green Foodie Competition;

—  Mother’s Day eco wrap redemption and DIY greeting card
workshop;

—  Father's Day DIY leather good workshop;

—  Time to be Cool multi-functional shopping bag redemption and
Dyelicious Food Dye Workshop;

—  Freshmart Go for Green Fair, Green Autumn Promotion with
environmental friendly gift upon purchase.

Food Recycling

The food and confectionery sections of our stores apply the principle of
reduce, reuse and recycle in the handling of food wastage. As opposed to
having food waste being transported to the landfill, we adopt policies that
support the collection and recycling of leftover food products.

"First-in-first-out” policy is implemented for storing and selling food
products, so that food waste from perishable produce can be reduced to
a minimum. Since October 2016, we have implemented a food recycling
programme. The recycling company collects daily food waste and turns
them into compost or animal feed, greatly reducing the organic waste
produced. In 2017, around 30,200kg food waste were collected, saving
approximately 17,214 kg CO,e emission from landfill.

In addition, we have started donating food to food bank “Food Angel”
from November 2017, helping those in need and raising awareness of
treasuring food as a precious resource.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) &i% -

Employees

Staff and workplace

As at 31 December 2017, Lifestyle International employed a total of 632
staff and they are all based in Hong Kong. The gender and age
distribution of our staff are as follows:

Gender Distribution

52

Age Group
FirAaR

poglid

St

Female year
Male 20BREAT
21-30years old
21-305%
31-40 years old
31-405%
41-50 years old
41-50 5%

51-60 years old
51-605%

36.2%

63.8%

60 years old or above

60BIIA L

Lifestyle International has complied with relevant laws, rules and
regulations on compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare throughout the year.

The performance management system is the foundation for reviewing and
reflecting the staff members’ performance level, challenges, and to look
ahead towards their future aspirations. Observations and evaluations of
staff members’ work behavior and accomplishments form the basis for
decision making within the reward system. These decisions may include
wage, salary, and benefit determinations; promotion, demotion, transfer,
or termination actions; and coaching and counseling, training, or career
development options.

Lifestyle International does not tolerate forced labour nor child labour. We
co-operate actively to prevent their occurrence towards not only our
direct staff but also towards the possibility of our indirect involvement
through our suppliers or business partners, including consignment
counters, contractors, labour brokers or recruitment agencies. Throughout
the reporting period, we have not noticed any non-compliance cases in
the aforesaid areas.

Anti-corruption

Lifestyle International regards fair play, honesty and integrity as our
important commercial assets in business. Our anti-corruption policy sets
out the basic standard of expected conduct of all staff members. Periodic
seminars are arranged for our staff to reinforce the knowledge of
recognizing and dealing with bribery and corruption. We have complied
with relevant standards, rules and regulations on bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering throughout the year. No whistleblowing case has
been reported during the reporting period.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) B - &R &AM E (H)

Staff Training and Development

Lifestyle International regards human resources as a critical asset. Our
mission in talent development is closely intertwined with the achievement B HEMEGEKMALEBELEMHE - RMAE
of our corporate objectives. We provide our staff with innovative customer

BTHEIEERE

and service-oriented training programs that enable them to stay BEETHEENTENHFRERSEDH -

competitive within an ever evolving retail market.

In 2017, staff on average received around 15 training hours. Programs

were designed according to the needs of different staff levels including: HEDBRBETRE IRANFTEMR - 85
. Professional Grooming Workshop . HEREIED

. Beauty Workshop

o Motivation Master at the Workplace

o Master Skills in Managing Thorny Customers Workshop
o Leadership Advancement Workshop

o Managerial Staff Training Camp — Igniting Your Power
o Team Building Workshop

. Effective Performance Management Workshop

. EAIS

. BRI TIED)

. ZREHHEETNRIIES
o EMIIRIIEY

. B ABEIIE — RS S

. B2 TEY

. BB T
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) i

Our emphasis on staff training and development is not limited to work
related programs; and we encourage staff members to proactively pursue
personal development and growth. Through the performance
management system, staff members meet their immediate supervisors
and managers to discuss their work performance, personal attributes and
potential training opportunities.

Based on the performance review and regular discussions, staff members
are able to obtain feedback on their work and share with their superiors
about their aspirations and expectations. Training plans are developed
and appropriate resources be allocated for achieving both the staff
member’s personal as well as corporate development goals.

Health and Safety

Lifestyle International considers the health and safety of its’ staff,
customers, visitors and members of the public at large to be of the
greatest importance. To ensure a risk and hazard-free environment for all,
Lifestyle International will:

o Conduct regular inspections of all parts of the Group's premises
J Conduct the fire drill for staff members to practice how the
department store would be evacuated in the event of a fire or other

emergencies

o Obtain professional advice on best health and safety practices
where necessary

o Provide staff members with advisory service on health and safety
matters
J Provide information and training to enhance staff members’

awareness on health and safety issues.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) Ri% -

Every staff member participates and shares the responsibility in the
making and monitoring of procedures and arrangements for safety and
health. All staff members will:

. Co-operate in identifying, reporting and rectifying hazards at work
in relation to health and safety and report such hazards immediately

to superiors or the Security Department

. Co-operate in the investigation of any accident, injury or near
accident to minimize re-occurrence

. Adopt safe working methods and procedures

Offer practical advice and suggestions for the improvement and
maintenance in respect of health and safety standards

To promote health and safety at work, we have organized seminars on fire
safety, healthy eating and green living in 2017. A health and Safety
Committee was formed at the end of 2017 comprising representatives
from different departments to initiate, coordinate and promote related
topics to all concerning staff members within the Group.

Staff recreation activities such as cooking classes, terrarium classes and
scenic tours are organized for staff members to relax and socialize with
their peers. In June 2017, 176 staff members, together with their families
and friends enjoyed a 2-day tour that included shopping, sightseeing and
delicious food in Guangzhou.

Social and Community Support
Lifestyle International is committed towards connecting and interacting
with the community in a sustainable manner and the fostering of harmony
between the people and the environment.

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

BRETH2EIHENERENR2REFERF
MZHNEE - TAEBETH

. AEHRMN  REMMETFHEEERT 2
BFHMREE LM ERIRLAREH
ReE

. AEBBEMEHR TEAEEN - UEE
WA BERE R

. RERE2NTHEDENER

. RUBANBENERRENRZ 2RENER
BERMEH

RTREIFEEREMZE RN T — 582
TEREYD  BEERARRGELTENHTE - BT
RMPIRKERNEERLZE2EZEGER T~
FEML AARKEERHE THEE - HHERER
AR -

BMABIRRTZERE ASHERERSE
REFEBTREES  HEHEITHBERR - KT
—tFRNA176RBTERERA—R2MAHRR
AOEMNBYE L ERE -

HERHEEXE
MEBRHARATHEN TR B EREE
(R AR T4 o



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) B - H SR EE8ME (&)

To ensure that our support can reach the needy effectively, we focus on
contributing our time and resources towards the following four main
aspects:

—  Community support

—  Environmental protection and sustainability

—  Education and youth development

—  Arts and Culture Promotion

To enhance staff awareness and commitment, the “CSR Committee Name

and Logo Design Competition” was organized in October 2017 with the
winning design being adopted as the official logo of the CSR Committee.
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This year, a total of 7 activities and 1,438 hours of charity works were
completed by our volunteers throughout the year, and we have worked
with Fu Hong Society, Hong Kong Cleanup, Orbis, Po Leung Kuk, Food
Angel, The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Group and Produce Green
Foundation.

Volunteering and charitable activities included the Moonwalkers 2017,
coastal cleanup, eco tour and organic farming experience day with
orphans or kids from low income families, elderly home visits and
workshops with patients of mental illness. In addition, the Group has been
offering free outdoor advertising airtime on our mega LED billboard to
Orbis and the Hong Kong Breast Cancer Foundation to help promote
their charitable causes.

Understanding that young people are the future of the society, we are
dedicated towards cultivating the young generation and supporting
vocational education. In addition to offering internship opportunities to
students from secondary schools and universities in Hong Kong, we have
been supporting the Hong Kong Arts Festival in 2017.

To sustain the momentum of health consciousness and caring for
community, the 3¢ SOGO Charity Run was held in March 2017, which was
well received and brought in 2,500 participants. A portion of the runners’
enrollment fee was donated to Suicide Prevention Services to raise public
awareness about suicide. In addition, our “Green Partner, Green Monday”
promotional activities also helped to introduce environmental-friendly and
low-carbon living practices to our customers.

Our SOGO stores have been participating in Earth Hour organized by
World Wide Fund for Nature (WWF) since 2014 to lend our support
towards efforts to solve the problems resulting from global warming. All
the external lights of both SOGO Causeway Bay and Tsim Sha Tsui store
were switched off on the specified date for one hour, from 8:30 pm to
9:30 pm. We will continue to extend support towards these types of
events with the aim of contributing towards a more sustainable world.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) i

We also provide great support in various arts and cultural activities by
bringing the works of different artists from around the world to Hong
Kong. Our aim is not only to promote and share the works of those artists,
but at the same time to create more enjoyment to our customers and
enrich their shopping experiences within our stores. During the year of
2017, we have held a number of exhibitions and events to introduce
Japanese arts to our customers, such as “Yayoi Kusama & Contemporary
Art Collection Exhibition”, “Kyoto Traditional Arts Exhibition”, “Bizenyaki
Fair”, "Kyoohoo Fair”, “Niigata Arts & Crafts Fair”, “Ishikawa Arts & Crafts
Fair”, "Wagaku Exhibition” and “Tsubame-sanjoo Exhibition”, etc.

Operating Practices

Product Safety

Our Product Safety Policy enforces our commitment towards the sales of
safe merchandise under the Kids Fashion & Toys product category,
covering all baby and children products. We embrace the product safety
practices vigorously to ensure that our selections are in strict compliance
with relevant laws and regulations.

We require all suppliers to attach the utmost importance to the quality of
their products, with primary concern placed on the health and safety of
the end users of the products. All suppliers are requested to agree and
undertake the safety requirements concerning toys and children products
and their corresponding intellectual property rights. We maintain a
manual which documents all the requirements under the latest Toys and
Children’s Products Safety Ordinance, Toys and Children’s Product Safety
Regulation, Consumer Goods Safety Ordinance & Regulations, The Trade
Mark Ordinance, The Copyright Ordinance, The Trade Descriptions
Ordinance and the Prevention of Copyright Piracy Ordinance, with which
the suppliers are required to strictly comply. Suppliers are required to fully
observe the Group's requirements, as well as the applicable standards
and regulations. Lifestyle International will:

. Comply fully with the Toys and Children’s Products Safety
Ordinance and the Consumer Goods Safety Regulation, as these
are the fundamental standards to us;

. Conduct regular examinations on our suppliers and business
partners to ensure that their products supplied are in strict
compliance with the safety standards;

o Act in accordance with the Trade Mark Ordinance and perform
continuous inspections as set out in the standards;

J Keep abreast of latest standards, evaluate their impacts and
develop up-to-date policies to maintain continuous safety control
on our merchandise;

. Enhance the standards of product safety by adopting the best
practices;

o Provide regular training to staff to maintain their awareness on the
safety issues at all times.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) Ri% -

Food Safety

We continue to strengthen our food safety management. Consumers
place great trust on our food products and the safety and quality of our
food products is fundamental to our success and brand equity. Our
mission is to provide “Quality food in responsible manner”. We have
strengthened our sourcing management and improved our product
selection throughout this year. We strive to have zero product recalls.
Looking ahead, we will further enhance our standard of food labelling.

When sourcing new products, the use of quality ingredients is one of our
most important considerations. Evaluation of new vendors is conducted to
ensure that their products fully comply with our food safety standards and
local regulatory requirements. As a testament to our selection of Japanese
merchandise of finest quality, we have been honoured to be awarded the
certification of Japanese food and Ingredient Supporters” by Jetro (Japan
External Trade Organization) in May 2017 after fulfilling all quality and
safety requirements of Japanese food products under the guidelines set
by the Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries of Japan. Jetro is an
independent government organization which amongst other functions,
helps to promote Japanese overseas exports.

a4\

L] HXEEHGE—¥—1F HEE
Japamese Food and Imgredient Supporiers
S0GO0 HONG KONG Co., Ltd
JO00-B52.006

Customer Services

Our mission is to satisfy needs of our customers and to provide them with
a world-class shopping experience. We respect, listen and take into
serious consideration all the views and feedback from our customers. We
actively work to improve our dialogue (via comment notes, emails, social
media and phone calls) with our customers to better understand their
needs and expectations.

Maintaining high-quality customer services is part of our business
philosophy in offering quality goods and services under a convenient,
comfortable and pleasurable shopping environment. Our customer
services are extended towards the after-sales journey which we believe is
even more important in our endeavour towards turning a closer
relationship with our customers.

Customer services play an important and direct role in our shoppers’ in-
store experience as well as our overall store service proposition. Our
customer services team acts as an effective communication channel
between our stores and the customers we serve, which in turn contributes
towards the building of customer loyalty in the long-run. We endeavor to
provide a swift, sincere and helpful response to any queries or issues
raised by our customers, in order to fully meet and exceed their
expectations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) i

Advertising and Marketing

Lifestyle International respects the rights of consumers and engages in
responsible advertising and marketing practices. Our advertising and
marketing channels actively avoid misleading practices, such as false or
deceptive messages, omission of important information or
misrepresentation in respect of goods during the course of trade.
Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to applicable
laws, rules and regulations such as the Trade Descriptions Ordinance.

Our advertising and marketing plans take into consideration impacts
towards climate change and we pay attention to any new format available
in the market for advertising and communications. To reduce our
environmental footprint and accommodate the rising popularity of digital
format marketing (such as mobile and APPs), we have steadily increased
our digital advertising and marketing budget in recent years.

In 2017, the amount of marketing spending on digital and electronic
platforms has been increased by about 25%, compared with that from 3
years earlier. We believe that the growing trend of utilizing digital and
electronic platforms shall continue in the future. After the launch of SOGO
Rewards membership programme, the mobile APPs, eDM and SMS have
become the major communication channels with our members. The
quantity of printed direct mailers have decreased by 40%, compared with
2016. Installation of LED display panels on each floor also helps to deliver
promotional information to our customers in an environmental friendly
way. As a result, the quantity of printing materials has been reduced. We
have been closely monitoring the distribution of printing materials in our
stores and will adjust the quantity from time to time to prevent any
unnecessary wastage.

Consumer Data Management

With the aim of enhancing our customers’ shopping experience and
increasing their engagement with our SOGO stores via events and
promotions, Lifestyle International has leveraged upon an amount allowed
by the relevant privacy laws, consumers’ personal information for our
various direct marketing (including cross-marketing) purposes. We respect
the privacy and inviolability of the rights of our customers and we do not
reveal or use customer information for any other purpose and strictly
comply with our customer privacy policy. Customers have the right to
request us to update their personal information or delete their data from
our records.

Lifestyle International takes into serious account the protection of personal
data and will ensure that adequate resources such as professional staff
and appropriate security measures are in place to protect customers’
personal data against any unauthorized use, access, modification or
disclosure. Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to
applicable laws, rules and regulations such as the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance.

We place utmost importance in protecting the privacy of customers
through the collection, processing and usage of their personal data. We
strictly ensure that customers’ personal data is always securely stored and
processed only for the purposes for which it has been collected. During
the reporting year, there were no verified complaints received concerning
breaches of customer privacy and losses of customer data.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide of The Stock BEBMARSAMERABIMNIRE - LS REBARE
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

A.

A1.

A2,

Environment
BiE

Emissions

23 C7)]

Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
BRERAEREEN - KR HOEES BEREEER
MELEH © (a) B - & (b) BTHETAGEAZENERE
BRRPIEFR

KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data.
RSRAERIEIR A1 HERU ISR AR R HE IR -

KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity
BRERUEE M2 AEREBEHNEREE -

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity
FREMER M IMELAEREMHERTE -

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity
BRENIER AAMEEEESEEYHEERTE -

KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and
results achieved.

RASRAERHEIR A5 HUR K BE I E VR I SR PTIS AR ©

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved
RSB RIERE A6 H R B A= NEEEEYNIE - BIEEL
SR RPISHRR -

Use of Resources

EREA

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water
and other raw materials.

BREAER (BIER  KEEMERME) BBER -

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type and
intensity

MABERURIE A2 IR B DM ERE R S EEREREE RS
B o

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity

BRETUEE A22 BFEKERTE ©

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and
results achieved.

FARAESURIT A2.3 il LR (E A e st 8 RIS AR ©

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.

FARETUETE A2.4 #UREUE R KR_ERTA A RERE - LREFA
KRG I M PISACR -

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products
RIS IR A2.5 B AT B RMEHAE -
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Reference

2%

— Environment — Environment Policy, Energy
Efficiency, Energy and Water Consumption,
Sustainable Construction, Waste Management and
recycling

— R RBEK - RNE  sERERNRAKE -
AR - BEYE R R AU

— Environment — Energy and water consumption

—  RE—RERERERAKE

— Environment — Energy and water consumption

—  RE - RERERAKE

—  Considered to be not material

— WRA/TEX

—  Considered to be not material

—  HRATEKXR

—  Environment — Energy Efficiency, Energy and
Water Consumption, Sustainable Construction,
Waste Management and recycling

— BN — RE  AURERERAKE - ATRHEREAE
REY)E TR K M

—  Environment — Waste Management and recycling

— RE—EDEERERK

— Environment — Environment Policy

— B BMER

—  Environment — Energy and water consumption
—  RE—RRHERERAKE

—  Environment — Energy and water consumption
— R —RERNMAKE

—  Environment — Energy Efficiency

—  RE—ER%E

—  Environment — Energy and water consumption

— R —RERNMAKE

— Considered to be not material

—  BWRATEXN
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A3. The Environment and Natural Resources
BRERRXARER

—  Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.

—  REBETARBRRERRABRERNERTZENBE -

—  KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

—  BABENUER A3 IR HIRENAARERNEATER
ERREEAEZENTTE -

B.  Social
e

Employment and Labour Practices

EEREIER

B1. Employment

B2.

B3.

B4.

(]

Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
BRAFI R E BERES  TERE - BRI TE5Ke 2
T~ RIBARIA R EAR A8 RARFIE) ¢ (a) UK & K (b) BT HEEAT
ABERZENEERIIRBIBEHR -

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age
group and geographical region.

RSB RUEIR B1.1 RIER - BIREREL - FilkAR KR E D H(E
S -

Health and Safety

BERZE

Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.
BRARHZE2THEREMRERSBOBELEBEN  (a) BEK
K (b) BFHEITABEAZEBOEMEERAROIHER
Development and Training

R RIEF

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
BRRTTE 8 BT TIERE M A B R BB VR - IS FIES) -
Labour Standards

2T XA

Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BRAIIEET MRHISE T : (a) BER ¢ & (b) EFHETABEKR
FENEERRROINER -

— Environment — Environment Policy

—  RE—BRBEE
—  Environment — Energy Efficiency, Waste
Management and recycling

— R —ERME  BEMEERER

Reference

2%

—  Employees — Staff and Workplace

— [EE —8IMI{EHH

—  Employees — Staff and Workplace

— [BE —BIMTIESM

—  Employees — Health and Safety

—  Employees — Staff Training and Development

— BB —BIFiEER

—  Employees — Staff and Workplace

— (BB —B8IMI{EHH

MNEEREEERAIE —T—tFFR
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Operating Practices

EIEES
B5. Supply Chain Management
fHrEgEE

—  Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply

chain.
— EREHEENRE NSRRI -
B6. Product Responsibility

EmEE

— Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant

laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy

matters relating to products and services provided and methods

of redress.

—  BRMRME AR f i

CEBE - BERLBREEN

ZE
RABRODER © () SR © R (b) BFHETAGEAZENERE

REARBINER -

—  KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy

policies, how they are implemented and monitored.

—  PRAERUERR B6S HMUE B E B RHRE RALREE - U RARRH

TTREETE
B7. Anti-corruption
RES

— Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant

laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

— BRI - $FR - HEFROEREN ¢ (a) BER ¢ K& (b) 85T

TABERZENEERNRDINER -

Community
HE
B8. Community Investment

HE

—  Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of

the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its

activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.

— BRENHRSERTHRSENEHREFEENEREXZISEE

Bt FZmBIBUR -
—  KPIB8.1 Focus areas of contribution
—  EARERUEE B8 EXHEEE -
— KPI B8.2 Resources contributed
—  BRERUEIE B2 FTEBIRAAIR °
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—  Environment — Workplace conduct, Environmental

friendly shopping

—  RE— T{ESMRT  REEY

—  Operating Practices — Product Safety, Food Safety

—  Operating Practices — Consumer Data

Management

—  ZEE) —HEEREER

—  Employees — Anti-Corruption

— RBE—RES

—  Social and Community Support

— HERERXE

—  Social and Community Support
— #mEktEXE
—  Social and Community Support

— HERHERXE



Corporate Governance Report

&

XERWSE

Corporate Governance Principles

The board of directors (“Board”) and management of the Company are
committed to maintaining good corporate governance practices
appropriate to the businesses of the Group. The Company has adopted
the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code ("CG Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
("Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) as its guidelines and focus on a quality Board, sound internal
controls, and transparency and accountability to all stakeholders.

Codes Compliance
The Company has complied with the code provisions of the CG Code for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Board

M

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of a total of nine
directors, including two executive directors, three non-executive
directors and four independent non-executive directors. More than
one-third of the Board is represented by independent
non-executive directors with one of whom being a certified public
accountant. The Board believes that the number of executive and
non-executive directors is reasonable and adequate to provide
sufficient checks and balances that would safeguard the interests of
the shareholders and the Company. The directors possess
professional qualification and knowledge and industry experience
and expertise, which enable them to make valuable and diversified
advice and guidance to the Group's business activities and
development.

The Company adopted a Board diversity policy in accordance with
the requirements set out in the code provisions of the CG Code.
The Company recognizes the benefits of having a diverse Board,
and sees diversity at the Board level is essential in achieving a
sustainable and balanced development. In designing the Board's
composition, Board diversity has been considered from a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge,
industry experience and expertise. All Board appointments are
based on meritocracy and considered against a variety of criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Details of the composition of the Board are set out in the
"Corporate Information” in this annual report. Details of the
changes to the composition of the Board during the year and up to
the date of this report are provided in the “Directors’ Report” under
the section “Directors”. The directors’ biographies and the
relationships among them are set out in the “Profile of Directors” in
this annual report.
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The independence of the independent non-executive directors is
assessed according to the relevant rules and requirements under
the Listing Rules. The Company has received written confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
directors and the Company is of the view that all independent
non-executive directors meet the independence guidelines as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent.

Chairman and Executive Directors

The Chairman of the Board is responsible for setting overall
strategic plan and development of the Group whereas the executive
directors are responsible, in addition to assisting in setting the
Group's strategic plan, for implementing the Board’s decisions,
monitoring and supervising the Group's overall performance,
ensuring adequate capital and managerial resources are available
to implement the business strategies being adopted from time to
time, setting out and monitoring targets, plans and direction for
management, reporting to the Board on the Group's performance
and proposing business plans and strategies for further evaluation
and assessment by the Board.

There is a clear segregation of duties and responsibilities between
the Chairman and the executive directors.

Responsibilities

The Board is charged with promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible and effective
manner. The Board steers and oversees the management of the
Company including, establishing the strategic direction and setting
long-term objectives for the Company, monitoring the performance
of management, protecting and maximizing the interests of the
Company and its shareholders, and reviewing, considering and
approving and the subsequent reviewing and monitoring of the
annual budget against actual performances and results. The Board
has delegated management, under the leadership of the executive
directors, with authorities and responsibilities for the day-to-day
operations and administration of the Group.

Each director has a duty to act in good faith in the best interests of
the Company. The directors are aware of their collective and
individual responsibilities to the Company and the shareholders in
respect of the manner in which the affairs of the Company are being
controlled and managed.
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Directors are requested to make declaration of their direct or
indirect interests, if any, in any proposals or transactions to be
considered by the Board. If a director has a potential conflict of
interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board
has determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with in
accordance with applicable rules and regulations and, if
appropriate, an independent board committee will be set up to
deal with the matter.

All directors have full access to and are provided with adequate,
reliable and timely information about the operations and latest
development of the Group to enable them to discharge their
responsibilities and make timely decision. Updates have also been
provided to all members of the Board on a regular basis to enable
them to discharge their duties. Operational and financial
information and analysis of the Group can be accessed directly
through briefing and reporting by the executive directors and
management during Board meetings. Through the company
secretary, independent professional advice, on the account of the
Company, could be sought should such advice be considered
necessary by any director for carrying out his/her duties properly.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

After recommendation from the nomination committee,
appointment of new director(s), if any, is vested with the Board.
Under the Company's articles of association, the Board may from
time to time appoint a director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board. Any such new director shall hold office until
the first general meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a
casual vacancy) or until the next following annual general meeting
of the Company (in the case of an addition to the Board) after his/
her appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election at the
same general meeting.

All non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) are appointed for a specific term of one year or three
years and all directors (including non-executive directors) are
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and
are subject to re-election in accordance with the Company'’s articles
of association.

(4)
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Meetings (5) &&
The Board held five meetings during the year to review and EFeNFALEARAREH  UEH R
approve, among other matters, the Group's interim and final results HE(EFEF) REENFHERBEENS
announcements and financial statements and the continuing LB REUARBERER S  MEHAS
connected transaction, and to review quarterly operating EHFELLERE -
performance of the Group.
Board members attended the Company's Board meetings either in RIERARBEMERBAGEHEE EFg
person or through telephone conferencing means in accordance REAIRESINEZGEFIABEARFE
with the provisions of the Company's articles of association. The EERR - BSEFNFALFEESELER
attendance record of each director at the Board meetings and BERIBFEREG 2 sk mT
annual general meeting held during the year is set out below:
Number of meetings attended/held
HE T BITEERE
Board Annual General

Meetings Meeting
Directors BE EEga: REBFRE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lau Kam Sen* BlSRiE 2/2 -
Ms. Lau Kam Shim 2545/ A 5/5 11
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas Bl e 5/5 11
Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William IS EE 3/5 Al
Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy A E8LL 4/5 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAFHITES
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon IR B A 5/5 1M1
The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham Varit 3= 5/5 11
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung SRR A 5/5 11
Mr. Ip Yuk Keung TSRS A 5/5 1/1
* appointed on 1 June 2017 * RZE—+F A —BEEE
Practices and Conduct of Board and Board Committee 6) EESRHBTZESSE ERARED

Meetings

The company secretary is responsible for ensuring the proper
convening and conducting of the Board and Board committee
meetings, with the relevant notices, agenda and Board and Board
committee papers being provided to the directors and relevant
Board committee members in a timely manner before the meetings.

The company secretary is responsible for keeping minutes of all
Board and Board committee meetings. Board and Board committee
minutes are available for inspection by the directors and Board
committee members.
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(7) Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional (7) EERERBEEXERE
Development
Induction package covering the Group's businesses and the BEFEZAZEEZ(INA) EEBEERER
statutory and regulatory obligations of a director of a listed SEXBE T RREFEERNEERT
company will be provided to each newly appointed director, if any. FEANBEEER - ARFFEREFREME
The Company continuously updates the directors on the Group's BRAREEEGLR - ETR R R E A E A
businesses and the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules EERTENBER -

and other applicable regulatory requirements.

During the year, the directors participated the following training: FR - EHE2EUTE

Types of Training

Directors BEE FIER

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Lau Kam Sen* BSREE ABC

Ms. Lau Kam Shim 215/ e AC

Non-executive Directors FHITES

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas Bl AC

Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William HEBEE AB.C

Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy HES - Yo AC

Independent Non-executive Directors BUFBITES

Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon IR B e A AB.C

The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham Vet &3 A,B,C

Mr. Hui Chiu Chung AR A AC

Mr. Ip Yuk Keung Hgaskt ABC

* appointed on 1 June 2017 * RZE—tFA—BEEE

A — reading materials given by the Company relating to the A — BIEHARRHEHBBARREBIA
Company’s businesses and regular updates on the Listing NEBEERBRAEEN ETHRAR
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements relevant to Hoth i F BB R O TE B # A Y

director’s duties and responsibilities

B — attending briefings/seminars/conferences/forums relevant to B — HEEFHEFRHEREANER
director’s duties and responsibilities g/ Malg gE wmiE

C — reading newspapers and journals relating to corporate C — BIEAMEEERSEE BRERMSE
governance matters, environment and social issues or RN E RS ETRRERET

director’s duties and responsibilities

Directors’ Securities Transactions EBErRSRS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities ARBIEREFTHITEFZ FERMN—IERFEL
transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than the required — E{&RCTER L1 8 A MY &% 1 Frak 2 122 <F A AT R
standard set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (“Model Code”).  EZZR([1FEFAl]) « KARNBELRFEERE -
After specific enquiries by the Company, all directors confirmed that they BE_Z—tF+-_A=+—HILFERN FFAEE
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code and ~ F#R KX E19EFIRETRAIFFRTE 2 FERARF
the Company’s own code during the year ended 31 December 2017. pASHE K

MEEREEERAIE —T—tFFR
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Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Statements

The directors acknowledged their responsibility for overseeing the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017. The directors have ensured that the financial
statements of the Group are prepared so as to give a true and fair view of
the Group's state of affairs, the results and cash flow for the year, and on a
going concern basis in accordance with the statutory requirements and
applicable accounting and financial reporting standards.

The directors also ensure timely publication of the Group’s financial
statements and aim to present a clear, balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group's performance and position through all its
publications and communications to the public. They are also aware of the
requirements under the applicable rules and regulations about timely
disclosure of inside information.

The report from the auditor of the Company regarding their
responsibilities and opinion on the financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out in the "Independent
Auditor’s Report” in this annual report. The Board has taken steps to
ensure the continued objectivity and independence of the external
auditor. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the remunerations paid/
payable to the external auditor of the Company were approximately
HK$1.5 million and approximately HK$0.7 million in respect of audit and
non-audit services provided to the Group (including discontinued
operation) respectively. Details of significant non-audit services and the
fees incurred are as follows:

Review of interim financial information

for the six months ended 30 June 2017 HK$0.5 million
Services provided relating to proposed issuance
of bonds HK$0.2 million

Board Committees

As at the date of this report, the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and nomination committee are in operation and they have
been established with specific terms of references to assist the Board in
discharging its responsibilities.

(1)  Audit Committee
The audit committee comprises four members, namely, Mr. Lam Siu
Lun, Simon, The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham, Mr. Hui Chiu Chung
and Mr. Ip Yuk Keung, all are independent non-executive directors.
The audit committee is chaired by Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon, who is a
certified public accountant. The audit committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the audit committee setting out the
committee’s authorities and duties, which follow closely the
guidelines of the code provisions of the CG Code, are available on
the Company'’s website.
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The principal duties of the audit committee are as follows:

(i)  to review the services and appointment of the Company's
external auditor, the nature and scope of auditing, and the
related audit fees;

(i) toreview the Company'’s financial statements and reports, the
changes in accounting policies and practices, and the
compliance with applicable accounting standards, the Listing
Rules and legal requirements;

(i)  to oversee the Group's financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems; and

(iv)  to review and monitor the corporate governance functions as
set out in the CG Code.

The audit committee held two meetings during the year. The
attendance record of each committee member is set out below:

TERAEWT

ERERBREZ

FHAR TSNS EE 2 RIS R A EE
AT i I BRI MARRR BB

—

() BMAREZMBHERBRE WK

RHEERZES  REABSEAS
AER) TR A ROEBIRE ¢

(i) EERAEEZMERRHE =gl
MABERHERE ;:&

(iv) W REESESTREY ZCEERN

HBBE -

FRN EZZEQBRRTMAGH - BZ8
BB HEE R 2SR

Number of meetings

attended/held
Audit committee member EREEEHRE HEBITEBRH
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon (Chairman) MkBEE (/%) 2/2
The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham REHZEE 2/2
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung FTHRHR S A 2/2
Mr. Ip Yuk Keung Eaoets 2/2

In the meetings, the audit committee (i) reviewed with external
auditor the Group's interim and annual financial statements and
reports before they were submitted to the Board for consideration
and approval; (i) reviewed with the external auditor the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group; (iii) reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems;
and (iv) reviewed the corporate governance functions of the Group.

Remuneration Committee

Members of the remuneration committee comprise three
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Lam Siu Lun,
Simon who is the chairman of the remuneration committee, The
Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham and Mr. Hui Chiu Chung and one non-
executive director, namely, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas. The
remuneration committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the remuneration committee setting out
the committee’s authorities and duties, which follow closely the
guidelines of the code provisions of the CG Code, are available on
the Company’s website.

The principal duties of the remuneration committee are to provide
advices and recommendations to the Board on (i) the remuneration
packages of the directors and senior management; (ii) any specific
remuneration packages with reference to market conditions,
performance of the Group and the individuals with reference to the
goals and targets as set by the Board from time to time; and (iii) if
necessary, any compensation arrangement for termination of office
of directors or senior management.
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(3)

The remuneration committee held two meetings during the year.
The attendance record of each committee member is set out below:

FR HFHZBEEERTMAREH - &%8
BB HEEE ZRERIINIT

Number of meetings attended/held

Remuneration committee member FHEEERE HEBITEEIE
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas e 2/2
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon (Chairman) MR A (£F) 2/2
The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham Ykt &9 2/2
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung BRI A 2/2

In the meeting, the remuneration committee (i) determined the
remuneration package of newly appointed executive director; and
(ii) reviewed and recommended for the Board’'s approval the
remuneration packages of the directors and senior management for
the year.

Nomination Committee

Members of the nomination committee comprise three independent
non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon who is the
chairman of the nomination committee, The Hon. Shek Lai Him,
Abraham and Mr. Hui Chiu Chung and one non-executive director,
namely, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas. The nomination committee is
provided with sufficient resources to discharge its responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the nomination committee setting out the
committee’s authorities and duties, which follow closely the
guidelines of the code provisions of the CG Code, are available on
the Company's website.

The principal duties of the nomination committee are as follows:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition (including skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(i)  to assess the independence of the independent non-
executive directors; and

(iv)  to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive.
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The nomination committee held two meetings during the year. The
attendance record of each committee member is set out below:

il

FR REZEELETMASH &%
BREHEE R 2SI T

\

Number of meetings attended/held

Nomination committee member REZEERE HERITEERE
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas BIEREE 2/2
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon (Chairman) MIKBESEAE (EF) 2/2
The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham REHEE 2/2
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung FFRAPSEE 2/2

In the meeting, the nomination committee (i) considered and
recommended for the appointment of executive director;
(ii) reviewed the existing structure, size and composition of the
Board; (iii) reviewed the independence of independent non-
executive directors; and (iv) made recommendations to the Board
on the proposed re-election of the retiring directors at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group's
strategic objectives, and maintaining sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems. As such, the Board not only
sets and communicates the Group's strategies and objectives but also
oversees the Group's risk management and internal controls systems on
an ongoing basis, and to ensure that a review of the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal controls systems has been
conducted at least annually.

The audit committee plays a vital role in overseeing the risk management
and internal controls systems on behalf of the Board. The audit committee
reviews, on at least an annual basis, the Group's risk management and
internal controls systems to ensure that management has fulfilled its
duties in establishing and maintaining an effective risk management and
internal controls systems. It also assesses the extent and frequency of the
communication of the monitoring results to the Board, as well as
considering the results of any investigation into the Group's risk
management practices and internal controls and management'’s responses
to the findings of such investigations. The audit committee performs
annual review for the adequacy of budget and resources, staff qualification
and experience, and the quality of training program of the Group’s
internal audit, accounting and financial reporting functions.

The Group’s system of internal controls which includes a defined
management structure with limit of authority is designed to help the
achievement of business objectives, safeguard assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or for external publication, and ensure compliance with
relevant legislation and regulations. The system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in the operational
systems for the achievement of the Group's objectives.

REZEERELNZRKEZNTESH
T (i) RFT IR E RS - ABURAER
(i) BB IEMITEF 2B R(vAE
ECRFNBERTIRRAEFAG LER
REESEZE# -

[ B B & N BB BRI

EEg8 LEREM MR EERERLAEER
BEESEMREEARERRNEEREE  URERE
REBRAMEENBRES - At EEGTE
BRI REEARENKBLAR  THEEEAE
B E R EE A BEERS YRRV EF—
REFAAEERBREIRERABERE RGN BRI -

EREZEENRREZEEEARER R AMEE
AR LHEERAG EREBEERIEBF—RE
BMASENRREERASEZERLS  URFREHE
BEBTHEEYREFARNEAREE RABEZER
BOBE - AT EZTSEEERERNER
NIAE RS UERARERNRRERE BN A
ERFEREEAREERANZEREETSHARA
EHERNOE - FERZESGHBEENERTREE
BTERMERARAEERIER - S5t LMK
BRI B E BT -

AEBENAEERRBEREERRE MAREN
BIR - AGBDEEEEXBRE REEENUH R
RERERIEE  BRREZNIACHEEART
W AT SR AT SE 0 B S B KL R BB iR A S B SN BR
WHERNARBEG LR - AR RGEES
B (B FEBE) REBAUMERNRERMIRL - I
B (BN IFER2HER) EERRARIEBAEE
ZBE-

MEEREEERAIE —T—tFFR



Corporate Governance Report (continued) ™¥&E458 % (M)

The Group also regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information and procedures are in place for the handling of confidential
commercial information to ensure that inside information remains
confidential until the disclosure of such information is approved, and its
dissemination effectively made.

The main features of the Group's risk management and internal controls
systems are illustrated below:
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The Group has established an organizational structure with defined levels
of responsibility and reporting procedures. Monthly management
accounts are available for review of the senior management and the Board
(in a concise format of a Monthly Report) for monitoring the Group's
financial and operating results. The management, supported by the
operation units and the internal audit team, are responsible for
formulating, implementing and monitoring sound risk management and
internal control systems, and reporting to the Board and the audit
committee on the result of risk assessment, as well as the assessment on
the effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems.

The internal audit provides an independent appraisal on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control systems.
The yearly internal audit plan is derived based on the assessed risk of the
Group's major operations and business and, taking into account also result
of internal audit activities conducted in the preceding period, are reported
to the audit committee for approval. In addition to its scheduled internal
audit works, the internal audit team may be requested to conduct other
review or investigative work. The results of internal audit reviews and agreed
management action plans in response to recommendations of the internal
audit are reported to the executive directors and audit committee
periodically. The internal audit also follows up with management regarding
the implementation of the agreed action plans to ensure that operation
procedures and internal controls are continuously enhanced.

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

EEeCRVEERFHRIZFPAMEMAEMER -
AERRAIHSHEEENEZTSEH (AAHRR
SREERNL)  MERARENMB R EERE -
mEEEMIARERERENEREREHIET -
B kEERENRREERABEZRS - W
ERgMERZEERSARFEARRREIER
NEREIE RSB MM AR

NEEZEHEE A EEREREE N AEE RGN
FRIZEERBMM 2B - FEANBERE
DERARETE2EBEREBNEFERR - XA
R E—HMETHARERER  NEREES
WG UG - BREFEIRMERITEIN - ABT
ZE B R 2T M ERRRE TE - WA
ERENERRARASEZEEN BT EIRITE
AEEMRNTEERERZE WS - NAER
BB E TR S REIRERE - ARREE
27 K NP EEARE 1S AR 1R T o



Corporate Governance Report (continued) S¥E48E (&)

In addition to the assessment and review of risk management and internal
controls undertaken internally, the half-yearly review and annual audit
conducted by our external auditors, aim to provide assurance that the
Group's financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, the Group's accounting policies and
applicable laws, rules and regulations, will also provide to certain extent
independent checks on the Group's internal controls system.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, management has conducted
regular reviews during the year on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems covering all material aspects
related to financial, operational and compliance controls, various functions
for risk management and security of physical assets and information
systems. The audit committee had been reported during the audit
committee meetings of key findings identified by internal auditors and
external auditors and discussed findings and actions or measures taken in
addressing those findings relating to the Group's risk management and
internal controls. No material issues on the risk management and internal
controls system have been identified during the year ended 31 December
2017 and no significant areas of concern which might require rectification
works or affect our stakeholders, including our shareholders. The Board
and its audit committee considered the risk management and internal
control system to be effective and adequate, including the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training and budget of its
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.

Commitment to Transparency

The Board emphasizes in creating and maintaining a high level of
transparency through timely disclosure of relevant information on the
Group's business and activities to the shareholders, investors, media and
investing public, through regular press releases, analysis's briefings, press
conferences, as well as timely updating of the Company’s website. Our
executive directors and management, who look after the business
operation, are committed to respond to enquiries from regulators,
shareholders and business partners.

Investors’ Relations and Communication with
Shareholders

The Company regards high quality reporting as an essential element in
building successful relationships with its shareholders. The Company
always seeks to provide relevant information to existing and potential
investors, not only to comply with the different regulatory requirements in
force but also to enhance transparency and communications with the
shareholders and the investing public. This is part of a continuous
communication program that encompasses meetings and relevant
announcements to the market in addition to periodic written reports in
the form of preliminary results announcement and the publication of
interim and annual reports. The annual general meeting of the Company
also provides an opportunity for communication between the Board and
the shareholders.
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In addition, the Company also maintains a corporate website on which
comprehensive information about the Group is made available on a timely
basis. Regular meetings are also held with institutional investors and
research analysts to provide them with timely updates on the Group's
latest business developments which are not inside information (as defined
under the Listing Rules) in nature. These activities will keep the public
informed of the Group's activities and foster effective communications.

The Group also participated in investment conferences and forums during
the year in order to enhance the awareness of the investing public of the
Group's business operations and development strategies.

The Company is committed to ensuring that it is fully complied with
disclosure obligations stipulated in the Listing Rules and other applicable
laws and regulations, and that all shareholders and potential investors
have an equal opportunity to receive and obtain externally available
information released by the Group.

Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to Article 58 of the articles of association of the Company, any
one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of
the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting the shareholder(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the shareholder(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the shareholder(s) by the Company.

The above written requisition shall be addressed to the Company’s head
office at 20th Floor, East Point Centre, 555 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong.

The procedures regarding proposing a person for election as a director
are set out under the “Corporate Governance” on the homepage of the
Company's website.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the Board in writing
through the company secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Company Secretary

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited
20th Floor, East Point Centre

555 Hennessy Road

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2838 2030
Email: info@lifestylehk.com.hk

Constitutional Documents

During the year, the Company has not made any changes to its
memorandum and articles of association.
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Profile of Directors

EE/ET

Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Kam Sen

Mr. Lau, aged 29, was appointed as an executive director in June 2017. He
is responsible for project management of the Group. Mr. Lau holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree from Columbia University in the City of New York
and a Master of Arts degree from New York University. He has previously
worked in investment banking with a global financial institution in Hong
Kong. Mr. Lau is a member of the Advisory Committee and the Board of
Trustees of China Institute in America. Mr. Lau is the son of Mr. Lau Luen
Hung, Thomas, the brother of Ms. Lau Kam Shim and the nephew of
Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy.

Ms. Lau Kam Shim

Ms. Lau, aged 30, was appointed as an executive director in March 2016.
She also acts as director of subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Lau joined
the Group in October 2012 and was responsible for international
boutiques and sales promotion division of the Group. She holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree from King's College London, University of London
and a Master of Arts degree from Columbia University in the City of New
York. Ms. Lau is the daughter of Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, the sister of
Mr. Lau Kam Sen and the niece of Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas

Chairman

Mr. Lau, aged 63, joined the Company in January 2004. He has been the
Chairman of the Company since 2015. Mr. Lau is also the chairman, chief
executive officer and an executive director of Lifestyle China Group
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange. He is a member of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference Shanghai Committee
and a member of the board of directors of the Shanghai Jiao Tong
University, the PRC. Mr. Lau is the father of Mr. Lau Kam Sen and Ms. Lau
Kam Shim, and the brother of Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy.

Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William (JP)

Mr. Doo, aged 73, joined the Company in March 2005. He is also the
vice-chairman and non-executive director of New World Development
Company Limited and an independent non-executive director of Shanghai
Industrial Urban Development Group Limited, both being companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Doo is the chairman and director of
Fung Seng Enterprises Holdings Limited. He is a Justice of the Peace
appointed by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. He is also a National Committee Member of the Twelfth Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference of the PRC, the Honorary
Consul General of the Kingdom of Morocco in Hong Kong and Macau,
and a Governor of the Canadian Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong.
Mr. Doo was awarded the Chevalier de la Légion d'Honneur by the
Republic of French in 2008.
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Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy

Ms. Lau, aged 64, joined the Company in March 2004. She is also a
non-executive director of Chinese Estates Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange. Ms. Lau holds a Bachelor of Science degree
and a Doctor of Dental Surgery degree from University of Toronto,
Canada. She is a retired dentist registered with the Royal College of
Dental Surgeons of Ontario, Canada. Ms. Lau is the sister of Mr. Lau Luen
Hung, Thomas, and the aunt of Mr. Lau Kam Sen and Ms. Lau Kam Shim.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon (ACA, FTIHK)

Mr. Lam, aged 68, joined the Company in March 2004. Mr. Lam graduated
from The University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Arts degree. After
graduation, he worked at KPMG Peat Marwick and obtained his
qualification as a chartered accountant from The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales in 1979 and certified public accountant
from the Hong Kong Society of Accountants (now known as the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants) in 1980. He is also a fellow
member of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Lam has been a
practicing accountant for over 25 years and is the proprietor of Messrs. S.L.
Lam & Company, a firm of certified public accountants. He has served as a
member of the Insider Dealing Tribunal on a number of occasions. He is
an independent non-executive director of Le Saunda Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange.

The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham (GBS, SBS, JP)

Mr. Shek, aged 72, joined the Company in March 2004. He has been a
member of the Legislative Council for the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region representing real estate and construction functional
constituency since 2000. Mr. Shek is a member of the Court of The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology and Court and Council
Member of The University of Hong Kong. Mr. Shek is a non-executive
director of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority and a
member of the Advisory Committee on Corruption of the Independent
Commission Against Corruption. Mr. Shek is an independent
non-executive director of MTR Corporation Limited, Paliburg Holdings
Limited, NWS Holdings Limited, Chuang’s Consortium International
Limited, Chuang’s China Investments Limited, ITC Properties Group
Limited, Country Garden Holdings Company Limited, Hop Hing Group
Holdings Limited, SUM Holdings Limited, China Resources Cement
Holdings Limited, Lai Fung Holdings Limited, Cosmopolitan International
Holdings Limited, Goldin Financial Holdings Limited and Everbright
Grand China Assets Limited, all being companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. He is also an independent non-executive director of Eagle
Asset Management (CP) Limited (the manager of Champion Real Estate
Investment Trust which is listed on the Stock Exchange) and Regal
Portfolio Management Limited (the manager of Regal Real Estate
Investment Trust which is listed on the Stock Exchange). Mr. Shek holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree and has extensive experience in the property
development field. Mr. Shek was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star and
Gold Bauhinia Star by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region in 2007 and 2013 respectively.
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Mr. Hui Chiu Chung (JP)

Mr. Hui, aged 70, joined the Company in July 2005. Mr. Hui is the
chairman and chief executive officer of Luk Fook Financial Services Limited
and has over 45 years of experience in the securities and investment
industry. He had for years been serving as a council member and vice
chairman of the Stock Exchange, a member of the advisory committee of
the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission, a director of the
Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited, a member of the listing
committee of the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, an
appointed member of the Securities and Futures Appeal Tribunal, a
member of Standing Committee on Company Law Reform, and an
appointed member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants Investigation Panel A. He was also a member of the
Committee on Real Estate Investment Trusts of the Hong Kong Securities
and Futures Commission and a member of Government “Appointees”
(independent member) of Appeal Panel of the Travel Industry Council of
Hong Kong. Mr. Hui was appointed by the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region a Justice of the Peace in 2004 and has
served as a member of the Zhuhai Municipal Committee of the Chinese
People's Political Consultative Conference from 2006 to 2017. He is a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors and senior fellow
member of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute. Mr. Hui
also serves as an independent non-executive director of Zhuhai Holdings
Investment Group Limited, Gemdale Properties and Investment
Corporation Limited, China South City Holdings Limited, SINOPEC
Engineering (Group) Co., Ltd., Agile Group Holdings Limited and FSE
Engineering Holdings Limited and a non-executive director of Luk Fook
Holdings (International) Limited, all being companies listed on the Stock
Exchange.
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Mr. Ip Yuk Keung

Mr. lp, aged 65, joined the Company in April 2014. He is an international
banking and real estate professional with over 30 years of experience in
the United States, Asia and Hong Kong. His expertise are in real estate
finance, corporate banking, risk management, wealth management and
transaction banking. Previously managing director and corporate bank
head of Citigroup and managing director of investments at Merrill Lynch
(Asia Pacific), Mr. lp currently serves as an executive director and the chief
executive officer of Langham Hospitality Investments (“LHI") and Langham
Hospitality Investments Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange) and LHIL
Manager Limited (the trustee-manager of LHI) and a non-executive
director of Eagle Asset Management (CP) Limited (the manager of
Champion Real Estate Investment Trust which is listed on the Stock
Exchange). He is also an independent non-executive director of Hopewell
Highway Infrastructure Limited, Hopewell Holdings Limited, Power Assets
Holdings Limited and TOM Group Limited, all being companies listed on
the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ip is an Adjunct Professor of City University of Hong Kong, The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology and Hang Seng Management College. He is also a Chairman
of the Advisory Board for the Master of Science in Finance and an
Honorary Professor at Lingnan University, a Member of the International
Advisory Board of College of Business at City University of Hong Kong, a
Council Member and a Member of the Business School Advisory Council
at The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology, a member of the
International Advisory Committee and Distinguished Adjunct Professor in
Practice at University of Macau, an executive fellow in Asia and a trustee
of the Board of Trustees at Washington University in St. Louis, and an
honorary fellow of Vocational Training Council. He is a vice chairman of
the World Green Organization and a member of the committee on
Certification for Principalship at the Education Bureau of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region.

Mr. Ip holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Applied Mathematics and
Computer Science at Washington University in St. Louis (summa cum
laude), a Master of Science degree in Applied Mathematics at Cornell
University and a Master of Science degree in Accounting and Finance at
Carnegie-Mellon University.
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Directors’ Report
ESTHRE

The board of directors ("Board”) of the Company present their annual
report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company and the principal
activities of its subsidiaries are the operation of department stores in
Hong Kong and other retailing format and property development and
property investment.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 38
to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on pages 79 to 80.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK cents
34.3 in cash per share to the shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 11 May 2018. Subject to the
approval of the shareholders at the annual general meeting, the final
dividend will be paid on 23 May 2018. Together with the interim dividend
of HK cents 28.9 per share, the total cash dividend for the year ended
31 December 2017 is HK cents 63.2 per share.

Business Review

A review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017, comprising the discussion of the future business development and
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, are set out in the
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 8 to 9 and pages 11 to 22 of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the “Financial Highlights” on pages
4 to 5. No important event affecting the Group has occurred since the end
of the financial year under review.

Discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and performance,
relationships with key stakeholders, and compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations are contained in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” on pages 23 to 44 of this annual report.

Shares
Details of movements during the year in the shares of the Company are
set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

Debentures
The Group has not issued any debentures during the year.

Equity-linked Agreements
Save for the share option scheme described below, the Group has not
entered into any equity-linked agreements during the year.
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Distributable Reserves
Details of distributable reserves of the Company are set out in note 39 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association although there are no restrictions against such
rights under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

Major Suppliers and Customers

The Group is principally involved in retail business which consists of direct
sales and sales under concessionaire arrangement. In the year, the five
largest suppliers of the Group in respect of our direct sales accounted for
approximately 50% of the Group's total purchase and the largest supplier
of the Group accounted for approximately 22% of the Group's total
purchase. The five largest customers of the Group accounted for less than
30% of the Group's turnover during the year.

None of the directors, their close associates or any shareholder so far as is
known to the directors having more than 5% of the number of issued
shares of the Company, within the knowledge of the directors, has any
interest in any of the Group's five largest suppliers during the year.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Donations

During the year, the Group (including discontinued operation) made
charitable and other donations amounting to HK$1.5 million (2016: HK$1.7
million).

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Lau Kam Sen (appointed on 1 June 2017)
Ms. Lau Kam Shim

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas (Chairman)
Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William

Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon

The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham

Mr. Hui Chiu Chung

Mr. Ip Yuk Keung

In accordance with Article 86(3) of the articles of association of the

Company, Mr. Lau Kam Sen shall hold office only until the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election.
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In accordance with Article 87 of the articles of association of the Company,
Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William, Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy and The Hon. Shek Lai
Him, Abraham will retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, all being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 December 2017, the directors’ and the chief executive's interests
and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")), as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange ("Listing Rules”) were as follows:

(i) Long position in shares of the Company

*ETJ%ZIS Al A ERMAIE 87 IRRE - HEIESL

S ﬁi&E@Eﬁ%EH—;BAF’Eﬁﬂxiﬂiﬁ
Atim@ EE MALEFHEERIBEEER
£

BERNEERRBFAGEEEEZERITAAN
SEEREOCEERERIN) AIRATR—F R
ZIRBEK -

ESERERTBRAERKN - HEKRE
RfEEE 2R
R-F—tF+-A=+—H SEERBHTH
ABRARD R SEAT A 2 8RB (RGBS R R
1) ([ 5% RIEED ) EXVEA R ESE) 2]
19 - RBARR 1D R (B4R 5 P A 1R 5B 4 & 1 )
HINFERTEBNABF 2 ERBARREES
BARSMARAR (THRA]) #% EmRAT L
mﬁmDWﬁ+%ﬁZ(Lm%ﬁA§$Lﬁ e BN

SEMZAESF R (RAEFR ) BRI AR R KRB AT
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(i) FRARARHGZEE

Number of Percentage of
Name of director Nature of interest shares held issued shares
BER®G HEBTRSG
- ERME #A ZEDHK
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas Beneficial owner 66,051,460 4.12%
BB IB A BEmEB A
Interest of controlled corporations (Note 1) 540,000,000 33.70%
ZiEtlEEER (1)
Interest of controlled corporations (Note 2) 222,350,332 13.87%
SEslEEER (M 2)
Notes: BiRE -
1. United Goal Resources Limited (“United Goal”) holds 540,000,000 1. United Goal Resources Limited ([ United

shares. United Goal is ultimately owned as to 80% by Mr. Lau Luen
Hung, Thomas through Asia Prime Assets Limited (“Asia Prime”) and
as to 20% by certain family members of Mr. Lau Luen Hung, elder
brother of Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Lau
Luen Hung, Thomas is deemed to be interested in the same parcel of
shares in which United Goal is interested.

2. Dynamic Castle Limited (“Dynamic Castle”), which is wholly-owned by
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, holds 222,350,332 shares. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas is deemed to be interested in the
same parcel of shares held by Dynamic Castle.

Goal])#% 540,000,000 B i (% ° United Goal
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(ii) Long position in debentures of LS Finance (2025) Limited
(being a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) — 4.50%
guaranteed bonds due 2025 (“2025 Guaranteed Bonds")

(i) LS Finance (2025) Limited (X2 TN EE
ME AR EREFNETAE — 4.50% 1 2025
FRHNERES ([2025EFE%])

Principal amount of

Name of director Nature of interest 2025 Guaranteed Bonds held

EERE e Pt 2025 IEREHF A S

Mr. Lau Kam Sen Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1) US$15,000,000

BISRESE RpEtEEERS (1) 15,000,000 27T

Ms. Lau Kam Shim Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) US$10,000,000

259/ N A ZEGEERER (EE 2) 10,000,000 7T

Notes: B sE

1. These debentures are held by Magic Achieve Limited ("Magic 1. W% % B # % B Magic Achieve Limited
Achieve”), which is wholly-owned by Mr. Lau Kam Sen. By virtue of ([Magic Achieve]) 155 + &N AlH 25 /=
the SFO, Mr. Lau Kam Sen is deemed to be interested in the same TEREHA - iﬁ%@éﬁ%&,ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ%% g
parcel of debentures in which Magic Achieve is interested. SRFEEWR A Magic Achieve FiH )

AR EEE R -
2. These debentures are held by Dynasty Sky Limited (“Dynasty Sky"), 2. % % & # F fDynasty Sky Limited

which is wholly-owned by Ms. Lau Kam Shim. By virtue of the SFO,
Ms. Lau Kam Shim is deemed to be interested in the same parcel of
debentures in which Dynasty Sky is interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the directors or
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO
or which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. Nor any of the directors and chief
executive had any interest in, or had been granted any right to subscribe
for the securities of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) or had exercised any such right during
the year under review.
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Interests of Shareholders Discloseable under
the SFO

As at

31 December 2017, the following persons (other than a director or

the chief executive of the Company) had an interest or short position in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO or notified to

REESRHERGIATHEZ

B R

R-B—tF+-B=+—8 TIAL(TRER
NAEFRRBITHAR) RFD A2 R AR
17 P 357 IR R 4 0 1) 56 336 AR LT 248
REFZBRMALATAAR 2 ERLA BB

the Company: N
Long position in shares of the Company ARRRBZHR
Number of Percentage of
Name Nature of interest shares held issued shares
BERSG HEBITRMDZ
18 EEME =] Aok
United Goal Beneficial owner (Notes 1 and 2) 540,000,000 33.70%
EmmaA (1 & 2)
Asia Prime Interest of controlled corporation (Notes 1 and 2) 540,000,000 33.70%
Sy EERER (31 & 2)
Dynamic Castle Beneficial owner (Note 2) 222,350,332 13.87%
EnEEA (MiFE2)
Qatar Investment Authority Interest of controlled corporations (Note 3) 371,122,958 23.16%
SEfEEER (M 3)
FMR LLC Investment manager 108,293,000 6.76%
REKE
Notes: Bisr

Save

Asia Prime, a company wholly-owned by Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas holds
80% of the entire issued share capital of United Goal. By virtue of the SFO,
Asia Prime is deemed to be interested in the same parcel of shares
comprising 540,000,000 shares in which United Goal is interested as beneficial
owner.

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, Mr. Lau Kam Sen and Ms. Lau Kam Shim are
directors of United Goal. Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas is also the sole director
of Asia Prime and Dynamic Castle.

Bellshill Investment Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Qatar Holding
LLC, which in turn is wholly-owned by Qatar Investment Authority. By virtue
of the SFO, Qatar Holding LLC and Qatar Investment Authority are deemed
to be interested in the same parcel of shares comprising 371,122,958 shares
held by Bellshill Investment Company as beneficial owner.

as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified by any

person (other than a director or the chief executive of the Company) who
had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2017 which were recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO or notified to the
Company.

1. Asia Prime A 2IE B L £ 2 EHA  HIFE United
Goal 23 B 1T 2 80% - RIEZESH R EEIEH] -
Asia Prime# & & M United Goal & #= # & K
540,000,000 A% & 7 # #E A AE A #E 2 o

2. RISt 815 REERESE/NE A United
Goal & % « 288 5t 4 7 /& Asia Prime J2 Dynamic
Castle zMe—E % -

3. Bellshill Investment Company /4 Qatar Holding LLC
# 2 &M E R E - & & B B Qatar Investment
Authority 2 B A  RIZFH KB E K0 - Qatar
Holding LLC K Qatar Investment Authority ¥ % 4% %
1 A Bellshill Investment Company A E 25 A A &
19 4% 8 B9 ARR 371,122,958 AR #E s
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Share Options

The share option scheme (2009 Share Option Scheme"”) was approved
by the shareholders of the Company on 3 March 2009 for a period of 10
years commencing from 3 March 2009 as incentive or rewards for the
contribution of the eligible participants to the growth of the Group and to
provide to the Group with a more flexible means to reward, remunerate,
compensate and/or provide benefits to the eligible participants. Under
the 2009 Share Option Scheme, the Company may grant options to any
employee, director, consultant or adviser, distributor, contractor, supplier,
service provider, agent, customer and business partner of the Company
and/or any subsidiary who, at the sole determination of the Board, have
contributed or will contribute to the Company and/or any subsidiary.

There is no general requirement on the minimum period for which an
option must be held or the performance targets which must be achieved
before an option can be exercised under the terms of the 2009 Share
Option Scheme. However, the Board may offer to grant any options
subject to such terms and conditions in relation to the minimum period of
the options to be held and/or the performance targets to be achieved
before such options can be exercised and/or any other terms as the Board
may determine in its absolute discretion.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options which may be granted under the 2009 Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 166,860,950 shares, representing 10% of the issued shares of the
Company as at 3 March 2009, the date on which the 2009 Share Option
Scheme was approved by the shareholders of the Company, which
represented approximately 10.41% of the issued shares of the Company
as at the date of this report.

Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders, the total number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to
each eligible participant (including both exercised and outstanding
options under the 2009 Share Option Scheme) in any 12-month period
must not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company.

Where options are proposed to be granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company or any of their
respective associates, and the proposed grant of options will result in the
total number of share issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted and to be granted (including options exercised, cancelled
and outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of such grant representing in aggregate over 0.1% of
the issued share capital of the Company on the date of offer and having
an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the shares at the date
of each grant, in excess of HK$5 million, such grant of options must be
subject to the approval of the shareholders taken on a poll at general
meeting. The connected person involved in such proposed grant to
options and all other connected persons of the Company must abstain
from voting in such general meeting (except that any connected person
may vote against the proposed grant provided that his intention to do so
has been stated in the relevant circular to the shareholders).

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

fBRE
ARFIBRRR -ZZNF= B = BitERGERE
AE(—Z2TNEBERES)D  a-2TNEF=
A=ZRERHM+F FRABRZEENAEER
RIFLERZSENHRE - YR AKETE LS
MAEERSRERMEE  RBY - WERTIEHE
B/ - RIE-TTNFERETS > ARFRES
EERRE  AIRTERETCHHMGHARF
&/ SEMHBRARELERZ AR TR,
MBARZEMES ZEF ZIREFEIER 2
HE - ORERE - HER  RBHEER K2 FF
REBREA -

B R ARE - 2T N F AR 8 2 175K
TEMBARARBEEZ REMRIAER KRR
AR WERZ—RIERE - A EFGRTAE
0] B A B B R) &R B BRI SK I I - HIRREBRARE
S A AT LATT {56 B 5 8 15 B BB A 2 B IR AR &%k
FEBCRAER R/LAEFGURHBBET
Z AT E AR o

FITERE ST NFRERET S R ARRMERE
b BB AR AT EIIR T 2 Fr A BB AR AE T A 31T 2 R 5 48
C BET S HBIE 166,860,950 I I 1D - HEE AR
AR -_ZEENFZA=BHEREEZ —_TTNF
BREAEEBARREHITRMI0%  BERAE
DAIRARE BE 2 BB ITR D 4910.41% ©

BERIR ZIMIEESN - SR ERBEEER12(E
HARTTEEEEERE (21 2T FBRERT
BETETEREARITEZBRE) Mo BT R
TZBMEE - TSBEBARREHTRAZ1% -

WREZEMBIER T BEATER 1218 8 AEZEA
PDEIEBRE - BYIFRTESKFESH2EW
HMBAKRTERE EZALATEMEEER
MASEZERE(BERTE SERAMRITEZR
REHE) T 2 31T BB 1T 2 RN B EA T BB AN A ]
ABHBHBEHETHRAZ01% MEBREGES

= F B B DU T E 5T &) H8 8 5,000,000 5% 7T ¢ Al
ZNEBER TAERERS FESRRIRREEE
ERAE S RZREBRTHERECEEAL
IARARBZBEEMBEATAE FBREAS
FREEZ (AT TWEEALHARERERT
& EEARRERASY R BE 2 RS A) o



Directors’ Report (continued) ZEE=&#{ % (#)

Option granted must be taken up within the time limit specified in the
offer letter (which shall not be later than 5 days from the date of offer),
upon payment of HK$1 on acceptance of the offer. Options may be
exercised at any time during a period to be notified by the Board to each
grantee which shall not be more than 10 years from the date of the offer.
The exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company, and
will be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of grant, (i) the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s share.

No options were granted or subsisted at any time during the year.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures
Other than the share option scheme of the Company, at no time during
the year was the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
and Contracts

Save as disclosed under the section “Continuing Connected Transactions”
below, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director
of the Company or any entities connected with the director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.

Specific Performance Covenant on Controlling
Shareholders

In July 2016, the Company as guarantor and through its wholly-owned
subsidiary as borrower entered into a HK$8 billion 5-year secured loan
facility agreement with a group of banks.

In April 2017, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as borrower,
entered into a facility agreement with a syndicate of financial institutions
for a term loan of up to HK$9 billion. The final maturity date of the facility
shall be the earlier of the date falling (i) 60 months from the utilisation
date of the facility; and (i) 6 months after issuance of a certificate of
compliance by the Director of Lands for the development of the New
Kowloon Land Lot No. 6557, Kai Tak Area 1E Site 2, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Under the aforesaid facility agreements, unless with the banks’ written
consent, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, his family members and/or his
family trust arrangements and Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Joseph's family
members and/or his family trust arrangements shall remain the major
shareholders of the Company with shareholding interest, directly or
indirectly, of not less than 50.1% and retain management control of the
Group.

BT 2BREANRBOREMEERR(TMRERE
ABEHEET S H) REM - MEMRBHRAENVE
T BRERANESS NG S AR AYRAKERTT
- R ZHHPREA T SEBI0F - TEEHAE
NAERET  BELATI=EPz2H&IE ()R
T HEBARBROUTE () EERT H A E
BEARDFHETE R (i) AR RBROEE -

FAEE PO fr] 55 P O 4 LH B PR M S A7 48

BERONEEZ 25

BRARAF 2 B RS BISN - REREMISHE - AR
- EERARRATANBEAARARKEA R
B AR BEARREEHRBAAT
S A EL %5 A B B 15 o 4 T 35

EERXRG REREHZER

BTIXSEEERS ] —BRAREIN  ARAE
EREEEAMENTANEREENARRRE(E
] B B8 R B P RT S AR AF E 5 45 B S RE B
MINAERZEARS - RHHENT  BEHXME
BB EAER

ERBRRABITZBEERRE

REZT—RFLA ARBUERERA) JEBE
2EMBAR (ERERA)B—RER80EET
SEMAEMRETRE B -

RZZ—+FMA  AARZ2ENBAR (EAE
RAN)EETERIEBIVASHETBB0EST
TFHERRE Z - ZREBENRKRIBAA A
HZMEREERIZBROMEA &) HBRAEE
EREFERBNERBEEIER2FE LN NE
MHLER 58 6557 S 2 A RFEMEBEARE M2 A
(AR EBLE) -

RELARERZ  RIERTEERE - BIEBL
£ EREKE R IRIRERL ARSI %
ENRERER IR ERRFUBERET AT
MEBRR - AHFAENRE(NREZREZ) D
K5 50.1% @ WHRARLI A LB A B IR BIME -

MEEREEERAIE —T—tFFR



Directors’ Report (continued) EEg {4 ()

Lapse of Non-Competition Undertaking

Following completion of the disposal the Group's interest in Lifestyle
Properties Development Limited (“Lifestyle Properties”) (now known as
Samsheng Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd.) on 13 April 2017 (“Disposal”), the
deed of non-competition dated 26 August 2013 made between the
Company and Lifestyle Properties (as varied and amended by a
supplemental deed dated 6 June 2016) has lapsed automatically and
ceased to have effect on the Company.

Details of the above are set out in the Company’s announcement dated
13 April 2017.

Continuing Connected Transaction

The following transaction of the Group constituted non-exempt
continuing connected transaction (“Continuing Connected Transaction”)
for the Company during the year ended 31 December 2017 under the
Listing Rules.

Hong Kong Restaurant Tenancy Agreement

The Group through its subsidiary, Congenial Company Limited, entered
into a tenancy agreement with Global Top Limited (“Global Top”) dated
10 June 2016 (“Hong Kong Restaurant Tenancy Agreement”) to lease a
portion of 22/F., East Point Centre, 555 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong (“HK Restaurant Property”) for restaurant operation purpose
for a term from 1 June 2016 to 31 December 2018 at a rent calculated at
17% of the monthly sales proceeds of Global Top generated at the HK
Restaurant Property (exclusive of government rent, rates and management
fee).

The Company is owned as to 33.70% by United Goal and United Goal is
one of the controlling shareholders of Lifestyle China. Mr. Lau Luen Hung,
Thomas, a non-executive director of the Company, ultimately owns 80%
interest in United Goal through Asia Prime. Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas
also either directly or through Dynamic Castle owns another 17.99%
interest in Lifestyle China. Hence, Lifestyle China and its subsidiaries
(including Global Top, “Lifestyle China Group”) are associates of United
Goal and, therefore, are connected persons of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

The transactions contemplated under the Hong Kong Restaurant Tenancy
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions of the Company
under the Listing Rules. In such respect, the Group received rental of
approximately HK$11.67 million for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Continuing Connected Transaction above has been reviewed by the
independent non-executive directors of the Company who have
confirmed that for the year ended 31 December 2017 the Continuing
Connected Transaction has been entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial terms or
better; and (iii) according to the agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company's
shareholders as a whole.

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group's continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Notice 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has
issued an unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in
respect of the Continuing Connected Transaction in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

Related Party Transactions

On 6 June 2016, Lifestyle Properties (a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company before 13 April 2017) entered into a services framework
agreement (“Newco Framework Agreement”) with Lifestyle China for the
purpose of provision of certain non-exclusive property project related
services as set out in the Newco Framework Agreement by Lifestyle
Properties to Lifestyle China Group for the period from 14 July 2016 to 31
December 2018.

During the period from 1 January 2017 to the date of completion of the
Disposal, a total of HK$3.2 million service fees was received from Lifestyle
China Group under the Newco Framework Agreement.

Details of the Newco Framework Agreement are set out in the
announcement of Lifestyle Properties dated 6 June 2016 and the circular
of Lifestyle Properties dated 8 June 2016.

To the extent the transaction disclosed in Continuing Connected
Transaction section above which is also related party transaction as
disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements, this related
party transaction constituted connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and
the Company has complied with the relevant requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules during the year. The remaining related party
transactions in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements constituted
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but are exempt from shareholders’
approval and disclosure and other requirements.
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Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses EERBERB RS

The following directors have interests in the following businesses which T3 ZFE 48 A% A RIE E TR A 81016 H5E
are considered to compete or are likely to compete, either directly or  BIZANEE B ZE 7% & 5 ok @B FE AN 58 T+ S AT s R A 3 5
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group as disclosed pursuant to Rule 7 225 ¢

8.10 of the Listing Rules:

Nature of
interest of
Description of the director in
Name of director Name of entity businesses the entity
ESRZERZ
EEnA BEREE EBEIT EEME
Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William New World Development Property development and Director
MHEEEE Company Limited investment and department 5%

Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy

x2St

it RERABR AT

Amelia Gold Limited
group of companies
Amelia Gold Limited j& N &=

Fortune Success Limited
group of companies

BEARARE T &R

Fung Seng Enterprises
Investment Company Limited
group of companies

SRR EERAFETEE

Fung Seng Enterprises Limited
group of companies

CRAELEERATETEE

Golden Wealth Investment Limited
group of companies

SHEREBRARETEE

Silver City International Limited
group of companies
Silver City International Limited

T EE

Sunshine Dragon Group Limited
group of companies

Sunshine Dragon Group Limited
T EE

Chinese Estates Holdings Limited
Chinese Estates Holdings Limited
(EAEXEE)

store operations

MEBRRLRERBEZE

Property investment

MERE

Property investment

MERE

Property investment

MERE

Property investment and
management

MERERER

Property investment and
development

MERELER

Property investment and food
and beverage operations

MERE R EREE

Property investment

MEKE

Property investment and
development

MERERER

Director and
shareholder

BEEPER

Director and
shareholder

BEERRER

Director and
shareholder

BEERRER

Director and
shareholder

BEERRER

Director and
shareholder

BEERIR

Director and
shareholder

BEERRER

Director and
shareholder

BEEPRE

Director

5=

As the Board of the Company is independent of the boards of the above- AAFTEFTE@NBUALEATNESS - AlE
mentioned companies and none of the above directors are in control of  FitEEA = AATEES - W AEEEGREHE
the Board of the Company, the Group is therefore capable of carrying on ST AR A EER T E T o

its businesses independently of, and at arm’s length, the businesses of

these companies.
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Changes in Information of Directors
Below are the changes in directors’ information required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Lau Kam Sen
—  appointed as a member of the Advisory Committee and Board of
Trustees of China Institute in America

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas
—  appointed as a member of the 13th Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference Shanghai Committee

—  his director’s fee was adjusted to HK$1,000,000 per annum with
effect from 1 January 2018

The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham

—  appointed on 16 January 2018 as an independent non-executive
director of Everbright Grand China Assets Limited, a company listed
on the Stock Exchange

—  resigned, with effect from 4:00 p.m. on 26 January 2018, as an
independent non-executive director of Midas International Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange

Mr. Ip Yuk Keung
—  appointed as a trustee of the Board of Trustees at Washington
University in St. Louis

—  appointed as an Adjunct Professor at The Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology

— ceased to be a research fellow of the Institute for Financial
Economics at Singapore Management University

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Company's articles of association, every director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto.
There is appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for
the directors and officers of the Group.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any listed securities of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2017.
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Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy of the Group is set on the basis of the
employees’ merit, qualifications and competence. The emoluments of the
directors of the Company are reviewed by the remuneration committee,
taking into consideration of the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics. The Company has
adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to directors and eligible
employees of the Group.

Employees

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed a total of 632 employees in
Hong Kong. Staff costs (excluding directors’ emoluments) amounted to
HK$224.8 million (2016: HK$216.6 million) for the year. The Group ensures
that the pay levels of its employees are competitive and in line with
market trend and its employees are rewarded on a performance related
basis within the general framework of the Group’s salary and bonus
system. Under the share option scheme of the Company, options may be
granted to the directors and employees of the Group to subscribe for the
shares of the Company.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s shares has
been held by the public as at the date of this report.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited by
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”). A resolution will be
submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to
reappoint Deloitte as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Lau Kam Shim
Executive Director

5 March 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZHETHRE

Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
LIFESTYLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lifestyle
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 79 to 166,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

REEEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, BB EFEELBRBERFNFEHYE - RAEYAHGE
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial B RENBN RAETEMNEE - ELEEEAERME
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed inthe  FTEBEAF KRR ML AEZ REETRIERN - HAT
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a & ELEBRHEBNER -

whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter
BRETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

M E AN ARETEIRETRE

Valuation of completed investment properties and the investment property under development

ETZHREYFREEREYFAIEE

We identified the valuation of completed investment properties

and the investment property under development as a key audit

matter due to the significant unobservable inputs and significant

judgement associated with determining their fair values.

MR ERIETE AT EEBNER T BRENEABURTIEARHE - B3
FIHE AR EMERERREYENGERBREZFE -

As set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements, the
fair values of the Group's completed investment properties as at
31 December 2017 of approximately HK$322,000,000 were
determined based on valuations performed by an independent
professional valuer by using the direct comparison method, based
on assumption of sales of each of the properties in its existing
state and comparable sales evidence of similar nature properties
available in the relevant market with key inputs of price per square
feet and level adjustment.

BREMBRRMFT 168 EEER_T—+F+_A=+—
HZ B RRIEE YN FEL A322,000,000E 7T « ZEBETHIREE L
HEMEMRAERELRE  BREVERERERETHER2E
HATSHRAEMUERYEFLEERS @ ETHENETE =8
2HREBFHRENNEBHEBAR -

The fair value of the Group’'s investment property under
development as at 31 December 2017 of approximately
HK$4,620,000,000 was determined based on a valuation
performed by an independent professional valuer by using
residual method based on the comparable sales transactions in
the relevant property market and the construction cost already
incurred as well as the estimated cost to be incurred to complete
the management’s development budgets, with key inputs of price
per square feet and estimated project development cost.

SRR _ZE—tF+ A=+ —RZEEBRREVELATFENS
4620 000,000 7T 2 BE RIS F A ERMRABREEETHE -
RIBHBEYETSHAILHEER S  HEEEHZERAL ZHENRE
FTARFEGT TR RRERNA - TE2H AT HREREERAEEY

BRERBKA -
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Our procedures to assess the valuation of the
completed investment properties and the investment
property under development included:

B E SRR EMERERBRE RN G ERRNRE
FreE -

o Obtaining an understanding of the valuation
process including the valuation methodology and
key inputs to the model with the involvement of
the independent qualified valuer
EBUABRGEMNZ2ET T REBERE - 21F G
EENZEXANEEZH

° Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent professional
external valuer;

MBI BN ERI N ERE - e N FIEEM

° Reviewing the valuation reports from independent
qualified valuer, and holding discussion with
management and independent qualified valuer to
understand the valuation methodology and key
inputs used; and
ﬁﬁﬁﬁi EREEMNEERS  WEEEENE

UABRMMERMNRIL T REGEREMEANES

é}%l R
o Checking, on a sample basis, the calculation of

the valuation and assessing the key inputs used
by checking to available market data; and
EMEER FREHERSNAERE  WHBREED
MSBEAFEAEANEE2H &

o Review management’s development budgets with
reference to the construction contracts and
available market data.
2EFZERANRRATSEE  UEHEREHZE

RIEE 2 -
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Key audit matter
HREER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN ETNAHBERET S HETRE

Accounting for disposal of the entire equity interests in Lifestyle Properties Group (as defined below)

HEFIE I EXBE R ST EE - 21T At

We identified the accounting for disposal of the entire equity
interests in Lifestyle Properties Development Limited ("Lifestyle
Properties”) and its subsidiaries (the “Lifestyle Properties Group”)
as a key audit matter due to the significance of the transaction to
the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

HPBEAE - HEMENEZRARAT ([FiEmE]) REMNBATF
(i [FEESE ] H2FRH 2 STRERABEREREE B
FZRZHBAFAMBRRABERVE -

As set out in notes 13(a) and 29(a) to the consolidated financial
statements, during the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
completed the disposal of the Lifestyle Properties Group.
MINGRA BB IRERITEE 13() & 290) FTdl  BE_FE—+F+_H
=T—BIEFE - BRER TR ERIEnESRE -

We focused on the accounting and disclosure in respect of
presenting the Lifestyle Properties Group as a discontinued
operation within the consolidated financial statements.
HMEINAERAMBRRAZRN B ERBAIFFECLEEBNE
TR RRERE R -

Our procedures in relation to assessing the accounting
for the disposed of entire equity interests in Lifestyle
Properties Group included:

B E AL SN ERE 2 RN ST RIBIRER
MR E4E

° Assessing management’s analysis in support of
whether the disposal meets the required criteria
to be accounted for as a discontinued operation;
FHEBIREN O - UXHEERATS ERMER
TERFEFHBIEEEBALR

° Checking the computation of the items included
within the discontinued operation disclosure
notes and determining whether they appropriately
represent the amounts of the Lifestyle Properties
Group up to the date of disposal; and
BEFFELLEBORENTPOEANANIAREN
FE UHTEEREEMARINEESEREL
ERYHEESE &

o Evaluating the appropriateness of the disclosure
of Lifestyle Properties Group as a discontinued
operation within the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in accordance with HKFRS 5
“Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operation”.
REBEEBMBMERERE S5 [FHIELENFERDE
FERERHER S ER ] - SRR ESEEY BHEE
RAMBMRAERIFFELLEBNREENNE
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those

Charged with Governance for the

Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued) %7 % BET3R & ()

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued) B % BT R & ()

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Lau King Pak.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
5 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

ek EMEEWER

for the year ended 31 December 2017 HiZ - —tF+ - A=1+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—tF TETREF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
k3 FTER FET
(Restated)
(E31))
Continuing operation FEREET
Turnover S| 5 4,898,605 4,671,971
Cost of sales FHE KA (2,112,296) (2,029,047)
Gross profit E=7 2,786,309 2,642,924
Other income, gains and losses EMUA - Was N EstE 7 54,456 98,500
Selling and distribution costs SHE R DA (648,542) (565,821)
Administrative expenses THAX (131,058) (133,936)
Interest and investment income FI B R E A 8 735,063 367,958
Fair value changes on investment properties KEMEATFEEZD 16 844,200 -
Finance costs L= VDN 9 (228,954) (471,022)
Profit before taxation B B B 48 ) 3,411,474 1,938,603
Taxation IiE 10 (536,834) (337,696)
Profit for the year from continuing operation REFERAFBELEEE
vl 11 2,874,640 1,600,907
Discontinued operation FFEREEK
Profit for the year from discontinued operation REE IR A FFIFBCEET
iyl 13 426,710 94,990
Profit for the year AN 55 | 3,301,350 1,695,897
Other comprehensive income (expense) Htt2mEKWA (XH)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to BE1ER]BEEFT D A2 B as
profit or loss: ZIEH -
Exchange differences arising on translation MEGINETE T E A
of foreign operation ZIEN E58 16,177 (170,580)
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal DIRFINE TSI E 5 G5 &
of foreign subsidiaries 2 (102,178) 132,667
Share of other comprehensive expense FE{G B AR 2 B
of associates FEEZH - (32,638)
Share of other comprehensive expense FE(—TEAEE S HA
of a joint venture ZHEX N - (3,638)
(86,001) (74,189)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: T &E# D HEEm 2 HE -
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment W - BENKEEERE
upon transfer to investment properties KEYFER R ER
— surplus on revaluation — BHEAES - 283,703
— deferred tax — EEFRIE 26 - (46,661)
- 237,042
Other comprehensive (expense) income for REFEHMZ2E (ZH) WA
the year (net of tax) (FOBRFiE) (86,001) 162,853
Total comprehensive income for the year AREE2EPAREE 3,215,349 1,858,750
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (continued) #& Bz R H 2K * (H)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —T-REF
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
k3 FHET FET
(Restated)
(E51)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to owners of ~ RFEE AN T E AFE(G
the Company: A (EE)
— from continuing operation — REFEREET 2,874,640 1,600,907
— from discontinued operation — KRB I EREET 424,848 (10,477)
3,299,488 1,590,430
Profit for the year attributable to REE IR R AR m T -
non-controlling interests:
— from continuing operation — REFEREED - -
— from discontinued operation — R I E R LTS 1,862 105,467
1,862 105,467
Profit for the year AN 5 3,301,350 1,695,897
Total comprehensive income attributable to: EIE 2R ALRRE
Owners of the Company N/NCIE =N 3,206,945 1,798,656
Non-controlling interests IEVERR i R 8,404 60,094
3,215,349 1,858,750
Earnings per share TRz & 15
From continuing and discontinued operation REFFERIEFECEETS
— Basic — EARK HK$2.06 HK$0.99
From continuing operation REFELEETS
— Basic — EK HK$1.79 HK$1.00
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R R R

at 31 December 2017 R =ZE—+F+=-F=+—H

2017 2016
—Z—+tF —ZE—RF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
s Fi#n FHT
Non-current assets IEMBNE B
Investment properties b E 16 4,942,000 4,628,884
Property, plant and equipment VE - B KR 17 5,689,962 5,649,186
Prepaid lease payments TENHEERIA 18 - 548,191
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, BEYE  BWEMRE
plant and equipment 2% 29,899 66,230
Club debentures DHTES 19,137 19,137
10,680,998 10,911,628
Current assets MBNEE
Inventories FE 19 37,571 34,533
Prepaid lease payments TN ERIAE 18 - 16,123
Trade and other receivables J7E AT BR R N At W 5RO 20 174,887 194,307
Financial assets at fair value through BATERFAEB®mZ
profit or loss EREE 21 3,349,047 2,440,605
Bank balances and cash RITHEFENIRE 22 7,389,274 7,520,140
10,950,779 10,205,708
Current liabilities mERIE
Trade and other payables JE AT R R B L A FE A< SR IR 23 1,293,288 1,243,211
Tax payable FESARIE 199,343 308,930
Bank borrowings — due within one year RITEE — —FREIH 24 2,601,552 3,427,208
Bonds — due within one year &HF — —FNIE 25 - 3,879,914
4,094,183 8,859,263
Net current assets MEVEEFE 6,856,596 1,346,445
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRSEE 17,537,594 12,258,073
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank borrowings — due after one year RITEE — —F22H 24 8,582,586 4,949,040
Bonds — due after one year &5 — —F1EIH 25 4,637,641 4,601,335
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIE &S 26 272,883 259,782
13,493,110 9,810,157
4,044,484 2,447,916
Capital and reserves BEAR R
Share capital A&7 27 8,013 8,013
Reserves it 4,036,471 1,842,361
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RAEHER AEEER 4,044,484 1,850,374
Non-controlling interests FEPERRE R - 597,542
4,044,484 2,447,916

The consolidated financial statements on pages 79 to 166 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 5 March 2018 and

are signed on its behalf by:

ETOE 16 ERAMBHRREEZTER T /\F=A
FAHERFRETE ThH T EERRES

Ms. Lau Kam Shim /< i/ B
Executive Director $17T%& 5

Mr. Lau Kam Sen 25 B%4
Executive Director $11TE 5
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FREERBER

for the year ended 31 December 2017 HE =T —tF+-A=+—HILEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FARAREAEEED
Statutory Capital Asset Non-
Share surplus  redemption  revaluation  Translation Retained controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
EERH EARE EEEf FER
e Yk R i BERE REEA @t 3 &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR ThL T TiEn TR T Tk &R ThT
(Note 28)
(W3 28)
At 1 January 2016 RZE-~"5-f-B 8,013 80,693 687 3,680 121,359 10,908,627 11,123,059 1973072 13,096,131
Prolfit for the year REEEF - - - - - 1,590,430 1,590,430 105,467 1,695,897
Other comprehensive income (expenses)  EA2ENA (%) - - - 237,042 (28,816) - 208,226 45,373) 162,853
Total comprehensive income (expense) REERERA (L) &%
for the year - - - 237,042 (28,816) 1,590,430 1,798,656 60,094 1,858,750
Dividends paid (Note 14) BIRARE (3 14) - - - - - (1012835 (1,012839) - (1012839
Special interim dividend by way of NEDHASK-ANELERN
distribution in specie of shares of ZERARERE (14 R 290)
a subsidiary (Notes 14 & 29(b)) - - - - - (10,058,508)  (10,058,50¢) - (10,058,506)
Transfer upon distribution in specie of DS-t) B il PN )
shares of a subsiciary B - (80468) - - - 80,468 CABed) (143562
At 31 December 2016 R-F-RET-A=+-H 8013 2 687 140,722 92503 1508184 1850374 597542 2847916
Profit for the year REEET - - - - - 3,299,488 3,299,488 1,862 3,301,350
Other comprehensive (expense)income  E 2 () A - - - - (92,543) - (92,543) 6,542 (86,001)
Total comprehensive (expense) income FER2E (L) WAL
for the year - - - - (92,543) 3,299,488 3,206,945 8,404 3,215,349
Dividends paid (Note 14) BIRARS (1) - - - - - (1,0128%) (1012839 - (1,012,8%)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 29(a)) HERBLRE (FE9E) - - - - - - - (605,946) (605,946)
Transfer upon disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARRER - (229) - - - 25 - - -
At 31 December 2017 RZF—tF+-A=1-H 8,013 - 687 240,722 - 3,795,062 4,044,484 - 4,044,484
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

for the year ended 31 December 2017 HiZ - —tF+ - A=1+—HILFE

2017 2016
—EB—tF | —TRF
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
i FB5 Fiax
OPERATING ACTIVITIES AR
Profit before taxation BR A AL A A
— from continuing operation — REFECEEE 3,411,474 1,938,603
— from discontinued operation — RE I B L X 426,710 298,357
Adjustments for: YRR AT R - 3,838,184 2,236,960
Interest income on bank deposits RITHERZFEWA (67,703) (88,182)
Other interest income E M F 2 A - (1,534)
Finance costs RE AR 228,954 401,807
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BEMERETE 162,133 211,410
Release of prepaid lease payments TENHEERIEE D 4,642 18,617
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB ARz = 29 (420,843) -
Dividend income from financial assets BATERABEZ
at fair value through profit or loss SRBEZRBHBA (50,077) (58,271)
Interest income from financial assets BRAFEFABRZZ
at fair value through profit or loss BRVEE 2T EWA (1,012) (76,842)
Loss on disposal/written off of property, HEMORIEE - WE R
plant and equipment E518 2,177 11,087
Fair value changes in respect of financial BAFERABR
assets at fair value through profit or loss EMEEZ N TFEEZSH (624,617) (68,115)
Changes in fair value of investment properties SEMEZ NERE) (844,200) 900
Unrealised exchange loss REIR 7 [ e 42,797 -
Share of profit of a joint venture EE—RAaBERERN - (19,372)
Share of profits of associates FEAG S & A B A - (192,366)
Reversal of write-down of obsolete inventories S TE MR B D (1) (65)
Reversal of provision on trade and other JRE M52 B S5 e ELAth R WS R TE
receivables BERBm (17) (1,000)
Operating cash flows before movements LEEFPILERS
in working capital mE 2,270,417 2,375,034
(Increase) decrease in inventories T8 (3gm) (3,037) 6,407
Increase in properties under development R AYEEIE N - (23,8806)
Increase in trade and other receivables J LS BR 3k B L Ath PR U FRIEE N (43,935) (14,123)
Decrease in amount due to a joint venture BN —EeErERERL - (20,652)
Increase (decrease) in trade and other JEASH BR 0 B LA i < R IEHE N
payables CRA) 129,201 (38,706)
Cash generated from operations IR IR SIR & 2,352,646 2,284,074
Interest received B UFLE 59,738 88,979
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BTG (329,163) (327,282)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid B BIRERTEH - (77,018)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded EBNETRN - 15
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ARSI EIFH 2,083,221 1,968,768
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued) 4R &R B X (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZERE
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
fi 2 FAL L
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RERE
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HERATEFABE
at fair value through profit or loss ZERMEBEEGER 1,186,264 4,523,752
Interest received from financial assets BAFERABR
at fair value through profit or loss SREEZBWHE 6,503 76,842
Dividend received from financial assets WA ERFAEBEZ
at fair value through profit or loss SREEZBEWRE 50,077 58,271
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEME - WEKEE
plant and equipment FiEsk - 214
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  BEREE (239,579) (4,138,6006)
Additions to investment properties BEREYE (22,350) (3,696,468)
Net cash outflows from disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBAR 2 FRe R 29 (b) - (2,062,996)
Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR ZFHRERA 29 (a) 872,496 -
Purchase of financial assets at BEZATEFABR
fair value through profit or loss ERMEE (1,509,885) (1,837,690)
Investment expenses paid for derivative ERTTAESRTIAZ
financial Instruments BEX W - (5,448)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) REEEHE (FTA)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREFE 343,526 (7,081,429)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEH
New bank borrowings raised HERITER 5,859,340 8,262,161
Redemption of bonds B EIES (3,879,932) -
Repayment of bank borrowings BERBITER (3,031,565) (2,702,482)
Dividends paid BIRFHLE (1,012,835) (1,012,835)
Finance costs paid EARE A (433,787) (485,654)
Upfront arrangement fee incurred in BT R IRTTE SRR
connection with new bank borrowings TERTE A (67,620) (72,898)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING BEEE) (FTA) FIig
ACTIVITIES ReFHE (2,566,399) 3,988,292
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND ReRFEEEHEED
CASH EQUIVALENTS EhFER (139,652) (1,124,369)
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE ERER
RATE DIFFERENCE e 8,786 (25117)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EHEEERE
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR ZEY 7,520,140 8,669,626
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FrBe ke
AT END OF THE YEAR ZEY 7,389,274 7,520,140
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R4 RIREZEE/Y 2 i
Bank balances and cash RITHEEFERERS 7,389,274 7,520,140
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R AR M EE

for the year ended 31 December 2017 HiZ - —tF+ - A=1+—HILFE

1.

General

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law in the Cayman Islands and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”).

The Company'’s ultimate controlling party is Mr. Thomas Lau,
who is the Chairman and a non-executive director of the
Company.

In 2016, the Group underwent a group reorganisation for the
spin-off ("Spin-off”) and separate listing the shares of Lifestyle
China Group Limited ("Lifestyle China”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “Lifestyle China Group”) on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Pursuant to a resolution of the
board of directors of the Company on 28 June 2016, the
Company declared a special interim dividend, satisfied by
distribution in specie of the entire issued share capital of
Lifestyle China to the Company’s shareholders (the
"Distribution”). The Distribution was made by way of allocating
one share of Lifestyle China for every one share of the Company
held by the Company’s shareholders. The distribution in specie
by the Company was recognised at the carrying amount of the
net assets of Lifestyle China Group attributable to the owners of
the Company as the directors of the Company considered that
Lifestyle China was ultimately under the control of the same
parties before and after the Distribution. The Spin-off was
completed on 14 July 2016 when shares of Lifestyle China were
issued to the Company’s shareholders and Lifestyle China
ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company. Following the Spin-
off, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) is principally engaged in the operation of
department stores in Hong Kong, property development and
property investment in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of
China ("PRC"). Lifestyle China Group is principally engaged in
the operation of department stores and the supermarket
business in the PRC and the restaurant business. The profit from
Lifestyle China Group for the period from 1 January 2016 to 14
July 2016 was presented as a discontinued operation in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B33k =M= (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

General (continued)

As disclosed in note 13, the Group completed during the year
the disposal of its entire 59.56% equity interests in Lifestyle
Properties Development Limited, now known as Sansheng
Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd (“Lifestyle Properties”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively “Lifestyle Properties Group”) held by
the Group. Accordingly, results of the Lifestyle Properties Group
before the disposal has been presented as a discontinued
operation in the Group's consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2017 and the comparative figures in the preceding
year have been restated. Following the disposal, the Group is
principally engaged in the operation of department stores, and
property development and investment in Hong Kong.

Details of the discontinued operations are set out in note 13.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“"HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")
Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for

the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses

As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to
HKFRS 12

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group's financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %8 Bl #5353 (48)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")
(continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current year (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 "Disclosure Initiative”

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in
the current year. The amendments require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate

changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the amendments
also require disclosures on changes in financial assets if cash
flows from those financial assets were, or future cash flows will
be, included in cash flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be
disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows; (ii) changes
arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other
businesses; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates;
(iv) changes in fair values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
these items is provided in note 34. Consistent with the transition
provisions of the amendments, the Group has not disclosed
comparative information for the prior year. Apart from the
additional disclosure in note 34, the application of these
amendments has had no impact on the Group's consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B#5R &M ()
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")

(continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40
Amendments to HKFRSs

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments?

Leases®

Insurance contracts®

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration?

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments®

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions?

Applying HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” with HKFRS 4
“Insurance contracts”?

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?®

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*

Long-term interests in associates and
joint ventures®

As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle?

Transfers of Investment Property?
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle?

! The Group has early applied HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009
and revised in October 2010 regarding classification and
measurement of financial assets and disclosure requirements. The
Group has not yet early applied a revised version of HKFRS 9
issued in September 2014 which deals with classification and
measurement, general hedge accounting and impairment which
is mandatorily effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018, with earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #3487 3R KK =E (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")
(continued)
New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

(continued)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs and
Interpretations mentioned below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of all other new and amendments
to HKFRSs and Interpretations will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 was amended in 2013 to include the new requirements
for general hedge accounting. A revised version of HKFRS 9 was
issued in 2014 mainly to include a) impairment requirements for
financial assets and b) limited amendments to the classification
and measurement requirements by introducing a “fair value
through other comprehensive income” ("FVTOCI")

measurement category for certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group

are described below:

o Certain financial assets held within a business model
whose objective is achieved both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets should be measured
at FVTOCI (unless designated at fair value through profit
and loss ("FVTPL") to eliminate or significantly reduce a
measurement mismatch). This applies to assets passing
the contractual cash flow characteristics assessment (which
is the same test used to determine whether financial
assets are measured at amortised cost). Interest revenue,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment gains
and losses shall be recognised in profit or loss with all
other gains or losses (i.e. the difference between those
items and the total change in fair value) being recognised
in other comprehensive income. Any cumulative gain or
loss recorded in other comprehensive income would be
reclassified to profit and loss on derecognition, or
potentially earlier if the asset is reclassified because of a
change in business model. Interest income and
impairment gains and losses would be recognised and
measured in the same manner as for assets measured at
amortised cost such that the amounts in other
comprehensive income represents the difference between
the amortised cost value and fair value. These results in
the same information in profit or loss as if the asset was
measured at amortised cost, yet the consolidated
statement of financial position would reflect the

instrument’s fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B33k =M= (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")
(continued)
New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

(continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (continued)

° In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for
expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no
longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred

before credit losses are recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 December 2017, application of
the revised version of HKFRS 9 issued in September 2014 in the
future may have an impact on the impairment of the Group's
financial assets. The directors of the Company anticipate the

following potential impact on initial application of HKFRS 9:

Impairment

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will
result in earlier provision of credit losses which are not yet
incurred in relation to the Group's financial assets measured at
amortised costs that are subject to the impairment provisions

upon application of HKFRS 9 by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company, if the
expected credit loss model were to be applied by the Group,
the accumulated amount of impairment loss to be recognised
by Group as at 1 January 2018 would be slightly increased as
compared to the accumulated amount recognised under HKAS
39 mainly attributable to expected credit losses provision on
trade receivables. Such further impairment recognised under
the expected credit loss model would reduce the opening
retained profits and increase the deferred tax assets at 1 January

2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #3487 3R KK =E (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")
(continued)
New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

(continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”

HKFRS 15 has been issued and it establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 "Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and

the related interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach

to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a

performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by

HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in relation
to the identification of performance obligations, principal versus
agent considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.

The Group has a customer loyalty scheme that rewards a
customer with reward credit. The expected impacts arising from
the adoption of HKFRS 15 on the Group is the Group should
account for reward credit of the customer loyalty scheme as a
separate performance obligation of the sales transaction in
which they are granted. The Group estimates the fair value of
the reward credit, allocate the transaction price to the sales by
reference to the goods expected to be provided. The Group
has assessed on this expected impact and anticipate that the
standard will not have material impact, when applied, on the

consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B33k =M= (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")
(continued)
New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

(continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”
(continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures, however,
the directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the
timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the respective

reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 "“Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17
“Leases” and the related interpretations when it becomes

effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis
of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer.
Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised
for all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases

of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability is
initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease
payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold land
for owned use and those classified as investment properties
while other operating lease payments are presented as
operating cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease
payments in relation to lease liabilities will be allocated into a
principal and an interest portion which will be presented as

financing cash flows by the Group.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised prepaid
lease payments for leasehold land where the Group is a lessee.
The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in
classification of these assets depending on whether the Group
presents right-of-use assets separately or within the same line
item at which the corresponding underlying assets would be

presented if they were owned.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #3487 3R KK =E (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")
(continued)
New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

(continued)
HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an

operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$435,021,000 as disclosed in
note 30. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases

unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of HK$24,911,000 and refundable rental deposits
received of HK$16,632,000 as rights and obligations under
leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of
lease payments under HKFRS 16, these deposits are not
payments relating to the right to use the underlying assets.
Accordingly, the carrying amounts of these deposits may be
adjusted to amortised cost and the adjustments are considered
as additional lease payments. Adjustments to refundable rental
deposits paid would be included in the carrying amount of right-
of-use assets. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits

received would be considered as advance lease payments.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as

indicated above.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance ("CQO").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies

below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B#5R &M ()
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 "Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participants ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which are
transferred at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so
that the results of the valuation technique equals the transaction
price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #3487 3R KK =E (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2017 = —%
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B33k =M= (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.

Distribution of non-cash assets to owners

Upon loss of control of a subsidiary through distribution of
shares in the subsidiary to the shareholders of the Company
where the subsidiary is ultimately controlled by the same parties
both before and after the distribution, the Group (a)
derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary at their
carrying amounts at the date when control is lost; and (b)
measures the distribution and the liability to distribute non-cash
assets as a dividend to its owners at the carrying amount of the
net assets to be distributed.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %8 Bl #5353 (48)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)
The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associates and joint ventures used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using uniform accounting
policies as those of the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment
in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the associate or joint
venture. Changes in net assets of the associate/joint venture
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
not accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
the ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group's
share of losses of an associate or joint venture exceed the
Group's interest in that associate or joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group's net investment in the associate or joint venture), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group's investment in an associate or a joint venture. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B33k =M= (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)
When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate or joint
venture on the same basis as would be required if that associate
or joint venture had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate or joint venture
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss
from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate or joint
venture.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised in
the Group's consolidated financial statements only to the extent
of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related
to the Group.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries presented in the statement of
financial position of the Company included in note 39 are stated
at cost less any identified impairment loss.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group's activities, as described below.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered and title have passed.

Income from concessionaire sales is recognised upon sales of
goods by the relevant shops based on certain percentage of
turnover in accordance with the terms of contracts. When the
concessionaires fail to meet the minimum guarantee income in
accordance with the terms of contracts, the relevant shops are
required to pay the minimum guarantee amount and hence the
minimum guarantee amount is recognised as income at that
time.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %8 Bl #5353 (48)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Sales of goods that result in award credits for customers, under
the Group's customer loyalty scheme, are accounted for as
multiple element revenue transactions and the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable is allocated between the
goods supplied and the award credits granted. The
consideration allocated to the award credits is measured by
reference to the fair value of the awards for which they could be
redeemed. This consideration is not recognised as revenue at
the time of the initial sale transaction but is deferred and
recognised as revenue when the award credits are redeemed
and the Group's obligations have been fulfilled.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Dividend income from investment is recognised when the rights
to receive payment have been established.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group's accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy for
leasing below.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land and
buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes (other than construction
in progress) are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group's accounting policy. Amortisation of
prepaid lease payments provided during the construction
period is included as part of costs of properties under
construction. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B33k =M= (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
(other than construction in progress) less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as evidenced
by end of owner-occupation, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of that item (including the
relevant prepaid lease payments) at the date of transfer is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
asset revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement
of the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred
directly to retained profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation (including properties under construction
for such purposes).

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of
the investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or
loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %8 Bl #5353 (48)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Club debentures

Club debentures are measured at cost less any impairment
losses.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset. Other than investment properties measured under fair
value model, such costs are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land
under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals arising
under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payment for a property interest which
includes both leasehold land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element separately based on
the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been
transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire property is
accounted as an operating lease. Specifically, the entire
consideration (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are
allocated between the leasehold and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in
the land element and building element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as
an operating lease is presented as "prepaid lease payments” in
the consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis except for those that
are classified and accounted for as investment properties under
the fair value model. When the payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the leasehold land and building elements, the
entire property is generally classified as if the leasehold land is
under finance lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B#5R &M ()
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising on a monetary item that
forms part of the Company’s net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case, such exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity and will be reclassified from equity to profit or loss on
disposal of the Group's interest in associates/joint ventures.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss
for the period except for exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income, in which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of exchange reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of
the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %8 Bl #5353 (48)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B#5R &M ()
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxes for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an asset individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %8 Bl #5353 (48)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment losses on tangible assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of
the assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The
amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of
the unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost less impairment loss
(except for debt investments that are designated as at FVTPL on
initial recognition):

o the asset is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on

specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in
the "interest and investment income” line item.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Investments in equity instruments are classified as FVTPL, unless
the Group designates an investment that is not held for trading
as at FVTOCI on initial recognition. The Group has not
designated investments in unlisted equity securities as at
FVTOCI.

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria
(see above) are measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt
instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria but are
designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL. A debt
instrument may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains
and losses on them on different bases.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

Debt instruments are reclassified from amortised cost to FVTPL
when the business model is changed such that the amortised
cost criteria are no longer met. Reclassification of debt
instruments that are designated as FVTPL on initial recognition
is not allowed.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss is included in the “interest and
investment income” line item in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on these financial assets.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, objective evidence
of impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or
° breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group's past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in
the portfolio past the average credit period of 30 days, as well
as observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly with the exception of trade receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts

previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not

been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the

definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or

cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including bank borrowings, bonds and trade
and other payables are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit
or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

Investment income earned on the

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another
HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the
cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such
as wages and salaries and annual leave) after deducting any
amount already paid.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the directors of the Company have reviewed the Group's
investment property portfolio and concluded that for the
deferred taxation relating to investment properties in Kai Tak
and Hong Kong Island, the presumption that the value of these
properties is capable of being recovered entirely through sale,
is rebutted because the business model applicable to them is to
consume substantially all the economic benefits embodied in
them over time rather than through sale. Accordingly, deferred
tax relating to investment properties in Kai Tak and Hong Kong
Island is determined on the basis of recovery through use. The
Group recognised deferred tax liabilities of HK$185,744,000
(2016: HK$46,661,000) on changes in fair value of the investment
properties situated in Hong Kong.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %8 Bl #5353 (48)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties (continued)

The Group did not recognise deferred tax liabilities (2016:
HK$147,461,000) on changes in fair value of the investment
properties situated in the PRC as those properties were subject
to land appreciation taxes ("LAT") and enterprise income taxes
upon disposal as appropriate. The deferred tax liabilities in
respect of land appreciation taxes in the PRC were determined
based on valuations of the investment properties performed by
independent professional valuers and on the assumption that
the values were the actual proceeds to be received from the
sale of these properties. No deferred tax has been recognised
on changes in fair value of investment properties situated in
Kowloon as it is not expected to have tax consequence upon
disposal of these properties.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group has a portfolio of investments in which the directors
of the Company confirm that the business model of holding
these investments is not just to collect the contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding. Accordingly, they are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in accordance
with HKFRS @ issued in November 2009 and revised in October
2010. At 31 December 2017, the Group's financial assets are
measured at fair value through profit or loss which are
approximately HK$3,349,047,000 (2016: HK$2,440,605,000).

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Valuation of completed investment properties and the
investment property under development

As described in note 16, the fair value of the Group’s completed
investment properties amounting to HK$322,000,000 at 31
December 2017 (2016: HK$932,416,000) has been arrived at
based on a valuation carried out at that date by Cushman &
Wakefield Limited (formerly known as DTZ Cushman &
Wakefield Limited) ("C&W"), an independent professional
valuer. The fair value is arrived at based on direct comparison
method assuming sales of each of the properties in its existing
state and by making reference to comparable sales evidence of
similar nature properties available in the relevant market and
adjusted by level adjustment. By relying on the valuation reports
of the independent professional valuers, the management has
exercised its judgment and is satisfied that the method of
valuation is reflective of the market conditions prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Any changes in the market
conditions will affect the fair value of the investment properties
of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B33k =M= (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Investment properties

The fair value of the Group's investment property under
development amounting to HK$4,620,000,000 at 31 December
2017 was arrived at based on a valuation using residual method
carried out on that date by C&W and was determined based on
recent comparable sales transactions in the relevant property
market (on the assumption that the property had already been
completed at the valuation date). It also takes into account the
construction cost already incurred as well as the estimated cost
to be incurred to complete the project plus the developer's
estimated profit and margin for risk.

The fair value of the Group's investment property under
development amounting to HK$3,696,468,000 at 31 December
2016 was determined by the directors of the Company with
reference to the transaction price of the investment properties
concerned, where the transaction was completed near to the
year end of 2016.

The basis of valuation is disclosed in note 16. Changes to these
assumptions and inputs would result in changes in the fair value
of the Group's investment properties and corresponding
adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported in the profit
or loss.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group's assets are measured at fair value for
financial reporting purposes. The board of directors of the
Company has a designated team to determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the Group's investment properties,
the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation of
the Group's investment properties. At the end of each reporting
period, the designated team works closely with the qualified
external valuers to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation techniques, verifies all major inputs to the
independent valuation and assesses property valuation
movements when compared to the prior year valuation for Level
2 and Level 3 fair value measurements. The Group will first
consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be derived
from observable quoted prices in the active market. When Level
2 inputs are not available, the Group will adopt valuation
techniques that include Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material
change in the fair value of the assets, the causes of the
fluctuations will be reported to the board of directors of the
Company. Information about the valuation techniques and
inputs used in determining the fair value of the Group's
investment properties are disclosed in note 16.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %8 Bl #5353 (48)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(continued)

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s financial assets at
FVTPL, the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it
is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the
management of the Group will assess the valuation of financial
instruments based on quoted bid prices of the previous trading
day in the over-the-counter markets or quoted market prices
provided by brokers at the end of each reporting period.

Note 33 provides detailed information about the valuation
techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in the
determination of the fair value of the Group's financial assets at
FVTPL.

Turnover

Turnover represents the amount received and receivable for
goods sold by the Group to outside customers (net of
discounts), income from concessionaire sales, service income
and rental income during the year, and is analysed as follows:
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2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE—RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT T
(Restated)
(&%)

Continuing operation BREREEK
Sales of goods — direct sales EREE —HEEEE 2,885,665 2,805,895
Income from concessionaire sales BrEREEEIRA 1,900,837 1,757,926
Service income ARFE U A 63,113 62,070
Rental income e WA 48,990 46,080
4,898,605 4,671,971

The Group has no customers that contributed over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group for both years.

REEREF  AEBYERFERBAREE
UzE 2 10% °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B#5R &M ()
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

Segment Information 6. DEER
Following the disposal of Lifestyle Properties Group, during the THE-Z—+F+-A=+—HLFELEFR
year ended 31 December 2017, the internal organisation BWEEEER ABEREBLREIADE
structure and reporting has been changed such discontinued 2 B BRI ESE 2 ERFEREEBTT
operation attributable to Lifestyle Properties Group is no longer BEEETTGHEEN - B F2RERKE
separately assessed or reviewed. Instead, the information TE2REREKEDPPARRBHNERFELSE
reviewed by the chief operating decision makers (“CODM”") as EBZERUADITERIE -
at the end of the reporting period analyses only performance of
the continuing operation.
The Group's operating activities are attributable to a single AEENKEEBRIEETBLEREE W
operating segment under HKFRS 8 “Operating segments” BRRKRE  BESBEMBHR |85k 45
which focuses on the operation of department stores and DEIARERE—LENE - ZEEDBIHER
property development and investment in Hong Kong. This BREEEVEREE (MME2MME) SR
operating segment has been identified on the basis of internal KMmmbl 2 NMBERRE TUABR  BEBLE
management reports prepared in accordance with accounting REEBIARRANITES) EHEHN - TELE
policies that conform to HKFRSs as disclosed in note 2, that are RERETHEAAEEBRRERNFRENREHM
regularly reviewed by the CODM (i.e. the executive directors of Kog A - AMER ERDEUASK » Btz oh - B
the Company). The CODM regularly reviews revenue analysis B R E M S BI EE R A ERIRAT M -
and profit for the year of the Group as a whole to make - WAERGIEBER NG ER S FER - B
decisions about resource allocation. Other than these, no PRI BEEEB B I BB LT ENERN &£
operating results and other discrete financial information is SEFEEHENREEEERL  HREFEFEAE
available for the assessment of performance. Accordingly, no JEET o
separate segment information other than entity level information
is prepared. Comparative figures have been restated to reflect
the disposal of the Lifestyle Properties Group during the current
year because the discontinued operation was no longer
separately assessed or reviewed.
The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong. The Group's REBWEBLNES - TAREERERIE
non-current assets are all based in Hong Kong. ERENEE -
Other Income, Gains and Losses 7. HWA - WEREER
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FH#ET
(Restated)
(&51)
Continuing operation BEREEL
Management fee income BEEBWA 58,129 56,057
Project income THH KA 2,324 6,644
Net exchange loss JHIE HEE (45,022) (10,574)
Others (note) Eb (B5E) 39,025 46,373
54,456 98,500

Note:

Others mainly represent bank credit card recharge and commission
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %8 Bl #5353 (48)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

8.

Interest and investment Income

8. RERREWA

2017 2016
—E—+tF T —REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
(Restated)
(&%)
Continuing operation FEREER
Interest income on bank deposits RITIFRZ FEMA 65,995 55,191
Dividend income from financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFAEBREZEHMEEN
A& 2 M A 48,728 57,762
Interest income from financial assets at FVTPL BRATEFABRZSREEN
FlE A 1,012 76,842
Change in fair value of financial instruments: SHRMTARNTEEE :
— financial assets at FVTPL other than — TSR T AUINE AT E
derivative financial instruments FrABRZ eRVEE 593,097 108,360
— derivative financial instruments —iTEemT A 26,231 (7,553)
Other interest income H b F 2 UgA - 77,356
735,063 367,958
Finance Costs 9. MERAE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
(Restated)
(&%)
Continuing operation BEREEY
Interest on: LATEBZHE :
Bank borrowings RITIEE 159,677 60,616
Bonds (£ 225,079 415,143
384,756 475,759
Less: Amounts capitalised in construction in o ERIREREREEYSE
progress and investment property ZER L eFE
under development (155,802) (4,737)
228,954 471,022

Borrowing costs capitalised are interest expenses incurred
specifically for financing the development of qualifying assets.

EERNMEZBERATZARERTHEERE
EZBEMELNT B -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B#5R &M ()
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

10. Taxation 10. B\
2017 2016
— ZEREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET
(Restated)
(E271))
Continuing operation FEREER
Hong Kong Profits Tax: EENET -
Current Tax ﬁﬁ,ﬂ%}ﬂg 376,553 326,354
Overprovision in prior years BEFEREEME (281) (338)
376,272 326,016
Deferred tax charge (note 26) EERIES H (B 26) 160,562 11,680
536,834 337,696
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated EBNEH VR IEMESEE Z Mt R HE IR
assessable profits for both years. 16.5%&TH °

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as follows:

AEEHREL HEEGBESREMEERERM
TERBUADE R 2 HERAT ¢

2017 2016
—E—+tF “TRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAET
(Restated)
(E71))
Profit before taxation (from continuing operating) BB BIEF] (3K BB 4L 2 5 75) 3,411,474 1,938,603
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate BREBFEHMERAE ZHEA 562,893 319,869
Tax effect of income not taxable BARBWA 2 BIEE
for tax purposes (70,672) (63,036)
Tax effect of expense not deductible TRIHIB A 2 RIER 2
for tax purposes 43,942 80,502
Tax effect on utilisation of tax losses AR A RERTIEEE 2
previously not recognised TIE & (228) (209)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERRBEEZ RIETE 1,144 13
Overprovision in prior years BAFEBRLZREE (281) (338)
Others HAb 36 895
Tax charge for the year REEHELZH
(from continuing operation) (REHECEER) 536,834 337,696

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %8 Bl #5353 (48)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

11. Profit for the Year from Continuing Operation 11. NEEREHFBELL ER ZBER

2017 2016
—Z—tF ZE—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
(Restated)
(&%)
Profit for the year from continuing operation REEREFELE & F
has been arrived at after charging: BB TIIER -
Directors’ remuneration (note 12): BEMe (HFE12) -
Fees i 1,717 1,567
Salaries and allowances e Sl 3,500 4,540
Bonus TEAL 15,000 9,500
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RREFIET MR 29 24
20,246 15,631
Other staff costs, excluding retirement benefits  BRiEREFIFTEIINZ
scheme contributions Hfh 8 TAAS 216,959 208,478
Retirement benefits scheme contributions, RIRBHET 2R
net of forfeited contributions for staff JEOR WAL FR 7,846 8,076
Total staff costs B8 TR 245,051 232,185
Auditor's remuneration [ Gl A 2,228 2,562
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% « &= MREZITE 162,122 140,993
Rental payments paid under operating lease PACEHA T HE L REF
in respect of leasehold land and buildings itz & 129,429 91,338
Loss on disposal/written off of property, e MORTE - BRI
plant and equipment pd 1 2,177 11,134
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense R AIEZFEERAK 2,112,296 2,029,047
Gross rental income from investment properties & &Y% 4258 11,665 5,864
Gross rental income from sub-letting of KERHN T 2R
commercial properties under an SAN R SRk
operating lease 37,325 40,216
Reversal of impairment and write-off JE WS BR SR e B A FE ORI R (B
of trade and other receivables st 17 1,000
Reversal of write-down of obsolete inventories s 57 SR @ 1 113
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B33k =M= (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

12. Directors’ and Employees’ Remuneration

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the

applicable Listing Rules and CO, are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2017

12. EERESME
FREFOHSERBEAN EDRARD T
PIEE  BemT

BE-2—tF+-A=t—-HLHFE

Contributions

to retirement

Directors’  Salaries and benefits
fees  allowances Bonus* scheme Total

BRIER
EZHe  HexEm TLAL* BE 3 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TExT TExT TERT

(A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (A) BITES

Ms. Lau Kam Shim 254/ \H 200 2,100 7,500 18 9,818
Mr. Lau Kam Sen (note a) 2AoREE (MaEa 117 1,400 7,500 1 9,028
Sub-total NG 317 3,500 15,000 29 18,846

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services in connection with the management of the affairs

of the Company and the Group.

(B) NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS  (B) ##i{TES

ERTDHRTEERAR R RAEEERER L
RERB2ERHE -

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas 2 ghe s A 200 - - - 200
Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William HEELE 200 - - - 200
Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy AFELL 200 - - - 200
Sub-total S 600 - - - 600

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services as directors of the Company or its subsidiaries.

(C) INDEPENDENT NON- (C) BLFHTES

R TERARRREM B AR ZIERITESEH
Rt ZREBNESIE -

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon KBRS & 200 - - - 200
Mr. Shek Lai Him, Abraham VaYEE Sitad 200 - - - 200
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung, FRASLE

Stephen 200 - - - 200
Mr. Ip Yuk Keung Efats 200 - - - 200
Sub-total IINat 800 - - - 800
Total st 1,717 3,500 15,000 29 20,246

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown

above were for their services as directors of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %8 Bl #5353 (48)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

12. Directors’ and Employees’ Remuneration 12. EEREEME (&)
(continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Restated) BE-_Z-—XR"E+-A=+—HLEE(EH)
Contributions
to retirement
Directors’  Salaries and benefits
fees allowances Bonus* scheme Total
RIRER
ESHE  HekEh TEAL HE S 45
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHT FHT TR TR
(A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (A) BITES
Ms. Lau Kam Shim 5% A 167 1,000 500 15 1,682
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas Bt E
(note b) (Ff7E b) 98 3,540 9,000 9 12,647
Sub-total et 265 4,540 9,500 24 14,329
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for FRDRRAITEFARNRARAEBREEER L
their services in connection with the management of the affairs REBREIESTHS -

of the Company and the Group.
(B) NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS  (B) ##i{TES

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas B|ge it

(note b) (M b) 102 - - - 102
Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William HEELEL 200 - - - 200
Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy AEEnT 200 - - - 200
Sub-total s 502 - - - 502
The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for I TERARRRISEN B AR 2 IEMITES
their services as directors of the Company or its subsidiaries. RHZBRBHESHE -
(C) INDEPENDENT NON- C) BUKHTES
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon MIRBE & 200 - - - 200
Mr. Shek Lai Him, Abraham AEHRAE 200 - - - 200
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung, FERREE
Stephen 200 - - - 200
Mr. Ip Yuk Keung 2tk 200 - - - 200
Sub-total s 800 - - - 800
Total st 1,567 4,540 9,500 24 15,631
The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown FRTSERARBELIERITE ZMIRH Z R
above were for their services as directors of the Company. WEFME -
* The bonus was determined with reference to performance and * AR N EE RS RTS8 -

market trends.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B#5R &M ()
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

12. Directors’ and Employees’ Remuneration 12. ESREEME (E)
(continued)
There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief RRFHRE - REEFIITRAHMEXRER
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during MBS 2 HE
the years.
Notes: BteE
(a) Mr. Lau Kam Sen was appointed as an executive director on 1 (a) BSRAEER-ZZ—tFANA—BEEAITE
June 2017. Eo
(b)  Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, was re-designated from an executive (b) AEBEERPTERTEN AT RIERNITES
director to a non-executive director with effect from 28 June 2016. YR ZB=REXAZTN\BBREARRERER
AR -
Of the five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year BE-_Z—+F+-A=+—HILFE FT5H
ended 31 December 2017, two of them (2016: two) were AEEERFALTHR WME(ZE—RF:WE)A
directors of the Company whose remuneration are disclosed RABES BN EXHE - BI=8(=
above. The remaining three (2016: three) are employees of the T-RF:ZR)ARFEEREES BREZMSF
Group, details of whose remuneration are as follows: BEEIINT
2017 2016
—E—+tfF ZE—RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAET
Employees: & :
Salaries, allowances and other benefits 4 - EAL R EMER 5,481 5,341
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIREFE B R 54 54
Performance related incentive payments ERRIREMR RS 1,182 768
6,717 6,163
The emoluments of the remaining three (2016: three) were HB=ZZ(ZE—RE: NR) o AT 25
within the following bands: NFLATEE -
2017 2016
—E—+tF e ANCS
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AH N
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T 2 2,000,000 7T 2 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 A7t 3,000,000 7T - 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 77T = 3,500,000 7T 1 -

During the year ended 31 December 2017, no remuneration was
paid by the Group to the directors of the Company or the three
(2016: three) highest paid employees as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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13. Discontinued Operation

—tFE+ A=+ —HLFE

(a)

On 13 April 2017, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to dispose of its entire 59.56% equity
interest holdings in Lifestyle Properties Group for a cash
consideration of HK$1,292,986,000 to an independent
third party and the disposal was completed on the same
date. The principal business and activity of the Lifestyle
Properties Group was property development and
investments. The results of the Lifestyle Properties Group
from 1 January 2017 to 13 April 2017, date of disposal, has
been accounted for as a discontinued operation in the
Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2017 and the comparative figures for the preceding year
have been restated accordingly.

The profit (loss) for the period/year from the discontinued
operation is analysed as follows:

13. FEFEKERE

(a)

RZE—tFMA+=R " AEEFTI—
MEEBZE  UR—BBILE=JFURD
1B 1,292,986,0007% 7T i & H 59.56% i F
TR ESE M2 AE - WRF BT
EXHE - NEMESBENTIZRBEREE
MEZRMEE - FNRHEEEE_T

—+FE-A-BE-ZE—+FMOA+=H
(RHERAR) 2EERBE—T—£F

tToA=1T—RLFEEARBEGEAER
Ko B At 2 YR ER R P ARRI D E FERF B AR
BEE MEFZHRBFILAERED -

Hﬁﬁaﬁ/iﬁx BB 5 A (E1E)
DWW -

For the period For the year
from 1 January ended
2017 to 31 December
13 April 2017 2016
BE-Z—+t#%
—B—HZE | HE-_ZT—R#F
—E—tF | tZA=+—H
MA+=HHM IFFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fi#5 Fiz
Other income, gains and losses EMUA - Was REE 6,655 10,360
Selling and distribution costs SHEE K 53 SHRKAR (5,791) (13,265)
Administrative expenses THRAX (7,757) (23,549)
Interest and investment income (expense) F| 8 &IEEIWA (ZH) 12,760 (26,095)
Fair value changes on investment WEMERNTEE
properties - (900)
Profit (loss) before taxation BEADaA (Ei8) 5,867 (53,449)
Taxation E - (265)
Profit (loss) for the period/year i, E %A (EiE) 5,867 (53,714)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, HENE AT E MR SR
net of transaction costs 2 Es 420,843 -
Profit (loss) for the period/year from the  Hiffl,EE K B I B L XS
discontinued operation 2l (E518) 426,710 (53,714)
FEEREEBRAT = +EFFR
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for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

13. Discontinued Operation (continued)

(a)

(continued)

(a)

13. FFEEEXRK (8)

(%)

For the

period from

1 January 2017
to 13 April 2017
BE_ZT—+F
—A—B=E
—E—tF
A+=HHH
HK$’000

FET

Profit for the period from the discontinued
operation has been arrived at after charging:

Auditor’s remuneration
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Z BB £
M BEMBITE 1"

HARIR B IS A R TG 2 A
2B TIIER -

20

During the period from 1 January 2017 to 13 April 2017,
Lifestyle Properties Group contributed HK$641,000 to the
Group's net operating cash outflows and paid HK$697,000
in respect of investing activities.

Pursuant to a resolution of the board of directors of the
Company on 28 June 2016, the Company declared a
special interim dividend, satisfied by distribution in specie
of the entire issued share capital of its subsidiary, Lifestyle
China, to the Company’s shareholders. The Distribution
was made by way of allocating one share of Lifestyle China
for every one share of the Company held by the
Company'’s shareholders. Upon share of completion of the
Distribution, the Group ceased to hold any interest in
Lifestyle China Group and Lifestyle China Group ceased
to be subsidiaries of the Company. Details of the
distribution in specie have been disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 28 June 2016 and
note 13 to the consolidation financial statements
contained in the Company’s annual report dated 13 March
2017 respectively.

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

HE-_T—tF—A—HEZZFT—tFN@
A+=AHE AREELEEALAELEES
Bt 2 SR SR AUFRE A 641,0008 7T 0 B
BB EE LS 697,000/ 7T °
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AEBERAETEEEE TSR ERE
@ MAEPEEETSTBREARAZ
MEBAR - BRANEY D IRZFECEHR
ARRZE—RERNAZTNBZREN
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(b)

13. Discontinued Operation (continued) 13. FIFEREEL (F)
(continued) b) (&)
The consolidated profit for the period from the UTRRZE— A FHEREIFFELE
discontinued operation in 2016 is set out below. EBimam e
For the
period from
1 January 2016
to 14 July 2016
HE-_Z—KF
—HA—BZE
TETREF
+ A0 A EAfE
HK$'000
FHET
Profit for the period from discontinued operation HARE 2R B FEIF B AR & 5T 2 A 281,371
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal SPGB A BRI H s 2 B
of foreign subsidiaries (132,667)
148,704

Details of the results of Lifestyle China Group for the
period from 1 January 2016 to 14 July 2016, which have
been included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, were as follows:

SeBakAtrEmPEaR e 2ENE
PREEBRE_T-RF-A-RBE_Z
—NFLA+TMAHEZEE  FEOT

For the

period from

1 January 2016
to 14 July 2016

BE-_ZT—KREF

—A—HZE

—T-REF

+ A+ A HE

HK$'000

FHET

Turnover LEHE 650,551
Cost of sales SHEKA (179,995)
Other income, gains and losses Hipdg A - WEE N E1E 56,175
Selling and distribution costs THE RO KA (324,145)
Administrative expenses TS (58,523)
Investment income FEWBA 28,437
Share of profit of a joint venture B —E& &R HR 19,372
Share of profits of associates i alNE el 192,366
Listing expenses FHER (24,291)
Finance costs [ELE= NN (8,141)
Profit before taxation FR LR & 351,806
Taxation BiE (70,435)
Profit for the period from discontinued operation  HARI 3R (B FEIFE L& 575 28 F 281,371

MEEREEERAIE —T—tFFR
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13. Discontinued Operation (continued) 13. FFEREEK (F)
(b)  (continued) b) (&)

For the

period from

1 January 2016

to 14 July 2016

BE-Z—RF

—A—B%
—EREF
+ A+ A HfE
HK$'000
FET
Profit for the period from discontinued operation  HAEI 2K B EF B4 & 15 2m A 2 bk
has been arrived at after charging (crediting): (5t A) T%BRE :
Auditor’s remuneration ZEETIN & 1,367
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  HE&E¥ZE -« [5E M&#E 2 Wz 47)
During the period from 1 January 2016 to 14 July 2016, HE_T-—R"F-A—HEZZT—R"Ft
Lifestyle China Group contributed HK$45,861,000 to the R+MBAEE  FMEtEEERAEEST
Group's net operating cash inflows, paid HK$205,777,000 Bl S 3R &M AUFEE /45,861,000 7T
in respect of investing activities and recorded cash IR A& E) = 205,777,000 7% 7T ML gb B
outflows HK$36,215,000 in respect of financing activities. TEBNERISIR &7 36,215,000 7T °
The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of MiEwESE RN EPEESERNEERSH
Lifestyle Property Group and Lifestyle China Group at the ZEBEREEREENM 29 #E -

date of disposal are disclosed in note 29.
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14. Dividends 14. RE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEn Fir
Dividends recognised as distributions during FNERBDIRHAE
the year:
Final dividend in cash paid for the year ended HEe—_Z2—X"Ft+-_A=+—H
31 December 2016 — HK cents 34.3 per IFFEUREIRNMN 2
share (2016: HK cents 34.3 per share paid RHARR B — F% 34.3 (L
for the year ended 31 December 2015) (ZZ—RF  kIEHZE
—T-hHF+-H=+—H
IEFE — Sk 343 781l) 549,687 549,687
Interim dividend in cash paid for the six HEZZ—tFA=1THI
months ended 30 June 2017 — HK cents 7B A AR IRz F AR S
28.9 per share (2016: HK cents 28.9 per — &% 28.9 Bl
share paid for the six months ended (Z2—RF  kTHZE
30 June 2016) —E-RERNA=THL
A1EB — A% 289 L) 463,148 463,148
Sub-total /NEF 1,012,835 1,012,835
Special interim dividend by way of distribution LAEW A A5 RN E A A
in specie of subsidiaries (Note a) B&1n 2 45 Bl AR BARR S, (Bt 5 a) - 10,058,506
Total st 1,012,835 11,071,341
Notes: BT
(a) On 28 June 2016, the Company declared a special interim (a) RZTE—RNEXNAZT+NR » KATRETIRERF
dividend, satisfied by distribution in specie of the entire issued HRE - WAEWMAH XD RFIEREN 2B 5
share capital of Lifestyle China to the shareholders whose names TRATRDIRLHFEH(EERAQR A
appear on the register of members of the Company at the close ZE-RFERAZTFNBZRAE) BEREER
of business on the Distribution Record Date (as defined in the BEIARATIRREEZM AR - DIRIEN D IR
Company’s announcement dated 28 June 2016). The Distribution R HIL LR BESEES—BRAAT
was made by way of allocating one share of Lifestyle China for ZBRH A EE—RAER RS o tERI R ER
every one share of the Company held by the shareholders of the £.10,058,506,000/8 7T ' WER T —~F+A
Company at the close of business on the Distribution Record +HADIR
Date. Distribution of this special interim dividend, amounting to
HK$10,058,506,000, and was completed on 14 July 2016.
(b) Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend of (b) RREHEERE  EFESIRTRBEESRE
HK cents 34.3 (2016: HK cents 34.3) per share has been proposed FRE3A3BA(ZT—7N4F - 343781L) - AR
by the directors of the Company which is subject to approval by RENEERFBERGIAE -

the shareholders in the forthcoming general meeting.

MEEREEERAIE —T—tFFR
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15. Earnings Per Share 15. BREF
From continuing operation REFELSEER
Calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the RRARGEB ANEIEERERBF TIRIZA TR
owners of the Company is based on the following data: FE
2017 2016
—2—tF N
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET THET
Earnings figures are calculated as follows: BRFEMT (Restated)
(&%)
Profit for the year attributable to owners REFRRATHEBA
of the Company JE(5 & 3,299,488 1,590,430
Less: (Profit) loss for the year from B ARFEERE IR EET
discontinued operation 2 CwAl) B8 (424,848) 10,477
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings METHERERFELCEEL
per share from continuing operation BREREFHEF] 2,874,640 1,600,907
2017 2016
—B—+tF ZERF
‘000 ‘000
TR TR
Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for ~ et EESREAEF| 2 L@
the purpose of basic earnings per share DnREF 5 8L 1,602,587 1,602,587

No dilutive earnings per share is presented as there were no
dilutive potential ordinary shares during both years.

From continuing and discontinued operations

Calculation of the basic earnings per share from continuing and
discontinued operations attributable to the owners of the
Company is based on the following data:

HAEMEFELATAEER S ERE  RILE

2 ERIEERM

R EBER SRR ET
POk B AR ER AR TEEAREER
EARF TR A TR

2017 2016
—E—tF e ANCS
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET
(Restated)
(E751)
Earnings BH
Profit for the year attributable to owners of METBEEREREBN 2 NER
the Company for the purposes of RRARHEB AR
basic earnings per share 3,299,488 1,590,430

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #3487 3R KK =E (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2017 = —%

15.

16.

—tFE+ A=+ —HLFE

Earnings Per Share (continued) 15. SREF (&)
From discontinued operation REFFESEEY
Calculation of the basic earnings per share from the REFFBELEEB 2 ERGRAENB/FTR0.27
discontinued operation of HK$0.27 per share (2016: HK$0.01 BIL(ZZE—RF : BREXEIR00ERT) HE
basic losses per share) is based on the profit for the year from RARRARES AEMNL X E EREREEB
the discontinued operation attributable to owners of the 424,848,0007% 7o) M ( ZZF — 754 : 10,477,0007%8
Company of HK$424,848,000 (2016: loss of HK$10,477,000). JLETIE) ©
The denominators used for the calculation of basic earnings per HAERBERIFFELCEEB 2 BRERAT -
share for both continuing and discontinued operation are the FrE ey BH94ER) ©
same.
Investment Properties 16. REMZE
Under
Completed development Total
25RM BREH Bz
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET
FAIR VALUE A¥E
At 1 January 2016 R-ZE—RF—HA—H 668,390 - 668,390
Additions NE - 3,696,468 3,696,468
Decrease in fair value recognised in RiB=RER 2 AT ER D
profit or loss
— Unrealised loss REBEIE (200) - (900)
Transfer from property, plant and LAE WA A2k FE+ B L E R
equipment upon distribution in specie BYZE - WE RREEE
of Lifestyle China Group 301,000 - 301,000
Exchange adjustments [E W %R (36,074) - (36,074)
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—R"F+=-A=+—H 932,416 3,696,468 4,628,884
Additions ?EE - 100,332 100,332
Increase in fair value recognised in RIBRRER 2 AFEH#E N
profit or loss
— Unrealised gain — RER W 21,000 823,200 844,200
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 29(a)) HEWB AR (MIFE 29@) (640,435) - (640,435)
Exchange adjustments b H FA % 9,019 - 9,019
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+=-A=+—H 322,000 4,620,000 4,942,000

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

The fair value of the Group’s completed investment properties
at 31 December 2017, 31 December 2016 and at the date of
transfer from property, plant and equipment was arrived based
on a valuation carried out at that date by C&W, an independent
professional valuer whose address is 16/F, 1063 King's Road,
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong. C&W is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors. The fair value is arrived at based on the
direct comparison method assuming sales of each of the
property in their existing state and by making reference to
comparable sales’ evidence of similar nature properties available
in the relevant market.

AN B LAUCERAE £ WA S A B AR E S B B B4
EHETHANMERaRAAFESRGE
EAERARRREDE -

REENE ZRBEMER-_T—+F+ A
=t+—8B ZE—RE+-_A=+—BUEHEY
% BERREEBEONATFENREZHRAER
WERE 2B A BN EEGEMBIERIT it
I AEBRIRBEZE10635E 1618 b‘“fHJEEIHﬂ
ZHEEET BERTAESBIEMES
=g M%’&?{EEME&H:%F/HE”“iﬂ%%&
iﬁﬂkﬁj’i&’%%ﬁﬁ%rn%ZﬂiETé%%%E’]Ttt
HERSHRETE °

MEEREERRAIE —
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16. REME (&)

16. Investment Properties (continued)

The fair value of the Group's investment property under
development at 31 December 2017 was arrived at based on a
valuation using residual method carried out on that date by
C&W and was determined based on recent comparable sales
transactions in the relevant property market (on the assumption
that the property had already been completed at the valuation
date). It also takes into account the construction cost already
incurred as well as the estimated cost to be incurred to
complete the project plus the developer's estimated profit and
margin for risk.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties under
development at 31 December 2016 was determined by the
directors of the Company with reference to the transaction price
of the investment properties concerned, where the transaction
was completed near to the year end of 2016.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of these investment properties are determined (in particular, the
valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value
hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are

RZTB—tF+-_A=+—0 AEEZEEK
EMETRBEBIERITNZ A AR BEETHE
MEE - WREBEDET ST AL HER
Z (BRZMFCDERERYTNK) - REZED
BEEERERMA R ERZIEB EFHDPTFR R
B - BN EFHEEEENBMER

AEEERFBANER-_F—AE+=A
S+—AMATEENHAANESET %2
AR ENEREL - T~ AFFRIXHE
o

EREMENRATEER  SeMNREEHBR%L
EMERERERRE

TREIZEREMEATENEENELER
HETDERAEAZBO UL ATESHR  RERQ
FEL RVFEFEENRQATFEFESBNITE

ERENR—EZY

categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

Carrying value of investment Fair value Valuation technique(s) Relationship of unobservable
properties held by the Group hierarchy and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value
FRERFRENE AYE HER% EXER BEBRNBASY
ZIREE e AEEBANZH BENBAZY HATENER

At 31 December 2017
RZZ-tE+=A=+-8

Completed commercial properties in Level 3 Direct comparison method Price per square foot, using market direct  The higher the price per square
Hong Kong Island, Hong Kong =/ assuming sale in its existing  comparables and taking into account  foot, the higher the fair value.
HK$322,000,000 state and by making reference location and other individual factors such BT HRERBS  ATERS -

NN EEEERE TRBENE to comparable sales evidence  as environment, building facilities, levels,

322,000,000 7% 70 of similar nature properties as etc., which is ranging from HK$29,580/

available in the relevant market.  sq.ft to HK$33,978/sq.ft.
WERHERZZEBTSRE RETHREREBERNSILERITL
NEZALHEERFNEEL  HAERENRZWRS - WELE -
BV BESRERZ - TR 29580 AT
Z BI78HTT
The key inputs are:
TE2HA: Level adjustment of the property range from  The higher the level adjustment,
0.5% to 7.5%. the higher the fair value.
(1) Price persquare foot;and  ¥IEMEERER 0.5%% £ 7.5% BEARYS  ATEHS

STHRER: R

(2) Level adjustment

BEBZ

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %8 Bl #5353 (48)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

16. Investment Properties (continued)

16. REWE ()

Carrying value of investment Fair value Valuation technique(s) Relationship of unobservable
properties held by the Group hierarchy and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value
AREFSRENE ATE ERE EXEE BLEZNBAZH
ZIREE SRR FIEE:3PN:ES | BZp@A2Y HEATENBER
At 31 December 2017
R-B-—tF+=A=1-H
Commercial properties under development  Level 3 Residual method based on the Price per square foot, using market The higher the price per square
in Kai Tak, Hong Kong HK$4,620,000,000 £ =4t comparable market observable ~ comparables and taking into account  foot, the higher the fair value.
URERRNERRPEENE transactions in the relevant  location and other individual factors such BT HRERES - ATEES °
4,620,000,000 % 70 market and the construction  as environment, building facilities, levels,
costs estimated to complete  etc.
the property. RETHRERERTSILEBELETA
HSpARBETHEETEURR  LERERRRWRE  DEfie  EE
SRERDENRERA - SRERZ -
The key input is: For office properties:
(1) Price per square foot; and Ranging from HK$12,178/sq.ft. to
SEHRER HKS$15,761/5q.1.
HEFAR12178ETE
(2) Estimated project BEAR 15761 BT
development cost
HEREBERAAR For retail properties:
TENE:
Ranging from HK$19,013/sq.ft. to
HK$32,282/sq ft.
BETR19013BTE
BYEHRR 32282 5T
Estimated project development cost of the The higher the estimated project
property is HK$5,628,000,000. development cost, the lower
{EHIB A ERM AR 5,628,000,000 T the fair value.
FERBERNAER  ATER
1& -
At 31 December 2016
RZB-"F+-A=+-H
Completed commercial property in Level 3 Direct comparison method Price per square metre, using market direct  The higher the price per square
Qingdao, the PRC RMB253,000,000 3 assuming sale in its existing ~ comparables and taking into account  metre, the higher the fair value.

(equivalent to HK$281,336,000)
URPRESERHEENSE

AR 253,000,000 7T

(1% 74 281,336,000 7% 7T)

state and by making reference
to comparable sales evidence
of similar nature properties as
available in the relevant market.

URREHERZZEBTERE
NMEZTLHEERHNERL
&

The key inputs are:

(1) Price per square metre; and

BETRER: R

(2) Level adjustment

BESE

location and other individual factors such
as environment, building facilities, levels,
etc., which is ranging from Renminbi
("RMB") 9,078/sq.m. to RMB13,935/sq.m.

RET KB RE RS L BRI
STARERENRENRE - MERE
BESEERZ  AETHRARE(A
R 1)9078 TEARK139357T «

Level adjustment on individual floors of the
property ranging from 40% to 70% on
specific levels.

NEREENEERRRMENERN 40% E
70% °

The higher the level adjustment,
the lower the fair value.

BEREYS  ATEYE-

MNEEREEERAIE —T—tFFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B33k =M= (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

16. Investment Properties (continued)

16. REME (&)

Carrying value of investment Fair value Valuation technique(s) Relationship of unobservable
properties held by the Group hierarchy and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value
AEERERENE ATE HER% EXER BEEENAASH
ZREE i FIEX-1-PN:ES °f BENBASY HATENEER
At 31 December 2016
RZE-—RE+ZA=+—H
Completed commercial property in Level 3 Direct comparison method Price per square metre, using market direct  The higher the price per square
Harbin, the PRC RMB277,500,000 F=% assuming sale in its existing ~ comparables and taking into account  metre, the higher the fair value.
(equivalent to HK$308,580,000) state and by making reference  location and other individual factors such &7 KBRS - AT EHS ¢
R PEREER RN E to comparable sales evidence s environment, building facilities, levels,
AR 277,500,000 7T of similar nature properties as etc., of RMB27,500/sg.m.
(18% 7 308,580,000 %) available in the relevant market. &/ REEEE B ERT 5 LB L
UEREER2ZEFEDHRR  SAAREREREZIRE - WERE
MEZALBEERFNEREL BESRERZ  RETHRAARK
LV 27,5007 ©
The key inputs are: Level adjustment on individual floors of the  The higher the level adjustment,
TE2HA property ranging from 50% to 70% on  the lower the fair value.
specific levels. BEARYS  ATEHE -
(1) Price persquare metre;and ~ YIEREFHIEEHERERER 50% 2
FFIAER R 70% ©
(2) Level adjustment
BERE
Completed commercial properties in Level 3 Direct comparison method Price per square foot, using market direct  The higher the price per square
Hong Kong Island, Hong Kong R assuming sale in its existing ~ comparables and taking into account  foot, the higher the fair value.
HK$301,000,000 state and by making reference  location and other individual factors such &5 REKHE - ATEHME °
RN EEEERE TRBENE to comparable sales evidence  as environment, building facilities, levels,
301,000,000 7T of similar nature properties as  etc., which is ranging from HK$27,322/
available in the relevant market.  sq.ft to HK$31,012/sq.ft.
UBREERZEEETERE BETARBREMERTSIHEELE
MEZALHEERFHEREL  HAUBERENEZRMRS - HERE
Bk e BESRERZ  AETAR 27132
E31,01287 ¢
The key inputs are:
TE2Y R Level adjustment of the property ranging The higher the level adjustment,
from 1% to 9%. the higher the fair value.
(1) Price per square foot; and ALBEENENEERAER 19 E9% - RBEREYS  ATEES -
BYARER: R
(2) Level adjustment
BERz
Commercial properties under development  Level 2 Determined by the directors of N/A N/A
in Kai Tak, Hong Kong HK$3,696,468,000 % =4 the Company with reference to  TEA TER
URERREERTAENE the transaction price of the
3,696,468,00075 7T investment properties
concerned, where the
transaction was completed near
to the year end.
HARAERET U2Z6H
BRENEIRBRAFRLRS
B -
Completed commercial properties in Level 2 Direct comparison method N/A N/A
Kowloon, Hong Kong (“IPin Kowloon”) & =4, assuming sale in its existing NiERA T@En

HK$41,500,000
fREBNERD TREENE

(TheelAmx))

41,500,000/ 70

state and by making reference
to comparable sales evidence
of similar nature properties as
available in the relevant market.

AR E RS EERTIHRE
MEZALHERINEREL
it o

Details of the pledge of assets are set out in note 35.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %8 Bl #5353 (48)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

17. Property, Plant and Equipment 17. Y% - BRERZE
Leasehold Furniture, Construction
land and Leasehold Plant and fixtures and Motor in
buildings  improvements machinery equipment vehicles progress Total
HELH HENE BER G- Be
REF #§ He RERRE AE HRIE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn Thn Thr ThT T ThL ThL
COST AR
At 1 January 2016 RZE-7E-F-H 5,522,009 906,411 396,252 301,843 20728 1,411,353 8,558,596
Exchange adjustment B (40,476) (7,030) (2.448) (1,015 (100) (17,663 (68,732)
Additions RE 475 75230 18,409 66,488 699 3,990,905 4,152,206
Transfer to investment properties  EBZRENE (29.468) - - - - - (29.468)
Disposalsit-offs e/ (1,112 23450 5321 (1842) - . #8510
Disposal upon Spin-off PEEL (2.968,661) (524,229) (182,543) (71,746) (7.257) (1,527,429 (5,281,86)
At 31 December 2016 WoE-—E+ZA=1+-H 2482767 426932 24149 217143 14,070 3,857,166 7282221
Exchange adjustment EH B - - 1 (139) - 1876 174
Additions RE 26407 71183 8,464 153,686 576 9716 366,032
Disposals/write-offs e /5 - (10,752) (1,257) (8,045) - - (20,054)
Disposal of subsidiaries PHEEL - - (44) (5419 m (162573) (168,047)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+-A=1-A 2,509,174 493363 21313 17229 14,635 3,796,185 7461899
DEPRECIATION i
At 1 January 2016 RZE—E-A-R 1,570,151 655,779 210,058 164,734 12,108 - 2612830
Exchange adjustment B A (8,078) (5802 (1,119) m) (61) - (15,831)
Provided for the year FRfE 101,502 54,791 14,882 31925 2310 - 211410
Eliminated on disposals/write-offs (1 ER 3 /3 (404) (19.74) 2412 (13947) - - (36,509
Eliminated on transfer to ERERENERES
investment properties (12171) - - - - - (12171)
Eliminated on disposal upon papisi=hitggs
Spin-off (552,160) (431,941) (84,058) (54,080) (4.449) - (1,126,688)
At 31 December 2016 REE—AETZA=1-H 1,098,840 253,081 137,351 133,861 9908 - 1,633,041
Exchange adjustment EREE - - 2 (138) - - (134)
Provided for the year ERE 46,973 54,297 14622 4459 1782 - 162133
Eliminated on disposals/write-offs &R /53 - (9.908) (647) 132 - - (17.877)
Eliminated on disposal of LENBARRE S
subsidliaries - - (44) 5,17) (1) - (5,226)
At 31 December 2017 REF-tE+2A=1-H 1145813 291410 151,284 165,691 1,619 - 1771937
NET BOOK VALUES REFE
At 31 December 2017 RoE—+E+-A=1-H 1,363,361 195,893 80,029 251538 29% 3796185 5,689,962
At 31 December 2016 RZE-~"E+ZA=1-A 1,383,927 173,851 86,798 143,282 4162 3,857,166 5,649,186
Included in construction in progress are borrowing costs EREIRERBRREFRABEEARALZEERAA
capitalised during the year amounting to HK$77,842,000 (2016: 77,842,000/ 70 ( —ZF —7X4F : 102,541,000/ 7T)
HK$102,541,000).

MNEEREEERAIE —T—tFFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B33k =M= (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

17. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 17. Y% - RERZE (F)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than BRIEZTIRSN - Bt - BB LREIEE T
construction in progress, are depreciated after taking into BT EGETEER  UESER TNYIERF BT
account their estimated residual value, using straight-line HiTE

method over the following useful lives:

Leasehold land and Over the lease terms HETHNRET IRELOFHN+F
buildings or 40 years
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of BEMEEE RMKFHRSTF
lease terms or 10 years (ARG E RLE)
Plant and machinery 5to 10 years [P K e 2s AFEETF
Furniture, fixtures and 5to 10 years R~ EITE S RFEETF
equipment &L
Motor vehicles 5 years E hF
Details of the pledge of assets are set out in note 35. ERAEELINFE - FRME35 -
18. Prepaid Lease Payments 18. ENHEENE
The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise: AEE 2 FENEEFBERE
2017 2016
—E—tF TERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FET
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HEREBDWTA
Current portion BNEAER - 16,123
Non-current portion JERNERER 1S - 548,191
- 564,314
Details of the pledge of assets are set out in note 35. BAEEEIFS  HRME35
19. Inventories 19. #&
2017 2016
—E—tF TETREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Merchandise held for resale FAEEEERE SR 37,571 34,533
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %8 Bl #5353 (48)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

20. Trade and Other Receivables

20. FEURBRFR K Hfth UK IR

2017 2016

—E—+tHF —EF—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Trade receivables FE W BR FX 105,093 57,240
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts o RERFEHE (2,194) 2,211)
102,899 55,029

Prepayments FETBRFX 18,568 16,222
Deposits paid [EERE 35,630 36,256
Value added tax (“"VAT") receivables FEU I F - 532
Others Hi 17,790 86,268
174,887 194,307

The Group's retail sales to customers are mainly made in cash,
through debit card or credit card payments. Its major trade
receivables arising from credit card sales which are normally
settled in one to two business days in arrears and the rental
income receivables are normally settled 30 days in arrears. The
following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of
allowance for doubtful debts presented based on the invoice
date, which approximates the respective revenue recognition
dates:

FAEBRABREEHNTEHETENRS BB
RERAEARAR - AEBEEERKEFKRE
R —EMETERRENERRHEEREE
R=+BAAKEEKRES WA - LT AR REH
MHEE A RURFCNRRERE) REEZAY
(BA% B UREE TR B HIME ) Z BRER DT :

2017 2016

—E—+tF ZE-RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHExT FHET

0-30 days 0HZE30H 99,252 52,110
31-60 days 31 HZE 60 H 3,581 2,806
61-90 days 61 HZ90 H 29 70
Over 90 days F83@ 90 H 37 43
102,899 55,029

Included in the Group's trade receivables balance are debtors
with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$3,647,000 (2016:
HK$2,919,000) which are past due at the end of the reporting
period for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances. The average age of these receivables is 90 days (2016:
90 days).

ZNER (B FE MR TR AL 24 B HE R T 48 163,647,000 % 7T
(ZZF—7R%F 129190008 7T) Z B ZEHE
Wk s BEE B MR e - MASEE KRG IE
LREBEEE AEBTERZSEHRFET
EHE G - ZERUFEZ FHRE BOH(Z
T—RF :90H) °

MEEREEERAIE —T—tFFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B33k =M= (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

20. Trade and Other Receivables (continued) 20. FEWRBRF R H b FE U FRIE (48)
Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not BHERERE BRRRNERROT
impaired
2017 2016
—E—+tF =N
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
31-60 days 31HE60H 3,581 2,806
61-90 days 61 HE 9 H 29 70
Over 90 days i 90 H 37 43
3,647 2,919
The Group has not fully provided for all receivables over 90 days K& ﬂIﬁE AR 4890 B Y I MR 1 2 B
because historical experience indicated that such receivables 1# F%*ﬁﬂ?ﬂﬁ@%ﬁ CRERREBEBEBA
would be recoverable from the relevant debtors. W [e1 52 55 FE UK o
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts on trade FEWERRRIRRESH
receivables
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET BT
Balance at beginning of the reporting period A H W45 54 2,211 2,206
Impairment loss recognised B R REER - S
Reversal of impairment loss recognised EHER R EBERE (17) -
Balance at the end of the reporting period R HRR A en 2,194 2,211
21. Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit 21. BAFEFAEBRZSREE
or Loss
2017 2016
—g—tF | —T A%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Financial assets at FVTPL: BAFEFABGZEMERE
— Listed equity securities in Hong Kong — REB LHKRE 1,261,871 840,760
— Listed equity securities in New York — REA) FTARE 536,996 378,151
— Listed equity securities in Tokyo — RER FHEE 514,258 386,992
— Listed equity securities in London — AR ETRRE 112,955 -
— Listed equity securities in Paris —RERETRE 16,118 -
— Listed debt securities (note a) — FmEH(HiEa) 8,743 8,117
— Listed investment funds — TR EES 506,250 452,836
— Unlisted securities (note b) — Ik EmES (FIFtb) 311,778 343,738
— Written put options (note c) — ROH R (M5t c) 34,057 30,011
— Unlisted equity-linked notes (note d) — JE LT ARRERMAE S (Mt d) 46,021 -
3,349,047 2,440,605
Notes: B sE
(a) The listed debt securities mainly represent an investment in (a) THEATEEEEARE T LT ZOEBAFR
corporate bonds which are mainly listed in Hong Kong and & o
Switzerland.

(b) The unlisted securities mainly include hedge funds with a carrying ) I EMESER B AREERS 153,648,000 72

amount of HK$153,648,000 (2016: HK$61,440,000) and investment ARD (ST 7UF © 614400008 7T) K E1 £ B
portfolios managed by financial institutions with a carrying amount w’is E F2 PR (B 43158,130,000/8 /L HH & (=
of HK$158,130,000 (2016: HK$282,298,000). T — 74 ¢ 282,298,000 7T) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %8 Bl #5353 (48)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

21. Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit 21.

or Loss (continued)
Notes: (continued)

()

The written put options are derivative financial instruments. The
details of the written put options are as follows:

BAVEFABRZZEREE (B)

s - ()

(@ RAHEBERITETE - RULEENFBNT

Underlying variables Strike Quantities Expiry date
HREE THEE BE A
At 31 December 2017

R-Z—t&+=-A=+—H

EURO STOXX 50 Index 3,450 to 3,525 points 459 19 January 2018 to 16 March 2018
BUMETFES 50 355K 3,450 5% 3,525 B AN s NS
(exercisable only at expiry date) —ZE—-NE=A+XH
(REIEAB A 8597 7(E)

S&P 500 ETF Trust US$250 to US$265 38,400 5 January 2018 to 16 February 2018
R R 500 358 ETF &£ 250 ETTE 265 FTT VAR S K =
(exercisable anytime until the expiry date) —E-N\FEZA+RH
(FTRABIER B AT IS AT 1)

Nikkei 225 Index 20,875 to 21,625 points 50,000 12 January 2018 to 9 March 2018
HEFHIER 20,875 FHZE 21,625 F —ZT-)N\F-A+ZHE
(exercisable only at expiry date) —ZE-\F=ANH
(REIE B A Re#7THE)

iShares FTSE A50 China Index ETF HK$12.9 to HK$14.0 4,580,000 11 January 2018 to 27 February 2018
iShares Z1E = R AS0 I EIFE#X ETF 129 BILE 1408 “E-N\F-A+—HE
(exercisable only at expiry date) —E-N\F-A=++tH
(REIEAB A 8597 7(E)

At 31 December 2016

R-ZZB-AR"F+=A=+—8H

EURO STOXX 50 Index 2,875 to 3,050 points 545 20 January 2017 to 17 March 2017
ERMATFER, 50 FE 2L 2,875 2% 3,050 & —E—+tF—-A=+H=Z
(exercisable only at expiry date) —ZE—+F=A++tH
(REIEE A Re47THE)

S&P 500 ETF Trust US$210 to US$221 46,200 6 January 2017 to 17 February 2017
AL FR 500 HEETF E& 210 ELE 221 E£ T —E—tF-AKREE
(exercisable anytime until the expiry date) —ET—+F=-A++A
(TR EIHA B AT BRI A T6E)

Nikkei 225 Index 15,750 to 18,000 points 65,000 13 January 2017 to 10 March 2017
HAEFI93EE 15,750 B4 % 18,000 B —Z—tF-At=RA=%
(exercisable only at expiry date) —E—+H=A+H
(REIEAB A 8597 7(E)

iShares FTSE A50 China Index ETF HK$9.5 to HK$10.6 7,725,000 10 January 2017 to 15 March 2017

iShares %18 & R AS0 R EIFE#K ETF
(exercisable only at expiry date)

(REIH R 8E597T ()

9.5 BITE 10.6 BT

As at 31 December 2017, the equity-linked notes are denominated
in United States Dollars (“US$") and Japanese Yen (“JPY") with a
principal amount of US$5,000,000 and JPY111,500,000
respectively. They have a tenor of 4 to 6 months. The equity-linked
notes are linked with the listed shares (the “Underlying Shares”) in
Hong Kong and the United States. The final redemption amount
at the maturity date is with reference to the performance of the
share price of the Underlying Shares. The maturity dates of the
equity-linked notes outstanding as at 31 December 2017 were
within one year and were therefore classified as a current asset.

At 31 December 2017, financial assets at FVTPL with a carrying
amount of HK$1,427,438,000 (2016: HK$841,837,000) were
pledged as security for short-term loan facilities granted to the
Group. Details of the pledge of assets are set out in note 35.

—T-tF-AtAE
T +t#=A+HA

d) RZZE—+F+-_A=+—08 BEHBEED
RILAZETT R BITEHE + A6 %8/ 5,000,000 % 7T &
111,500,000 8 7t - ZEEHFEHAIE6MA -
AR A1 5 B E 8 RS B A _E AR () ([48REAR

7 ) HE8 - REIHIH R

RO 282 E Ak

BROOBRERR - RZE—tFT+A=+—
A BEHBERZHRE—FR  EoE

RZFB—-—tEtF+tZA=Z+—R REEAR
1,427,438,00078 7T ( = & — /X 4F : 841,837,0007%
TU) ZERAFER RS 2 SREBENERERE
REFTASEEHREREE BHEAEENS
18 - BRHIEESS -

MEEREEERAIE —T—tFFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B33k =M= (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

22. Bank Balances and Cash 22. RITHEFRREE
At the end of the reporting period, bank balances and cash REHREER  ROEFERAE I ERER
comprised mainly short-term deposits with original maturity BITHSNEA B (FMNENF001ER43E)(Z
within three months and carry interest at prevailing market rates T—RF : FHRENF001EZR56E) R =1H
ranging from 0.01% to 4.30% per annum (2016: 0.01% to 5.60% RAREIEZEEEFR -
per annum).
Included in bank balances and cash are the following amounts RITEFERREBETIARAESEERIIEE
denominated in a currency other than the functional currencies AN BT HAVRIE
of the respective group entities:
2017 2016
—E—tF —TE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET
us$ ETT 1,234,489 5,657,904
RMB ARHE 25,920 30,300
23. Trade and Other Payables 23. ERNRRREMEMSTIE

2017 2016

—FE—+F “TRF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Trade payables FETER X 212,794 177,669
Construction payables FERT TR - 357
Concessionaire sales payables FERTRF T S E 5B 545,905 500,854
Deferred income EEWES 220,799 201,867
Rental deposits received BEWiEERS 16,632 17,273
Accrued expenses et H 246,069 203,964
VAT payable FETIRETE - 46
Interest payables FETFIE 32,575 114,260
Others Hib 18,514 26,921
1,293,288 1,243,211

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

NTRRBEHEAERRNEFREZREH
ZERER DT ©

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHIT

0-30 days OHZ=30H 172,248 131,610
31-60 days 3THE60H 38,847 40,949
61-90 days 61THZE9H 490 1,662
Over 90 days B0 H 1,209 3,448
212,794 177,669

The average credit period of trade payables and concessionaire
sales payables is within 45 days from the invoice date. All
concessionaire sales payables are aged within 45 days from the
invoice date. The Group has financial risk management policies
in place to ensure that the payables are settled within the credit
timeframe.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %8 Bl #5353 (48)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

24. Bank Borrowings

24. RTEE

2017 2016
—E—tF —EREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F% Fiax
Bank borrowings comprise bank loans and RITIEERIPITERAEX -
analyse as follows: WIRLA T OHT
Secured HiEH 11,184,138 8,376,248
Carrying amount repayable based on BEAFEEZERE S E
contractual repayment dates: JEERRMEE :
Within one year* —FERER* 2,601,552 3,427,208
More than one year, but not exceeding —FIRIETBBRE
two years 494,899 -
More than two years, but not exceeding ZFBETEBB=F
three years 494,899 494,904
More than three years, but not exceeding = FEETBBMNE
four years 3,959,193 494,904
More than four years, but not exceeding
five years MOERETBBRF 3,633,595 3,959,232
11,184,138 8,376,248
Less: Amount due within one year shown R BIAREB B ER —F NI
under current liabilities 7 RIE (2,601,552) (3,427,208)
Amount due after one year —FRBE 2 HIE 8,582,586 4,949,040
* Bank borrowings amounting to approximately HK$601.6 million * #7601,600,0008 TR TR H(ZZ — XN F:
(2016: HK$441.8 million) contained repayment on demand clauses. 441,800,000 7T) B & BR BIREFEIR K -

MEEREEERAIE —T—tFFR



24. Bank Borrowings (continued)

Variable rate borrowings comprise:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B#5R &M ()
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

24.

RITEE ()

FREERS

Carrying amount

BREE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
HK$ bank loans at Hong Kong Interbank BITIRITER - BB RITRZE
Offered Rate (“"HIBOR") + 0.81% FEMFL 081 BB O
per annum® 6,948,991 7,934,431
HK$ bank loans at HIBOR + 0.85% BITIRITER - REBRITAZ
per annum®@ FEINF R 0.85 EFE @ 3,633,595 -
US$ bank loans at London Interbank Offered ZETiRITE R » IR IERTTRIZE
Rate (“LIBOR") + 0.65% per annum® FEMFEL 0.65 B2 0O - 31,363
Euro ("EUR") bank loans at Euro Interbank BRRIRITET - IRENRITRIE
Offered Rate ("EURIBOR") + 0.65% FEMFE 0.65EHE O
per annum® 166,842 24,912
Japanese Yen ("JPY") bank loans at ATRTER  RGBIERITRE
LIBOR + 0.65% per annum® FEMFS 0.65EFTE® 434,710 385,542
Total bank borrowings R1TEEERE 11,184,138 8,376,248

m The bank borrowings comprised HK$7 billion (2016: approximately Ul

HK$8 billion) and were setoff by approximately a HK$51.0 million
(2016: HK$65.6 million) amortized upfront arrangement fee paid
to financial institution. The amount is repayable in four years (2016:
five years) and interest rates will be repriced every one month to
three months.

The bank borrowings comprised approximately HK$3.7 billion and
were setoff by approximately HK$57.4 million of amortized upfront
arrangement fees paid to a financial institution. The amount is
repayable in five years and interest rates will be repriced every
one month to three months.

Repayable in one year and interest rates will be repriced one
month to three months.

The range of effective interest rates of the borrowings is 1.15%
to 1.85% (2016: 1.02% to 1.53%) per annum.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had undrawn

&)

I ER7TE F 4% 7,000,000,000 8 70 (= F — <4 ¢
#98,000,000,0007& 7T, ) + W HIE B M R1T X+ &
51238 (E49 51,000,000 8 TTIRITEA (22— X
& 1656000004 70) c W BHRRMFE(ZZ
—~"F:RAF)NEE MAXER-—EZ=@EA=
HEE -

It #8717 B 5B #E 49 3,700,000,000 8 7T » A HEE
MR 1T 32+ I 85 1% 33 {8 49 57,400,000 78 T #R 17
BR - WEETRAFREERE  mAXSR—Z
“EAEHERE -

ER—FREE mMAEEER-—E==EASHN

ERFORITERBARRMELER - BEER
FEBENTFFENISER18E(ZT—RF
1.02[EZE153E) »

RHREPHSEER > AEBZ AR RRRTRER

borrowing facilities as follows: IERONNE
2017 2016
s —E-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAET
Floating rate N
— expiring beyond one year — —F 1% % HA 8,098,998 1,936,983
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25. Bonds

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %8 Bl #5353 (48)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

25. &%
2017 2016
—E—+tF —EREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Carrying amount repayable: FEEZAREE ¢
Within one year —FNEE - 3,879,914
More than four years, but not more than BB EETERARF
five years 2,324,490 -
After five years AR F 2,313,151 4,601,335
4,637,641 8,481,249
US$500,000,000 bond with a fixed coupon rate 500,000,000 ZE &% @ EE
of 5.25% per annum, payable semi-annually, EEFEFEE 5.25% + BHF
maturing in January 2017 YK BEEZT—tF
—REHALE - 3,879,914
US$300,000,000 bond with a fixed coupon rate 300,000,000 ETTES @ BT
of 4.25% per annum, payable semi-annually, EEFEFER 4.25% « GHF
maturing in October 2022 Y=k BEEZZE-—F
+ AR AL 2,324,490 2,306,231
US$300,000,000 bond with a fixed coupon rate 300,000,000 EciES + ElE
of 4.50% per annum, payable semi-annually, EEENKE 450%  FHF
maturing in June 2025 Y=k BEEZTE-RF
NAREALLE 2,313,151 2,295,104
4,637,641 8,481,249

In January and March 2012, LS Finance (2017) Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, concluded a public offering
of the US$350,000,000 and US$150,000,000 bonds respectively
(equivalent to approximately HK$3,875,000,000 in aggregate).
The bonds carry a fixed coupon rate of 5.25% per annum,
payable semi-annually in arrears. The first tranche bond, issued
at discount, has an effective interest rate of 5.54% per annum,
whereas the second tranche bond, issued at premium, has an
effective interest rate of 4.70% per annum. The principal amount
of the bonds issued under the first and second tranche are
repayable 5 years from the date of issue of the first tranche of
the bonds, i.e. January 2017 and are unconditionally and
irrevocably guaranteed by the Company.

In October 2012, LS Finance (2022) Limited, another wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, concluded a public offering
of the US$300,000,000 bonds (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,325,000,000). The bonds carry a fixed coupon rate of 4.25%
per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. The bonds, issued
at discount, have an effective interest rate of 4.43% per annum.
The principal amount of the bonds is repayable 10 years from
the date of issue of the bonds, i.e. October 2022 and are
unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by the Company.

RZZE——F—AK=ZA ALENZ2ENEA
A]LS Finance (2017) Limited 2 3 17 2 #l A
350,000,000 3 7t & 150,000,000 3 7T 2 & % (44 %8
Z{E#)/53,875,000,000587T) © &5 2 Bl ZmF
FEABS25%  BEFIAF—IK - F—HEHMU
PrigBa1T ERFFNEREB554%  mE_HE
FRAILUHEETT  BERFEMNER470% £ —H#t
HE—HEHFNASHEEUE—MELFZETH
HztEMEFEEEE N-_Z2—+5—F  ¥A
AN RIEE M A B R ER o

RZZE—ZF+A AEEHS—2EWB AR
LS Finance (2022) Limited & 2£77 300,000,000 3 7T
2 fEH (5{E#A2,325000,00087T) - EH 2 E
EEMEMNE RIS  BYFIHT—K-EH
LAITREET BERFMNERLILAZ% - EFHR
SREENESF BITHRFT BN TFERER
M-—T=—F+AH  XERHANAREBEKERT
AT E L ERELR o

MEEREEERAIE —T—tFFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B#5R &M ()
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

25. Bonds (continued) 25. &% ()

In June 2015, LS Finance (2025) Limited, another wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, concluded a public offering of the
US$300,000,000 bonds (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,325,000,000). The bonds carry a fixed coupon rate of 4.50%
per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. The bonds, issued
at discount, have an effective interest rate of 4.70% per annum.
The principal amount of the bonds is repayable 10 years from
the date of issue of the bonds, i.e. June 2025 and are
unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by the Company.

The purpose of the bonds is to satisfy funding requirements for
the capital expenditure relating to store renovation and new
department store projects. The bonds are subject to
redemption, in whole but not in part, at their principal amounts,
together with interest accrued to the date of redemption, at the
option of LS Finance (2017) Limited, LS Finance (2022) Limited
and LS Finance (2025) Limited at any time in the event of certain
changes affecting taxes of the British Virgin Islands and the
Cayman Islands. The Bonds also contain a provision for
redemption at the option of the bondholders at 101% of the
principal amount of each bond, together with interest accrued
to the date for redemption, upon a change of controlling
shareholder with respect to LS Finance (2017) Limited, LS
Finance (2022) Limited or LS Finance (2025) Limited.
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26. Deferred Tax Liabilities 26. EEHIEERE

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised UTREERZTEREREBBURRAFE
and movements thereon during the current and prior years: KiaTFEmnE
Distributable
LAT on fair  profits of PRC

Accelerated

Revaluation of

value change

subsidiaries,

tax investment  of investment associates and
depreciation properties properties  a joint venture Total
FEIREATE
REMELNTE BEARR
RBE REME BT —BEELEZ
neE BHfEE BER A EFIE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT FET FTET FET
At 1 January 2016 RZF—~¥—HA—H 53,620 56,485 99,993 23922 234,020
Exchange adjustments [E & HE - (3,255) (5,762) - (9,017)
Charge to profit or loss PR 11,601 - - 9710 21,311
Charge to other FAHMZEEUA
comprehensive income - 46,661 - - 46,661
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR
(note 29(b)) (3% 29(b)) 439 - - (33,632 (33,193)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF+=HA
=t+—H 65,660 99,891 94,231 - 259,782
Exchange adjustments R - 814 1,441 - 2,255
Charge to profit or loss RIEEMR (3L 10)
(note 10) 21,479 139,083 - - 160,562
Disposal of subsidiaries HEREAR)
(note 29(a)) (PHEE 29(a)) - (54,044) (95,672) - (149,716)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF
+ZA=+—H 87,139 185,744 - - 272,883
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax RBEHEEED  NEEGAHBERIEERY

losses of approximately HK$268.6 million (2016: approximately
HK$345.5 million) available for offset against future profits. No
deferred tax asset was recognised in respect of tax losses for
year ended 31 December 2016 due to unpredictability of future
profit streams. Tax losses in Hong Kong may be carried forward

268,600,0007% 7T ( —F — 754 ¢ £9345,500,000 %
TR RERERREN - R-FT—RF+=-A
=t—B BHRBEREFRSEATEN - B &
MU EERERAETEHAEE - BENMAR
BBERGATEREE - MAETRELENNBA
BEAZ RERBIRBESEN T F 0T H

indefinitely. The unrecognised tax losses arising from
subsidiaries operating in the PRC will expire as follows:

MEEREEERAIE —T—tFFR
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26. Deferred Tax Liabilities (continued)

26. EEHIARE (K)

2017 2016
Tax losses expiring in REFEIHZEH —E—+F —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi#n FHT
2017 —T—+tF - 11,479
2018 —E-N\F - 11,920
2019 —ZE-NF - 9,585
2020 —E-ETF - 9,304
2021 —T-—F - 9,485
- 51,773
27. Share Capital 27. B& *
Details of the changes in the Company’s share capital during BEXFRSGF  ARAIZBRAEBFEOT
both years are as follows:
Number
of shares Amount
RBEE IE
HK$'000
FET
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each as at RZZE—RE—-A—H8"
1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 and —E-RFt+-A=T—HK
31 December 2017 —T—+F+-A=+—H
FAREE 0.005 BTz Tl 4,000,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRHR
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 and RZZ—R_"F—HF—AH"
31 December 2017 —E-RFTZA=t—HRK
“E—+H+-A=+—8 1,602,586,500 8,013
28. Statutory Surplus Reserve 28. EEERBRLESE

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign
investment enterprises in the PRC, the Company’s PRC
subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of their respective
after-tax profits as reflected in the statutory financial statements
of the PRC subsidiaries to the statutory surplus reserve until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. The
statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up prior year
losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion into capital by
means of capitalisation, provided that such reserve fund is

maintained at a minimum of 25% of the registered capital.
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for the year ended 31 December 2017 = —%

29. Disposal of Subsidiaries

(a)

As disclosed in note 1 and note 13(a) above, the Group (a)
completed the disposal of its entire equity interest
holdings in Lifestyle Properties Group on 13 April 2017.

The assets and liabilities disposed of at the Disposal Date

—tFE+ A=+ —HLFE

29. HEMBQHR

TR EE R E Y 2 AP AAE

TR LA B R R B EE 13(2) AT BR
RoT— ti@ﬂwL A5Enk & ERF)

REEE

PHER(THERDHEZEERAEN

("Disposal Date") are disclosed below: T
HK$'000
FHET
Investment properties REYEE 640,435
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB NEs 162,821
Prepaid lease payments TR THERIE 568,303
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 51 TERR R E AR GRIE 2,770
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss IR AF(EF AERE 2 S RVEE 102,966
Bank balances and cash RITHEFERIAES 412,322
Other payables and accrued charges H fth B K JEET FRIE (11,107)
Taxation payable JESIIR (156,695)
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIER & (149,716)
Non-controlling interests SEFE IR = (605,946)
Net assets disposed of HEZHEE 966,153
Consideration received BHARE 1,292,986
Transaction costs attributable to the disposal HEZ RS (8,168)
Net consideration received B EFRE 1,284,818
Less: Net assets disposed of B HEZEEFE (966,153)
Reclassification of cumulative translation reserve REEEFHDEETIEE Y
upon disposal to profit or loss ZIEE F iR 102,178
Gain on disposal &2 e 420,843
Net cash inflow (outflow) arising on disposal: EHEEEZFRESRA L) -
Net cash consideration received B EFRE 1,284,818
Bank balances and cash disposed of HEREZRITETRRS (412,322)
872,496
FEEREEBRAT = +EFFR
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for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

29. Disposal of Subsidiaries (continued)
(b)  As disclosed in note 1 and note 13(b) above, Lifestyle
China Group companies ceased to be subsidiaries of the
Company upon the distribution of the entire issue share
capital of Lifestyle China to the Company’s shareholders
on 14 July 2016 as a special interim dividend by way of a
distribution in specie.

The net assets of Lifestyle China Group on the date of

29. HEMBQTE (&)

(b)

ALA M RFEE130) PR EE - R
—ANEELA+TEA ARBRARB KR
NEMD RS A0 KMEREO2EC %
TTRA - MERFHISRIRE - BUtHFtE
TREEEQARTBARNARZMB AR -

REWDYIRE  FERPEKREZEEFE

distribution in specie are disclosed below: W
HK$'000
FA&T
Property, plant and equipment W B MR 4,155,177
Prepaid lease payments TERTEE A 2,812,293
Interests in associates NI 3,362,524
Interest in a joint venture R—FRa&ErEER 472,014
Properties under development ERTYE 793,252
Deferred tax assets RAET A A FE 439
Inventories ey 37,964
Trade and other receivables JFEUBR TR S EL A e W R IE 161,221
Amount due from a joint venture Y —ME &R EERIE 34,920
Bank balances and cash RITEFMIRS 2,062,996
Trade and other payables FEASTRR SR E b B 5 5B (1,032,045)
Amount due to a joint venture e —M&&RFENIE (18,905)
Tax payable JETIR (27,773)
Bank borrowings RITIEE (1,157,489
Deferred tax liabilities BETIEEE (33,632)
Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of RENE AT —RBIFERARR
subsidiaries ZEK (128,82¢6)
Net assets attributable to Lifestyle China Group REYIKAE - FE+ SRR
at the date of distribution in specie MEEFE 11,494,130
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR (1,435,624)
Net assets distributed under distribution in specie  LAE¥ DK A D IR 2 EEFE 10,058,506
Cash outflows on distribution: RoFRHIRSRE
Bank balances and cash SRITHEFENIES 2,062,996
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30. Operating Leases REHEY

The Group as lessee AEBEREBAA
2017 2016
—T—tF —T-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
(Restated)
(&51)

Minimum lease payments paid under FRBBEERNBMNZ
operating leases during the year: ARFAFIA

Other assets H & E - 397
Leasehold land and buildings HE L REF 71,600 39,174
71,600 39,571

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group incurred
HK$57,829,000 (2016: HK$51,767,000) of contingent rents which

were based on a certain percentage of sales.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases (fixed rent only) which fall due as follows:

HE—T— t¢+ A=Z+—RHILtEE  A&E
REEETE D LIRS A 57,829,000
(=T — /\E : 51,767,000 7T)

RBEPREER  AEER T RHEEHELY
ZFAERERRERENTIE(RREEHES)HR
THIFEHEIE

2017 2016

—E—+t5F NS

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHET

Within one year —F R 75,432 72,019
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFEFLFE(PREEME) 313,886 304,950
Over five years BBeARF 45,703 127,512
435,021 504,481

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its leasehold land and buildings amounting

to HK$435,021,000 (2016: HK$504,481,000).

KB BERASEREE £ 10
¥ B E 3% 435,021,000 T ( — & — X &
504,481,000 7T) °

MEEREEERAIE —T—tFFR



30. Operating Leases (continued)

The Group as lessee (continued)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for leasing commercial properties and other assets which
represent machinery. Rentals payable are predetermined at
fixed amounts except for certain leases of which contingent
rentals are charged based on a certain percentage of sales.
Leases are generally negotiated for terms ranging from one to
five years and rentals are fixed for terms ranging from one to
two years except for the following:

(@) Lease of the Elegance at the Sheraton Hotel at the
junction of Nathan Road and Salisbury Road, Kowloon by
Sogo HK for the period from 15 July 2014 to 14 July 2023.

(b)  Prior to the completion of the Spin-off during the year
ended 31 December 2016, the lease of Shanghai Joinbuy
Cityplaza by Shanghai Ongoing Department Store
Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
for the period from 1 October 2004 to 30 September 2024,
with an option to renew for a further 10 years upon the
request from Shanghai Ongoing Department Store
Limited in not less than 12 months before the expiry of the

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B#5R &M ()
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

30. &ML (A

AEBEEREEA ()
REMNTEEAEERBRAREDELEBE
ECAM#E) BN 2 e - MENZESRIFEER
BEMTEE BT —LRBHEERLOSESM
W EY - B —RIZEEH =R FH
i HEEERNE-—EMFEE - A THEL
BRI

@ SHEB)IIVBBANERIERG LT
BRMEXARZEREBEZBOA-ZT
—ME+A+RABE T =+ A+HW
E| o

b) HEEHE-ZT—AF+-_A=Z+—BLEFE
ADRTRA - ARAFE2EMB AR L
BANBRERABAMIVAEBLEESNE
W ES Y Mfma -—TETNFE+ A
—HE-_ZE-_NFEHLA=1+H fJREE
—SEHTFE BLEEBAXEERRAQA
BEMEHREmI TR+ Z@EARRE

R o

lease terms.
The Group as lessor AEEEREBEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted RBEHEAER  AEEEHBEPFIANBR

with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: RIEBLHFAMAT
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT T
Within one year —F R 1,811 2,542
In the second to fifth year inclusive BE_EZFNF(PREEREMF) 958 1,847
2,769 4,389

Leases are generally negotiated for terms ranging from one year
to three years.

In addition, the Group contracted with its concessionaires and
tenants to receive contingent rentals based on the
concessionaires’ turnover for terms ranging from one to two
years.
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31.

32.

Capital and Other Commitments

31. EXRHAMAERE

2017 2016

—E—tF —T-RE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET THET
Capital and other expenditure in respect of BT AR ERE I TSRS
acquisition of property, plant and ZBRBAME - BB RERE
equipment and property development M ERIBE 2 BN REAM

project contracted for but not provided in Bz
the consolidated financial statements 1,188,826 237,929

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy
remains unchanged from the prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes the bank borrowings and bonds disclosed in notes 24
and 25, respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital, retained profits and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
regular basis. As part of this review, the directors of the
Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors of the Company, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or
the redemption of existing debt.

32. EXEmER

AEEEEBEEER  RASE 2 BBEMER
B REBREERREAGLR  Ah
REREDR - AEE 2 BBREEEFER -

AEE 2 ERREREER (BEN 242555
ZHRITEERES) HBRBRERBRLFEMAR
RRAREAAEE#ER(BEDBETRA - ®REE
M E M) -

ARREETFRRFEAZRIE - (FRZIRAT 2 — 8
7 BEGEREARABEFENRBZREL o
REBEARREE 2 ER  AREMHEBRMEE -
BEATRR S An FE R A Ko 37T (E skl IR A (E TR
VAP E RS A AR I00E -

MEEREEERAIE —T—tFFR
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33. Financial Instruments

33. &@IT A

Categories of financial instruments LRI AEER
2017 2016
ZE—tF ZEREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Financial assets EMEE
Financial assets at FVTPL (note 21) BAFEFABGZEMEE
(BF=E21) 3,349,047 2,440,605
Financial assets measured at amortised cost TREESHAK A GTE 2 S RIEE
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BERE MBS EY) 7,509,963 7,661,437
Financial liabilities = N=L
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost R EK AT E 7 CRIBE 16,628,576 17,666,184
Financial risk management objectives and policies BRERETEENRBE

The Group's major financial instruments include bank balances
and cash, financial assets at FVTPL, trade and other receivables,
trade and other payables, concessionaire sales payables, bank
borrowings and bonds. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

The functional currency of the Company and its major
subsidiaries in Hong Kong is the HK$ in which most of the
transactions are denominated. For subsidiaries that provide
financing functions for the Group, their functional currency is the
US$.

The Group has certain bank balances which are denominated in
US$ and RMB (being currencies other than the functional
currency of the respective group entity) amounting to
approximately HK$1,234,489,000 (2016: HK$5,657,904,000) and
HK$25,920,000 (2016: HK$30,300,000), respectively. Furthermore,
the Group has certain bank borrowings which are denominated
in EUR, JPY and US$ (being currencies other than the functional
currency of the respective group entity) amounting to
approximately HK$166,842,000 (2016: HK$24,912,000),
HK$434,710,000 (2016: HK$385,542,000) and Nil (2016:
HK$31,363,000), respectively.
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SRk
ARRAREERIEWNBRARZNRERRE
T BPREDRGAETEE - ETRHEME
DB AR 2R RET -

AREEBETUETLRARBTENRITER (£
EEEONEEE U Z2EE) 535l
1,234,489,00078 7T (= Z —754F : 5,657,904,000 7%
JT) % 25,920,000 7t ( == — 754 © 30,300,000
BIL) o BN - AEBAETIUARE - BILRETT
(EEERNIHE S AN ) HERITE
B 9 51166,842,000% t( = & — X F:
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33. Financial Instruments (continued) 33. £RTE (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Currency risk (continued)

In addition, certain financial assets at FVTPL are denominated in
US$, EUR, British Pounds (“GBP"), JPY and RMB (being
currencies other than the functional currency of the respective
group entity) amounting to approximately HK$1,283,345,000
(2016: HK$1,100,032,000), HK$248,673,000 (2016:
HK$98,326,000), HK$19,658,000 (2016: Nil), HK$527,718,000
(2016: HK$388,840,000) and Nil (2016: HK$8,118,000),
respectively.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Notwithstanding HK$ is effectively pegged to US$ under the
pegged exchange rate system in Hong Kong, given the Group's
large amount of net liabilities denominated in US$, the Group is
still exposure to the exchange risk of US$ against HK$ within the
band of US$1 to HK$7.75 and 7.85. The Group is hence exposed
to foreign currency risk of US$/RMB/EUR/GBP/JPY against the
HK$ and in the opinion of the directors of the Company, other
foreign currency risks are not significant to the consolidated
financial statements.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change of 0.5% for exchange rate of US$
against HK$ (2016: 0.5%), and 3% (2016: 3%) for the exchange
rate of RMB/EUR/GBP/JPY against the HK$, while all other
variables are held constant. Those sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to the key management
personnel and represents the management'’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign currency rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the
end of the reporting period for a 0.5% (2016: 0.5%) change in
US$ against HK$ and a 3% (2016: 3%) change in RMB/EUR/GBP/
JPY against HK$. A positive number below indicates an increase
in profit for the year where the HK$ weakens against the relevant
foreign currency. Where the HK$ strengthens against the
relevant foreign currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the post-tax profit for the year and the balances
below would be negative.

B 5 R B B TR O R BRER (AR

HhiE L B (48)

BEON - AETE C AR - B - T BLRA
Eﬁ%(%@‘a;%;mmaaia%mémm\z&%)::'ﬂamﬁ
AFEFAEZNETEREE 7
1,283,345,000/8 7L (= Z — /< fF 1,100,032,000,%55
TT) ~ 248,673,000 7T ( = & — 7 4F ¢ 98,326,000
P& T0 )~ 19,658,000/ (=T — N F o | )
527,718,000/ 7T (= Z —7<4F : 388,840,000/ /1)
MEBT(ZZT—/RF £ 8,118,000 7T) °

AEERBLWIEIEIRE - AT ERES
EHNEMM - SN BB E B EAINER

& o
v

REBTERSHEE RS THEETEN - &R
AEEEREUETHENFAERE  AEEDE
EESI e Pl = el %ﬁﬁ7.75—7.85/%75|£?ﬁ
ZEB AEERALEHET ARE B
B®ERE/ATRBTRETLAREHINER
% MARREFRA  HMIMNERBRYIERE N
BHRERIWEBERTE -

TRANAEBRETHB L ZEXRTRELE
05%( =T —NE:05%) URARK &
BHREE /AL BT ZERAIAEHE30% (=
T—XF 3.0%) RIEEPF 2 HERE MR

HEBBIFETE - MEEEIEABRIPERING
J—LﬁMﬁvHﬂﬁﬁHEZ%GI\’%HA*ﬁﬁﬁ MREREE
[EHHNEETE R AT GE A 3 “EJ)E’].:HE BERE DT
BERFERRUINEEENEBHIER - WA
0.5%(=ZF—/R"F : 0.5%)EETLHABTKR3.0%(=
T—NF  30%)EARE B, %8,/ BtH
BT EEITIAE o THESKRRBILESINE
MERFES - FEEBFMIEM ERBTLHZINEE
RIGHE - HFEMNGREREFN B2 AEESERAR
VE  FTIERY BRE -
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33. Financial Instruments (continued) 33. ¢TI A (H)
Financial risk management objectives and policies BEREREEB N REBER (&)
(continued)
Currency risk (continued) Shig B (4])

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—HA=+—HLEE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZTREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
US$ against HK$ ETLHABT (8,851) (7,325)
RMB against HK$ ARBH BT 649 962
EUR against HK$ BRZEH BT 2,090 1,839
GBP against HK$ EEHAETT 492 -
JPY against HK$ HITHAET 2,339 83
In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is BEERE ARTABZRBIEREFRE
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the % o IERE AT TR R E B INERE
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
year.
Interest rate risk F 2= @k
The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to AEEREEBNETEMNEETERERREFEE
fixed-rate bank deposits and fixed coupon rate bonds (2016: A XREEEMEATEFNZRRE - (ZF—XF :
fixed-rate bank deposits and fixed coupon rate bonds). The BEFEBITTEHES  BIEZ@mARES) - &
Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk relating to EESFEEBRTSRTEAREEEERERE
the Group's variable-rate bank deposits and bank borrowings. ) 2% [ By o 7N B2 (B 3R B 4 (E ] ) SR SR o
The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging R BEEBCELRMZXER  IRFTEREE
policy. However, the management monitors interest rate Y EE AR K& S o

exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.
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33. ERMIAA)

33. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group's sensitivity to cash flow interest rate risk has been
determined based on the exposure to interest rates for bank
borrowings (excluding the specific bank borrowings for
construction purposes) at the end of the reporting period and
the reasonably possible change taking place at the beginning of
each year and held constant throughout the year. A 50 basis
points (2016: 50 basis points) increase or decrease is used for
variable-rate balances when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.
The Group's sensitivity to interest rate risk at the end of the
reporting period while all other variables were held constant
after taking into account the impact of the tax and finance costs
capitalised in construction in progress and investment property
under development is as follows:

B 5 R B B TR O R BRER (AR

M=k ()

AEEBERSRAMTE L 2 BEE - THIREBER®R
EPRMEERRITEE (TRESECRITEEE
EERR) AEREBEFNARMAIERIRZE
MAREFRFIEET - FRNETZEBRAEAR
BEE R M) < @ B p - SOMEIEEBE (—F — /R4 : 505
B 12 hnskoR 4 ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ&%%ﬁ? WRKREEE
HRIEARE R BB EHRTL - A EMEEE
AR KEERBARMNSENMENERTIZR
EREREMER AEERBREHREERAE R
ERBEREMNT

Year ended 31 December

E+tZA=+t—HLHFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —ET—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT

(Decrease) increase in post-tax profit for the year & RERFL 1% F Rl ) 18 0
— as a result of increase in interest rate — A= FFH (19,139) (7,694)
— as a result of decrease in interest rate — HRFIETEF 19,139 7,694

In management'’s opinion, the sensitivity is unrepresentative of
the inherent interest rate risk as the year end exposure does not
reflect the exposure during the year.

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as at 31
December 2017 in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position. In order to
minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
formulated a defined fixed credit policy and delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
receivable regularly at the end of the reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced. Retail sales
are mainly on a cash basis, either in cash, debit card or credit
card payments.

ERERA  ARFHHZ RIS R AR
o BRERE S ITE AR EG N EER

EERE

RZE—+F+ZA=+—H XEEHRHEFH
REBTHEAMRSENECRASHEERY
ZEmEERE  EREMBRARMMLZEE
EZHREE - AREREEERR  AEEER
EE%‘JEEHTJEZEEEEFEBZ” WEE—HEA
5 HEETEERSE UREEBIETHAM
ﬁ*"“kf NHEREREFBAMEE 2B S
H e o REEGNREBEAEE B E B
FIREREKERZ T OS5 - AR TR
WEIFRIEVEH R HREEE - Bt - ARAIES
R AEBZEERBRERERD - TEHE
FEURS#ET AIURS  RERIEARN
e

MEEREEERAIE —T—tFFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B33k =M= (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

33. Financial Instruments (continued) 33. @I AE(E)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies or government authorities.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in
relation to trade and other receivables, with exposure spread
over a number of counterparties and customers.

Price risk

The Group's financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of the reporting period. Therefore, the Group is
exposed to price risk. The management manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risk
profiles. Details of the financial assets at FVTPL are set out in
note 21.

The Group's sensitivity to price risk on the financial assets at
FVTPL at the end of the reporting period while all other variables
were held constant is as follows:

B EBREE R HREE (F)

EERE(E)
HREFHOAERREREIARESEETIR
ZIRITRBATHRE - ORBER 2 EERRER -

REELEA B AL EE R R R E A R
H o BROBMRRZRZHFRER -

ERERE
AEBRATFEFABRGZEREEDRBEH
MEERZ A TFEFE - Bt AEEEHER
k- EEEEREFATARR 2REEE N
ERRERRE - HAFEFABEZEMEELZ
FHBEDRIEPMIFE21

EHMBHEFTET  AEERREHEEE
BEEATEFABREZEREEZBRERK
BT

HK$'000
F#ET
2017 —E—+tF
Reasonably possible change in price BI&ZAIREEIEEE) 5%
Increase (decrease) in post-tax profit for the year FRRBERIBEMN OfRd)
— as a result of increase in price — HPERIE N 156,978
— as a result of decrease in price — BERERELD (156,978)
2016 —E-XREF
Reasonably possible change in price Eig 2 g e B 5%
Increase (decrease) in post-tax profit for the year FRBRFZEFIEM CRd)
— as a result of increase in price — ERAMEBIZ N 115,094
— as a result of decrease in price — APMEE IR (115,094)
Liquidity risk REBE LR

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and
ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings and bonds as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2017, the Group had
available unutilised borrowing facilities of approximately
HK$8,099.0 million (2016: HK$1,937.0 million). Details of bank
borrowings are set out in note 24.
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for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

33. Financial Instruments (continued) 33. @RI A (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies BSEMRERE B M RBEK (&)
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBESRE (&)
The following table details the Group's remaining contractual TREJASEFRTECRBER TN
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has He PROVEBASEAEEERER KRR
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of B LemaEsERRSRERT -
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay.
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the TRERINFERESREER - EFERAZH
extent that interest flows are of floating rate, the undiscounted FE - BRIR SRR B AEREHRONF SRR -
amount is derived from an interest rate curve at the end of the
reporting period.
In addition, the following table details the Group's liquidity gboh  TREAVNAREENTES R T AN REIE
analysis for its derivative financial instruments. The tables have D - RRBEFEBEEZNTETARKERR
been drawn up based on the undiscounted gross (inflows) and (RN RRHETE eEMNSBIAET  HES
outflows on those derivatives that require gross settlement. B2 ETER R R GOE R (e RS BARIB A 7 %ok
When the amount payable is not fixed, the amount disclosed ERFUR)EE - AEBNTESR T ENRSE
has been determined by reference to the projected interest SWEREHINEE  AREEERR &K
rates/exchange rates as illustrated by the interest rate/exchange HEHTHRITETANRSRERHIETEE -
rate existing at the end of the reporting period. The liquidity
analysis for the Group's derivative financial instruments are
prepared based on the contractual maturities as the
management considers that the contractual maturities are
essential for an understanding of the timing of the cash flows of
derivatives.
Liquidity and interest risk tables MEE 2 KA E AR
Weighted
average  On demand/ Total
effective less than 13 3months 15 Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year years Syears  cash flows amount
mETs  RER/ BERR
ERRE  -@AR  -EZ@A ZEAE-E -EEf  ERUL BeiE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TR TER TEL TER TR TER TR
31 December 2017 “E-tEtB=1-A
Non-derivative financial liabilities 374 $BAE
Trade and other payables BB REbRMAFE - 745,636 38,359 22,802 - - 806,797 806,797
Bank borrowings — variable rate RITRE-TEHE
(note a) (GES) 191% 2,622,964 21,695 129,085 9,155,249 - 11934993 11,184,138
Bonds 5 4.38% - - 182,211 3163050 2,606,588 5951849 4,637,641
3,368,600 66,054 334,098 12318299 2,606,588 18,693,639 16,628,576
Derivative — gross settlement ITETE—2REE
Written put options g
— Qutflow note b) — il (H3tb) 169,049 142,714 - - - 311,763 34,057

MEEREEERAIE —T—tFFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B33k =M= (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

33. Financial Instruments (continued) 33. €I A&
Financial risk management objectives and policies BRRER RN RBEK (&)
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REES AR (E)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued) B EERFEREBE (E)
Weighted
average  On demand/ Total
effective less than -3 3months 1-5 Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year years Syears  cash flows amount
il 202! RE%/ IR
Gk AR -Z=@R ZEAE-% —Zn% RENE Reng FAE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TEL T TET T TER T TER
31 December 2016 —EB-RE+tZAZt-R
Non-derivative financial liabilities {7 4REE
Trade and other payables ERERREMERNE - 753,665 32,366 22,656 - - 808,687 808,687
Bank borrowings —variable rate  S{TfeE —ZHFIR
(note a) (Mtzta) 151% 3451014 12,519 58,633 5,246,300 - 8,768,526 8,376,248
Bonds % 4.94% 3,981,850 - 203,700 814,800 5121,600 10,121,950 8,481,249
8,186,529 44945 284,989 6,061,100 5121600 19,699,163 17,606,184
Derivative — gross settlement fTETE—BERER
Written put options AnE
— Outflow note b) — it (fb) 189,112 167,683 - - - 356,795 30011
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—tFE+ A=+ —HLFE

33. Financial Instruments (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or less than 1 month” time band in
the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2017, the
aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of these bank loans
amounted to HK$601.6 million (2016: HK$441.8 million). Taking
into account the Group's financial position, the directors of the
Company do not believe that it is probable that the banks will
exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. The directors of the Company believe that such bank
loans will be repaid within one year from the end of the reporting
period in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out
in the loan agreements. At that time, the aggregate principal and
interest cash outflows will amount to HK$601.8 million (2016:
HK$441.8 million).

The amount included above for written put options is the
maximum amount the Group is obliged to settle under the written
put option arrangements if the underlying index or ETF go to zero
upon the exercise or expiry of the written put options. Certain
written put options amounting to HK$77,934,000 (2016:
HK$77,196,000) are included in the “on demand or less than 1
month” time band in the above maturity analysis as those options
could be exercised at any time before the expiration dates. The
remaining written put options are included in the respective time
bands according to the expiration dates of the options since the
options could only be exercised on those dates. Based on
expectations at the end of the reporting period, the Group
considers that it is very unlikely that such an amount will be
payable under the written put option arrangements as the chance
of the index or ETF dropping to zero is remote. However, this
estimate is subject to change depending on the market volatility
of underlying index and ETF of the written put options, and final
settlement price of the options along with other factors.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject to
change if changes in variable interest rates differ from the
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.

33. #@ITH

(&)

B 5 R B B TR O R BRER (AR

REE SR (H)
TBEE RS ERE ()

BT -

(a)

J:Y?fﬁﬁﬁié%ﬂ%ﬁ

’

MR ESGE RIERMIBITIE B Ll R 5
BAEERK—EAZANEE R_T—+tF
+=A —+— H ZSFEUBBHRTER
A& D B A 601,600,000 T( —F — N F
441,800,000/§7E) ZRIRNEEOE MR
EERERTTSTERBRERARGER L

MEE - ARAREZTRAALNEBESRHIER
iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁkt FRNERBRERBENERBHE

cERAFHNASHFEREREE A
601,800,000;% Jo( = F — X : 441,800,000
JT) e

%%ﬂi%@iaﬁlﬁ%%wﬁﬁm FHR - anAAREE Bk
RHGMEBESHKET  LileEARNEERR
E@iﬁﬁﬂﬁéémﬁﬁ%%axzrkﬁgﬁo %?f“
877,934,000 7T RoF HE( =T — X §F:
77,196,000 7T) B AiRH RN —EA A
RZERE R A B B AT AR RTE o &
ﬁfﬁ 2on R AR IR HAE R HA B D B E AT A R #

C R RN B BT - REBER®E

Eﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ—ﬁﬁ CEEREBRERRIMEEESS
ETHNRERM AEERSRERLHES

B E AR B IERIE - AT B A
SERERERMIER R SMEBEES 25
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B33k =M= (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

33. Financial Instruments (continued) 33. @@ I A (E)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments SRMIAZATENE
Fair value of the Group'’s financial assets and financial liabilities AEFEH RN FEAENTHEERTHE
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis Bz AFE
Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at fair value AEBETHSREEETFEARSHREIRAF
at the end of each reporting period. The following table gives Bif2 - TRIEHEBNNETELEESREERN
information about how the fair values of these financial assets DEE(LERGETENEROBALE) o
are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and
inputs used).
Fair value
Financial assets Fair value as at hierarchy Valuation technique(s) and key input(s)
AT
tREE AFER SORE HEFENTERANSE
31.12.2017 31.12.2016
“E—iF —ERF
+2A=+-8 | 12B=1-H
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET
Financial assets at FVTPL
BATESABEZSRER
1. Listed equity securities 2,442,198 1,605,903  Level 1 Quoted bid prices in active markets.
FHRE g4 WERTSTHEAE -
2. Listed debt securities 8,743 8,117  Level2 Quoted prices in over-the-counter markets.
iilivn Eh= BN S TIHIRE
3. Listed investment funds 506,250 452,836 Level 2 Quoted market prices provided by brokers which
are financial institutions. (note a)
IikEES Fh- ERIES RS R BRENTIZER - (i a)
4. Unlisted hedge funds 153,648 61,440  Level 2 Quoted market prices provided by brokers which
are financial institutions. (note a)
FIEES Fh- ERE R RBBRENTISER - (i a)
5. Unlisted investment portfolios 158,130 282,298  Level2 Quoted market prices provided by brokers which
are financial institutions. (note a)
FrmREAS EH= ERBRNSREBRIENTISER - (M a)
6. Written put options 34,057 30011 Level2 Quoted prices in over-the-counter markets.
R HE Eh- HIR S TIHHIIRE
7. Unlisted equity-linked notes 46,021 - Level2 Quoted prices in over-the-counter markets.
3 P RRERMAES = BN G TIHHRE -
Note: BteE -
(@)  Quoted market prices provided by brokers which are financial () ERKENHSMEBRHNTISERDIRKRATE

institutions represent the net asset value of the respective funds,
based on the quoted prices of the underlying investments,
reported to the trustee by the administrators.

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during both
years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %8 Bl #5353 (48)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

33. Financial Instruments (continued) 33. @I AE(E)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Except as detailed in the following table, the directors of the
Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values:

DNFEFEREERE

iR M IEHRR

BREHRANIIENEREENSRAGENKREE

HENFERSE -

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
—Z2—+tH+=-A=+—H —E-XF+=-A=+—H
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
REE ATE BRMEE NEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FExT FAET FAET
Financial liabilities SRAE
Bonds &5 4,637,641 4,659,102 8,481,249 8,293,849
Fair value hierarchy AFEEREE
31 December 2017
—Z2—+tH+=-A=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—#K et 1] B= wEt
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FH&x FExT
Financial assets at FVTPL: WA EFABRZZ S/
BEE
— Listed equity securities — FHRE 2,442,198 - - 2,442,198
— Listed debt securities — FfESH - 8,743 - 8,743
— Listed investment funds — FTREES - 506,250 - 506,250
— Unlisted hedge funds — JE ¥R ES - 153,648 - 153,648
— Unlisted investment portfolios — 3F FMiR&E4H4 - 158,130 - 158,130
— Written put options — oh Rk - 34,057 - 34,057
— Unlisted equity-linked notes  — 3E_E MR ERAES - 46,021 - 46,021
Total 4t 2,442,198 906,849 - 3,349,047
31 December 2016
—E—-XF+=ZA=1+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—H E R E=4 Wt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FAET FAT
Financial assets at FVTPL: BAFEEAEBEZ
SREE
— Listed equity securities — FHiRE 1,605,903 - - 1,605,903
— Listed debt securities — FhEH - 8,117 - 8,117
— Listed investment funds — R EES — 452,836 - 452,836
— Unlisted hedge funds — JE TR ES - 61,440 - 61,440
— Unlisted investment portfolios — 3 F#R&EHE - 282,298 - 282,298
— Written put options — ohHARE — 30,011 - 30,011
Total 4t 1,605,903 834,702 - 2,440,605
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B33k =M= (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

34.

35.

Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising From 34. MEEHELENAEEHER
Financing Activities
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising THRERAEEFARETHNRESS  BI1F
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash RekIReEH RETHEENBEREHR
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for AEBGERERERTOBEAMEITH B
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in TRIATE SR RIB SR AMERS 2 & fE -
the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows
from financing activities.
Accruals of
Commitment
fee
Bank Interest for bank Dividend
borrowings Bonds payable  borrowings payable Total
EFHRTER
BITREE ERFE RHER ERBRE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET TR TR FET TERT
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+$—F—H 8,376,248 8,481,249 114,260 3,417 - 16,975,174
Financing cash flows MERER 2,760,155 (4,098,406) (202,867) (12,44¢6) (1,012,835) (2,566,399)
Exchange difference & H =% 22,862 29,719 145 - - 52,726
Interest expenses FIBX M 24,873 189,569 745 13,767 - 228,954
Capitalization of BEREFEL L
interest expenses - 35,510 120,292 - - 155,802
Dividend declared BEERKE - - - - 1,012,835 1,012,835
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—+tF
+-A=+—H 11,184,138 4,637,641 32,575 4,738 - 15,859,092
Pledge of Assets 35. EEHA
RZE—+tF+_A=Z+—8B XEEH

At 31 December 2017, the Group pledged certain leasehold
land and buildings in Hong Kong with carrying values of
approximately HK$1,246.1 million (2016: HK$1,264.1 million),
investment properties with carrying values of HK$322.0 million
(2016: HK$301.0 million), together with certain shares of the
Company'’s subsidiaries, to secure the available banking facilities
of HK$8,000 million (2016: HK$8,000 million) granted to the
Group. In addition, financial assets at FVTPL with a carrying
value of approximately HK$1,427.4 million (2016: HK$841.8
million) have been pledged to secure loan facilities in the
amount of approximately US$255 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,991.6 million) (2016: US$255.0 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,978.8 million)).

Moreover, the entire Kai Tak Project, comprising the land and
investment properties under development, with an aggregate
carrying value of HK$8,416.2 million (31 December 2016:
HK$7,393.0 million) was pledged to secure the HK$9,000 million
loan facility granted to the Group for financing the development
of the Kai Tak Project. As at 31 December 2017, HK$3,691.0
million was utilized (2016: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %8 Bl #5353 (48)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ T —+HF+_A=+—HIFE

36. Related Party Disclosures 36. ERAEATHRE
(a) Transactions (@ X5
During the year, the Group entered into the following FRN - AEEGEATHEREALTETT
significant transactions with the following related parties. HERRS :

2017 2016

—2—tF ZERF

HK$000 HK$'000

FHBT TATT

Nature of related parties transactions EEGREATHNXZHE

(i) Rental and management fee paidto (i) #AF LENLBARTESER

Shanghai Joinbuy City Plaza nEl([mEEERED 2
Co., Ltd. (“Property JV") (note 1) HehEERE (M - 115,663
(i) Loan interest income received (i) MYESELFEWEZEK
from Property JV (note 1) MEMA (FHEE1) - 629
(i) Rental income received from a (iii) M A& E— B AR
subsidiary of Lifestyle China WEY Z f e U A 11,665 5,864
(iv) Rental expenses paid to subsidiaries  (iv) [A1F| & B[ &8 A 7 S 1+
of Lifestyle China ZHe TN 129 229
(v) Project management service income  (v) [A)F!)3& 7 B4 Fff /8 A RIULEX
from subsidiaries of Lifestyle China 2T B EEARTSUA
(note 2) (BYEE2) 3,237 6,039
Notes: FE -
(1) Prior to the completion of distribution in specie in ) HEEEE-RFrA=+—HILFE
connection with the spin-off of Lifestyle China during the A FITE R B DL IAE DT D IRTEK
year ended 31 December 2016, the Group held a 50% Al RNEEEES0% A E XM o
interest in Property JV.
(2) It represented the amount received or receivable by @ HEBEARDHITKIE - FIEMES YN
Lifestyle Properties from Lifestyle China Group after EYRFEPREEZ 2/ - REEFRE
completion of the Spin-off. The transaction ceased after ERFZERFUBRIE

the disposal of Lifestyle Properties Group.

(3)  All of the above related party transactions were conducted Q)  UELMAMBEBRZHRREHEERET K
in accordance with the terms and conditions mutually (R 175 720 B AR SRR iR A 7T o

agreed by the contracting parties.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b) FEEEASHMH
The remuneration of executive directors, being the key BITEERIZEREAE  EHMEAA
management personnel, were determined by the NEFBE B 2R @R RE LTSRN E
remuneration committee of the Company having regard FomECZHEERESH=FA(ZF—X
to the performance of the individuals and market, details F:ZR)ReWABIZHeF BRI
of which, together with the other three (2016: three) 12458 °

highest paid employees, are disclosed in note 12.
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for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

37. RIREREE

37. Retirement Benefits Schemes

Hong Kong

The Group participates in a defined contribution scheme under
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (“ORSO
Scheme”) and Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme ("MPF
Scheme”).

For members of the MPF Scheme, both the Group and the
employee contribute 5% of the employee’s relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. No
forfeited contribution was available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from
both employees and the Group at 5% of the employee's
remuneration.

PRC

Before the disposal of Lifestyle Properties Group, the employees
of the Group in the PRC were members of state-managed
retirement benefit schemes operated by the respective local
governments in the relevant jurisdictions. The Group was
required to contribute and recognise a specified percentage of
payroll costs to the schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to these schemes was to
make the specified contributions and recognise the respective
retirement pay in accordance with terms set out in the schemes
and relevant jurisdiction requirements.

The total cost charged to profit or loss from continuing
operation in respect of the above-mentioned schemes
amounted to HK$7,875,000 (2016: HK$8,100,000).

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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38. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries 38.
At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the details of the Company's
principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place/Date of incorporation/

Issued and fully paid

Attributable equity

Name of company establishment and operation share capital/registered capital interest of the Group (note 1) Principal activities
AMAIREREH
NRER WREMRLAH BRTRES/ 2RKE rEEEERE (HE1) IERH
2017 2016 2017 216
“5-tF N3 “E-tF “ERE
Congenial Company Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 HK$10,000,000 100% 100%  Property holding and leasing
2% April 1981 NEREREE
B
“MN\-EBAZ+RA
Eastlord Development Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 HK$500,000 100% 100%  Property holding and leasing
MeEERERDE 21 August 1987 NERAREE
&k
“ANCENRZT-B
Everwin Worldwide Limited Hong Kong HK$2 HKS2 100% 100%  Property holding and leasing
XERHRERLE 17 November 2000 NEREREE
B
ZEERET-+4H
Fine Shine Limited Hong Kong HK$2 HKS2 100% 100%  License holder
ERERAA 11 September 2003 FHEREA
&t
“ERZEAAT-R
Forceworld Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 HK$500,000 100% 100%  Property holding and leasing
NEREERAA 15 July 1988 NEREREE
B
“AJNELRTER
Future Develop Limited British Virgin Islands/ Uss3 Us$3 100% 100%  Investment holding
Hong Kong REZR
12 December 2003
ABRBRER/BE
2
Glory Line Management Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 HK$500,000 100% 100%  Provision of property security and
[E2ERERRA 5 September 1995 management services
& RENMFRZLERRE
—hAEFAARA
Grand Kinetic Limited Hong Kong HK$2 HKS2 100% 100%  Property holding and leasing
BERRAA 7 February 2001 NEREREE
B
“FE-5-AtA

MNEEREEERAIE —T—tFFR
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38. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (continued) 38. =EME A A E (&)
Place/Date of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid Attributable equity
Name of company establishment and operation share capital/registered capital interest of the Group (note 1) Principal activities
ERMAIREXLH
NEER DR R A BRIRES/ERRE rEEEERES (1) E3:544
2017 2016 2017 2016
“2-tF ERE “E-tf —IRE
Leading Rainbow Limited Hong Kong HK$1 HKS1 100% 100%  Advertising
BVEARRA 2 September 2016 E4
“E-RFAAZA
Leader Bright Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 HKS1 100% 100%  Properties development
FRARLT 18 December 2015 NEER
BE
“F-RETZATIE
Lifestyle Properties Cayman lslands/ HK$41,911,400 HK$41,911,400 - 59.56%  Investment holding
FligE Hong Kong (As at Disposal Date) (notes 2) REER
5 January 2012 (BEHER) (3t 2)
REHE/ Bk
“T-—%-AaR
LS Finance (2017) Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 US$1 100% 100%  Financing
Hong Kong e
1 November 2011
REGBRES/BE
“F-—%t+-A-A
LS Finance (2022) Limited British Virgin Islands/ Uss1 Uss1 100% 100%  Financing
Hong Kong BE
27 September 2012
RERBRES/BE
“E-ZEAAZTHE
LS Finance (2025) Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 US$1 100% 100%  Financing
Hong Kong e
2 June 2015
REGBRES/ B
“E-RFRAZH
Pacific Trump Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 HK§2 100% 100%  Property holding and leasing
MRERERLR 6 July 1995 NERAREE
“MNEELARE
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38. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (continued) 38. FZEME A A 1E (&)

Place/Date of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid Attributable equity
Name of company establishment and operation share capital/registered capital interest of the Group (note 1) Principal activities
HEMEIREF LA
NAER NRERRLAH BRIRES/2REA rEERERES (W) TEEH
2017 2016 2017 2016
“E-tf “TRE “E2-tF “FrF
Public Might Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 HK$1,000 100% 100%  Property holding and leasing
HEERAA 30 August 1984 NEFAREE
&R
-AN\EENAZTA
Ronson Kwok Asia Pacific Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 HK$1,000,000 100% 100%  Club operator
5October 1993 F2E
5
“AN=ETATR
Sogo Hong Kong Company Limited Hong Kong HK$4,000,000 HK$4,000,000 100% 100%  Retailing business
SR (ER)BEARAR 23 September 1983 TEER
B
“AN=EAAZT=ZR
Superlite Limited British Virgin Islands/ Uss1 US$1 100% 100%  Property holding and leasing
Hong Kong NERAREE
3 April 2001
ARBAREE/BE
“RT-EMA=H
BBREEEARAT PRC U5589,990,000 1S$89,990,000 - 59.56%  Property holding
12 March 2007 (As at Disposal Date) (notes 2) NERE
GEINEYIE (BZHER) (W 2)
S S R
ERBE(ES)ARAR" PRC RMB225,000,000 RMB225,000,000 - 59.56%  Property investment
Lifestyle Plaza (Qingdao) Co., Limited 31 December 1995 (As at Disposal Date) (notes 2) MERE
hEARANE (BELER) (K& 2)
“MEFTZA=T-H
REERIEEEARAR PRC US$18,000,000 1S§18,000,000 - 59.56%  Property investment
16 October 1995 (As at Disposal Date) (notes 2) MERE
HEARANE (BE1ER) (W 2)
“MEETATSR
* wholly foreign-owned enterprises established in the PRC. * RPBIRSZ RINE B

MNEEREEERAIE —T—tFFR



38. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

Notes:

1. LS finance (2017) Limited, LS Finance (2022) Limited and LS
Finance (2025) Limited are directly held by the Company. Other
subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

2. The subsidiaries are disposed during the year ended 31
December 2017. Details are set out in note 29.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the
results or assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. All of these
subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong. The principal activities of
these subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

Principal activities

Principal place of business

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %4 B33k =M= (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ—Z—+HF+__A=+—HIFE

38.

FENB R RFE (&)
BEE
1. LS Finance (2017) Limited * LS Finance (2022)

Limited % LS Finance (2025) Limited /& f 78 2 &)
HERR - HMMEARIRBEAARMERSR -

2. ZEMBARNRBE-T—tF+=-A=+—H
LIEFERHE o FHISHRHE29

EPRINEARARBPEERBETEXEAEEE
BREEZMBAR - ARREERR  RHE
M BARENEEEFITAR -

RIBEHIR - ARR 2 HMHE QR EHAREE
BEERYE - IARSWBARERBEE -
ZEMBARZ E2EBHAMT

Number of subsidiaries

TEEK TEEEHE MELEHE
2017 2016
—B—tf “2-x
Restaurant operator Hong Kong - 1
BEKE )
- 1
Securities investment Hong Kong 5 6
EHRE B8

As at 31 December 2017, all of the Group's subsidiaries are
wholly owned. As at 31 December 2016, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that none of the Group's
subsidiaries that has non-controlling interests are material to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole and therefore, the
financial information in respect of those subsidiaries that has
non-controlling interests are not presented.
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39. Statement of Financial Position and Reserves
of the Company

Information about the statement of financial position of the

39. ALQAMBARR KRR

REEBREER  ARRMBKIRERBRE

Company at the end of the reporting period includes:

2017 2016
—E—+F —ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET

Non-current assets FERHEE
Investments in subsidiaries FOMT B A A 7R 9,741,000 774,924
Amount due from a subsidiary (note a) FEW— MM B AR FIE (WiEa) 3,698,000 6,598,880
13,439,000 7,373,804

Current assets mENEE
Other receivables Ho e sk IE 1,117 947
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note b) FEU I B AT ZIE (MfizEb) 191,999 8,679,174
Bank balances and cash RITHEFNIRS 179,527 3,719
372,643 8,683,840
Current liabilities MEAE

Other payables HAb R FRIE 2,718 2,661
Amounts due to subsidiaries (note b) FERTM B A alaE (MsEb) 8,814,669 15,402,396
Tax payable JEFTIIR 170 149
8,817,557 15,405,206
Net current liabilities mEBBEFE (8,444,914) (6,721,366)
4,994,086 652,438

Non-current liabilities SEREEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries (note c) ERHBAR (o) 3,698,000 -
3,698,000 -
Net assets EEFE 1,296,086 652,438

Capital and reserves BEARRFEE
Share capital & A 8,013 8,013
Reserves (note d) i (i aEd) 1,288,073 644,425
1,296,086 652,438

MEEREEERAIE —T—tFFR
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39. Statement of Financial Position and Reserves
of the Company (continued)

39. ADRMBMRR KRR GHE (R

Movement of the reserves of the Company is as follows: RRBNHEBEEBOT -
Capital
redemption Retained
reserve profits Total
EXREE G BT wst
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET
At 1 January 2016 RZZ—RE—H—H 687 2,843,436 2,844,123
Profit and total comprehensive RERRH R ERABE
income for the year - 6,899,416 6,899,416
Dividends paid BRI S - (1,012,835) (1,012,835)
Dividend by way of distribution EWH A 5K
in specie (note e) 2B (Fizte) - (8,086,279) (8,086,279)
At 31 December 2016 WZZ—RE+=-A=+—H 687 643,738 644,425
Profit and total comprehensive AEERENREEBALE
income for the year - 1,656,483 1,656,483

Dividends paid BIRFRE - (1,012,835) (1,012,835)

At 31 December 2017 WZZ—+tF+=-A=+—H 687 1,287,386 1,288,073

Notes: BisE -

a. The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-bearing a. FEA— R B 2 5] 2 BUR T IR AR - SRATR %
at prevailing interest rate and have no fixed repayment terms. In at B ROS B EEEFR - ERERBREAMF
the opinion of the directors, based on their assessment as at the E%KEWEWEQE—JE"JE%*%EE@M%Z% =3
end of the reporting period of the estimated future cash flows SRGTEEREWR—FANEE - HULHES
from the subsidiary, the amount due from the subsidiary will not HRIERD -
be repayable within one year from the end of the reporting
period, accordingly the amount is classified as non-current.

b. The amounts due from (to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest- b. ﬁs”y/\(ﬁgﬁ) FiE o FI AR R AR - 2R RA
free, and repayable on demand. REREER

c. The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-bearing c. E‘%ﬁW%@\ﬂZﬁlﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁf BRBRITREG B
at prevailing interest rate and have no fixed repayment terms. In L] (Bl TE 58 AR ﬁiﬁﬁmz‘%@ﬁmﬁﬁgﬁ
the opinion of the directors, based on their assessment at the end KRHENBERRRS R & - XL WHIRE
of the reporting period of the estimated future cash flows, the WEMR—FUANEE BRI BAIERD
amounts due to subsidiaries will not be repayable within one year
from the reporting period, accordingly, the amount are classified
as non-current.

d. The Company's reserves available for distribution as at 31 d. %:?*t%f:ﬂ =+—8" ZIS%ETEW%%\}JK
December 2017 consisted of retained profits of HK$1,287,386,000 & FJ{%%E%U\%"j_‘l,287,386,000}%7l(:%*/‘7\
(2016: HK$643,738,000). 4F 1 643,738,000 7T) °

e.  The amount represents the carrying amount of the investment in e. ZEERANEIRE LR EHORARETEZ

Lifestyle Inter|

Lifestyle China as recorded at the Company'’s books. Details of
the distribution in specie in the Group's consolidated financial
statements amounting to HK$10,058,506,000 million are set out in
note 1.
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Five-Year Group Financial Summary

EFEEMERHE

Results ¥EE
For the year ended 31 December HE+-A=1t—HLFE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
ZE—tF | ZETRE “T-R% ZT-mE ZT=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHBIL FET FHET FET
Continuing Continuing
operation operation
¥iE B
REEK BEER
Turnover S 4,898,605 4,671,971 6,171,393 5,969,740 5,955,335
Profit attributable to owners RARHER AEGEF
of the Company 2,874,640 1,600,907 1,914,392 2,143,994 2,448,247
Earnings per share (HK$) BREM(ET)
— Basic — &K 1.79 1.00 1.19 1.31 1.48
— Diluted — 88 N/A N/A N/A 1.31 1.48
Total dividends per share (HK cents) &A% 2 42%8 (B1l) 63.2 63.2 63.2 59.1 59.1

Continuing operations refer only to the Group’s department
store operations in Hong Kong following the spin-off of Lifestyle
China Group and disposal of Lifestyle Properties Group in 2016
and 2017 respectively.

SEEEEBIEAEEAD N —_E—RER-E—+
FoRMETEEERHEMNERLESER  RES
WBEERRIER -

Assets and Liabilities EERAE
At 31 December W“+=—A=+—8H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
“E—+F| ZT-RF ZT-HF ZZT-mF ZZT-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET FET FHET FET
(note 1) (note 2)
(BtaE1) GEY)
Total assets BERLE 21,631,777 21,117,336 28,804,274 26,847,895 26,715,998
Total liabilities BEEE (17,587,293) (18,669,420) (15,708,143) (13,858,982) (14,452,228)
Net assets BEFE 4,044,484 2,447 916 13,096,131 12,988,913 12,263,770
Non-controlling interests JEFE RIS - (597,542) (1,973,072 (1,886,546) (1,799,205)
Net assets attributable to owners RN R ARG
of the Company BEFE 4,044,484 1,850,374 11,123,059 11,102,367 10,464,565
Net assets per share (HK$) EREEFEGET) 2.52 1.53 8.17 797 743
Net assets per share attributable E/NCTE 2PNl
to owners of the Company (HK$) FREEFE(BL) 2.52 1.15 6.94 6.81 6.34
Number of shares issued BBTRMHEE 1,602,586,500 | 1,602,586,500 1,602,586,500 1,629,385,000 1,650,341,000

Notes:

(1) During the year, the Group completed the disposal of its entire
59.56% equity interest in Lifestyle Properties Development
Limited.

(2) In 2016, the Group underwent a group reorganisation to spin-off
and separately listing the shares of Lifestyle China on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. The Company declared a special
interim dividend, satisfied by distribution in specie of the entire
issued share capital of Lifestyle China to the shareholders of the
Company, the aggregate amount of this special interim dividend
was approximately HK$10,058,506,000.

GEE

M RER FAEBEEHEHEZE59.56%FEbEERE
RARZ Rt o

2 RZT—RE  RAKEFESDE D DI MR
ZPTERBI LT EITREES - AR BT IR
FHIRRE  XLAEY SR IRMNETEN A2 T
BAFARBDRR LS FHREQE
10,058,506,000 % 7T °
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Particulars of Major Properties

FEYEHE

Investment Properties

REWME

Attributable

Gross floor Nature interest Category
Descriptions area of property to the Group of lease
EY Y
R BIBHEEE MEME FEfL R HE®Es
(sg. m.)
CEAK)

1. An unit in a commercial building 1,074.79 Commercial 100% Long
located at 555 Hennessy Road, [EHES =H
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
R EBIRNGEE
FF/E 5548 555 5%

— R EAE N —{E B
Property under development EELEYES
Attributable
Gross Nature of interestto  Category  Stage of  Expected Lot
Descriptions floor area  Site area property  the Group  oflease  completion completion  number
HEn r5HE
R [T EERE  PEME EGEE  EEEN  RABR  RIRI RBER
sq.m. sq.m.
FhK FhK

1. Property under development 101,900* 14,159 Commercial 100% Medium Under  Endof2021/ 6557
located at New Kowloon Inland GRS FE development early 2022
Kai Tak, Area 1E ¥RT —F-FR
Site 2, Kowloon, Hong Kong B

iz

R ER SLBERIIE S 1E @ 25k R A0RA
ERERZERTYE

*  Approximately 49.5% of the development is expected to be for own *

use.

THER ) 49.5%TEHER A ©
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Lifestyle

International Holdings Ltd.

Aot BB & B AMRAR2SE

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

20/F., East Point Centre, 555 Hennessy Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

FEEIREERRAE
(RBASE BEMA I ERAT)
BB S EFNES555%
RAFL201E

Telephone: (852) 2833 8338
Facsimile: (852) 2838 2030
Email: info@lifestylehk.com.hk
www.lifestylehk.com.hk
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